
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Oregon Cultural Trust Board Meeting 
February 23, 2023 
 
9:00 am to 12:00 pm 

Cultural Trust Board Meeting 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://oregon4biz.zoom.us/j/85895046208?pwd=SGJucjNCb2tOM0ptMEsxd2R0SGVpZz09 
 
Meeting ID: 858 9504 6208 
Passcode: 078475 
One tap mobile 
+13462487799,,85895046208#,,,,*078475# US  
 
 
 

Page 1 of 69



Oregon Cultural Trust
Board Meeting Agenda

Thursday 

23-Feb-23
9:00 to 12:00pm

Zoom Link https://oregon4biz.zoom.us/j/8589504

9:00 AM Welcome Introductions Niki Price, Chair

1 Action
Page 5

9:05 AM Minutes: October 27, 2022 Niki Price

2 Information 
Page 9

9:10 AM Cultural Partner Reports Partners, see list below

3 Information
Page 19

9:25 AM Heritage Economic Impact 
Report Presentation

Katie Henry, Oregon Heritiage 
Commission Coordinator

4 Information
Page 52

9:40 AM 2022 Fundraising Campaign 
Review

Raiss Fleming, Administrative 
Assistant and Carrie Kikel, 
Communications Manager

5 Information
Page 54

9:55 AM Cultural Trust Brand Audit Carrie Kikel, Communications 
Manger

Break 10:20 AM Break

6 Discussion
Page 57

10:35 AM Strategic Planning and DEIA 
Process 

Aili Schreiner, Trust Manager

7 Discussion
Page 59

10:50 AM Conversation with Funders 
Update

Aili Schreiner

8 Information
Page 62

11:10 AM Executive Director Report, 
Legislative Session

Brian Rogers, Executive Director

9 Information 11:35 AM Board Member and Staff 
Updates

10 11:55 AM Public Comment

11 Action 12:00 PM Adjourn Niki Price

Unanticipated agenda items may or may not be included. The meeting is a Zoom meeting with phone 
conference option. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for 
persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Raissa Fleming 503-986-
0088.  TTY 800-735-2900

Oregon Humanities
Oregon Historical Society 

Jenny Green, Chair Oregon Arts Commission
Kuri Gill, Heritage Commission Coordinator

Chrissy Curran, Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer 

Eliza Canty-Jones,  Director of Community Engagement
Adam Davis, Executive Director

Phone: 1 669 944 9171 Meeting ID: 85821773023   Passcode: 296848 

Oregon Cultural Trust Partners
Oregon Arts Commission
Oregon Heritage Commission

State Historic Preservation Office 



Mission

Overview
Purpose

Governance

FTE

Budget

Revenue 
Sources

Services & 
Technical 

Assistance

Shared 
Services

General Fund, Federal Fund (NEA)
Other Funds (Percent for Art, Cultural Trust, The Ford Family Foundation, 

Oregon Community Foundation, Lottery)
Other Funds (Contributed, License Plate, Interest Earnings)

 Policy development and advice to government on programs related to arts
 Official state arts agency
 Grantmaking
 Advocacy
 Multiple programs (Community Development, Arts Education, Percent for 

Art)

 Policy development and advice to government on programs related to 
culture

 Fund development
 Grantmaking
 Advocacy
 County/Tribal Coalition development

 Arts Access Reimbursement, $5,914
 Arts Build Communities, $180,002
 Arts Learning, $190,000
 Career Opportunity, $164,126
 Designated, $40,000
 Fellowship, $25,000
 Operating Support, $1,493,981
 Small Operating, $209,423
 Total = $1,493,981

 Cultural Development, $1,350,719
 Coalitions, $676,760
 Cultural Partners

 Oregon Arts Commission, $181,868
 Oregon Heritage Commission, $60,623
 Oregon Historical Society, $60,623
 Oregon Humanities, $181,868
 State Historic Preservation, $60,623

 Total = $2,573,084

Percent for Art Coalition Leadership

To enhance the quality of life for all Oregonians 
through the arts by stimulating creativity, leadership 

and economic vitality

9 Members Appointment by the Governor

4.5 Admin & Programs
3 Contract (Percent for Art)

To lead in building an environment in which cultural 
organizations are sustained and valued as a core 
part of vibrant Oregon communities.

11 Members Appointed by the Governor, confirmed by the Senate
1 House Member; 1 Senate Member

3.5
Fund Development, Communications, Assistant

Office  Technology/Software  Financial  Contracts  Human Resources  Administrative  Communication Staff

Grants FY2021: July 1 20120 – June 30, 2021

Revised 03/08/22

1
Executive
Director

FY19
Donations
$4,557,355

$3,728,492 $3,384,340

Grant Trainings  Staff Outreach  Online Resources  Communications



Sophorn Cheang 
Director, Business 

Oregon

Oregon Cultural 
Trust Board of 

Directors

Administrative 
Assistant

Raissa Fleming

Cultural Trust 
Manager

Aili Schreiner

Cultural Trust Staff

Arts Commission
 Cultural Trust

Executive Director
Brian Rogers

Communications 
Manager

Carrie Kikel

Grants & Office 
Coordinator

Kat Bell

Arts Commission Staff
Oregon Arts 
Commission

Board of Directors

Public Art & Artist 
Programs 

Coordinator
Ryan Burghard

Art Collection & 
Artist Specialist

Sarah Baylinson

Arts Education & 
Grants 

Coordinator
Tiffany Harker

Updated: 10/24/2022

Senior Program 
Manager

Liora Sponko

Poetry Out Loud 
Contractor

6 Percent for Art 
Contractors

2 Temporary 
Employees

Website 
Maintenance 
Contractor

2 Marketing 
Contractors

Arts Commission and Cultural Trust Staff

Administrative 
Specialist

Jill Coughlin



1 
 

DRAFT 
Oregon Cultural Trust Board Meeting Minutes 

 

October 27, 2022 Teleconference 
 

 
Board Members Present: Niki Price, Chair; George Kramer, Vice-Chair; Gayle 
Yamasaki, Treasurer; Gustavo Morales; Myong-Hui Murphy; Deb Schallert 
 
Board Members Absent: Bereniece Jones-Centano; Sen Bill Hansell; Nathalie 
Johnson; Rep John Lively, Sean Andries; Chris Van Dyke 
 
Staff Present: Jill Coughlin, Arts Administrative Specialist II; Raissa Fleming, Trust 
Assistant; Carrie Kikel, Communications Manager; Brian Rogers, Executive Director; 
Aili Schreiner, Trust Manager, Liora Sponko, Senior Program Manager 
 
Partners Present: Eliza Canty-Jones, Oregon Historical Society, Chrissy Curran, 
State Historic Preservation Office; Julia Soto, Oregon Humanities; Kuri Gill, Oregon 
Heritage Commission; Jenny Green, Oregon Arts Commission 
 
Others Present:  
 
Welcome and Call to Order 
Price called the meeting to order at 9:02 am. Deb Schallert was welcomed as an 
incoming Board member. 
 
Minutes: July 28, 2022 
Motion: Yamasaki moved approval of the minutes from the July 28, 2022 meeting 
as presented. Seconded by Price. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Cultural Partner Reports 
Canty-Jones presented the Oregon Historical Society (OHS) report. OHS is working 
hard on their priorities of visibility, high quality work and financial stability. The 
“Human Experience in the Great Basin” symposium is taking place in Bend and 
explores the ways tribal and non- tribal scholars work together in uncovering their 
history. OHS is grateful for increased funding from the Cultural Trust. Signing up for 
the OHS e-digest was encouraged. 
 
Curran thanked the Trust for funding Oregon Heritage Commission (OHC); they’re 
able to use on their grant program for preservation projects. The Eastmoreland 
Historic District project was passed on to park services, a significant boon to 

Page 5 of 69



2 
 

freeing up staff time for preservation projects. The National Registry of Historic 
Places has challenges with inclusion and diversity; OHC is working on making 
progress in this area. They are also bracing for change with a new incoming 
governor.  
 
Gill presented report. In-person events have resumed, including hosting free 
workshops related to organizational change management. Oregon Main Street 
conference was held in Klamath Falls and was a big success. The State Advisory 
Committee on Public Places was also a success. Their summit in the spring is 
virtual, with a focus on volunteer recruitment and engagement. Directed people to 
look at the Upper Floor study in the meeting packet. 50% of historical sites have 
unused upper floors; OHC is pushing to change that. 
 
Green, Oregon Arts Commission: Tiffany Harker hired as Arts Education and Grants 
Coordinator. Farewell to Eleanor Sandys. A few staff attended National State Arts 
Agency Conference. Strategic Plan was approved. DEIA plan to follow. Bulk of OCT 
funds goes to Operating Support to arts organizations. Poetry Out Loud will be in 
person. Need more support financially and to that end are starting an Arts and 
Culture Caucus. Senator Anderson has joined, excited to have our first senator on 
board. 
 
Oregon Folklife Network Presentation 
Emily Hartlerode, at University of Oregon/Eugene. Shared her PowerPoint 
presentation. Explained purpose and history of OFN. Mission to research cultural 
diversity throughout the state. Four core programs: apprenticeship. Survey, roster, 
and culture fest. 5 artists awarded funding to pass their living traditions and art 
form to promising apprentices. Give presentation of their project that OFN records 
and adds to their artist page. Can find on Oregon Culture Keepers Roster on their 
website. Funding model at the university changed and they lost half of their 
funding, slashed from 400k to 200k. Working on increasing their funding. No full-
time employees, wants to regain capacity.  
 
Funding Programs Update 
Cultural Development 
Schreiner delivered the report. CDV grants have been awarded. Cultural 
Participation grants are going out next week. There is a meetup with Coalitions 
tomorrow focused on end of year fundraising, and a meeting with counties who had 
to cease grantmaking during the pandemic.  
 
Partner grants have mostly gone out. Reviewed the breakdown of where the 
$181,904 in cooperative grant awards are being distributed, and awards for Live 
events ARPA funding distribution. Yamasaki asked where the counties money went 

Page 6 of 69



3 
 

who couldn’t distribute their awards. Schreiner said the money goes back into the 
Trust fund. Yamasaki also asked for board invites to the coalition meetings. 
 
A 10-minute break was called at 10:26 am. Meeting resumed at 10:38 am.  
 
 
Celebrate Oregon License Plate Sales Update 
Kikel delivered the report. Approximately 800 license plates are sold per month, 
yielding about $70,000 revenue monthly. A marketing campaign was implemented 
to increase sales. The Department of Justice determined that the Trust’s statute 
does not grant us the legal right to sell merchandise, so we are looking into 
giveaways instead. 
 
Reviewed the marketing report. Hired Watson Creative as consultants to assist in 
our digital marketing efforts. Partnership with Eugene Symphony, 4-part radio 
program that we sponsored. Here is Oregon Partnership, invested $25,000. 
 
End of Year Campaign Update 
Schreiner said there are 70 upcoming board presentations and that it’s the most 
effective way to bring in donations to the Trust. Also giving orientations to others 
(i.e., Trust board members) so they can give presentations too. A mailer to 
subgrantees and license plate owners went out. Fleming is working on prospective 
corporate donor list; about 200 letters will go out.  
 
Kikel is contracting 2 Impact Story writers. 
 
Fleming said donations are down $100,000, but this is in comparison to last year 
when the Trust received a $250,000 bequest. The Spring mailing was a success 
and brought in approximately 350 donations. She recently gave a presentation at 
Montavilla Jazz and received a $1000 donation. Bell & Funk is working with Bend 
Give Guide to make sure we’ll be able to receive donations. Yamasaki said she might 
be able to secure gifts from Friends of Crater Lake for prize giveaways for 
attending presentations.  
 
Kramer promoted the idea of having short stories for icons on license plate.  
 
Price said the Oregon Coast Arts Bus unveiling was a wonderful experience. 
 
Strategic Planning and DEIA Process 
Schreiner delivered her report. DEIA goals will be integrated into the strategic plan, 
which is also in the works for a June 2023 completion date. Role of the plan and 
goals were discussed at the last meeting. A mission statement for the plan was 
requested; Andries agreed to work on this. Murphy said the committee is diverse 

Page 7 of 69



4 
 

and has had open conversations. It will be a living document and will be reviewed 
annually with the board. Schreiner put out an open call for board members to join 
our various committees. 
 
Executive Director Report 
Rogers delivered the report. Two of three Oregon gubernatorial candidates 
attended recent Cultural Advocacy Coalition of Oregon (CACO) meetings. Candidate 
Drazan did not attend. CACO’s $200 million in lottery bond funding for the Trust 
was discussed. The Trust is requesting a change in its current administrative cap. 
The Arts Commission is asking for an increase in general funds. and the CACO is 
seeking an additional $50 million in pandemic relief efforts. The Trust/Arts 
Commission is working with CACO to develop a survey for organizations to identify 
their pandemic-era losses that are yet to be addressed. The Legislature has an 
opportunity to do more bonding in this biennium than ever before. Funding would be 
administered to the Trust and then disbursed out Coalitions on a per capita basis to 
regrant, which could be problematic from Rogers’ perspective.  
 
Kramer worries that the legislature won’t give the Trust money for a long time if we 
get the $200 million; they may think we’re covered. Concerns over CACO making 
decisions without consulting the Trust Board or leadership were discussed. The 
Trust administrative cap increase should be the number one priority presented to 
the legislature. Discussions ensued about concerns with the lottery bond 
legislation. 
 
The NEA tour with new chair Dr. Maria Rosario Jackson was a success and included 
various cultural site tours and meetings 
 
Board Member and Staff Updates 
Fleming will mail donation remit envelopes to board members upon request. 
 
The next Board Meeting is February 23, 2023. Updates on the Trust’s fundraising 
campaign will be provided. The board meeting schedule is not currently set post 
February 2023. Yamasaki advocated for in-person meetings. Rogers said the spring 
meeting can be held at Chehalem Cultural Center.  
 
Public Comment 
None. 
 
Adjourn 
Price adjourned the meeting at 12:13 pm. 
 

Page 8 of 69



775 Summer Street NE, Suite 200 
Salem, OR 97301-1280 

(503) 986-0082 
 

Oregon Arts Commission Partner Report  
to the Oregon Cultural Trust 

February 23, 2023 
 

 
Oregon Arts and Culture Caucus and Event 
Funded by Western States Arts Federation (WESTAF), Thomas Lauderdale, the founder of 
Pink Martini, and Hunter Noack, the founder of In A Landscape, will perform as special 
guests at the Oregon Arts and Culture Caucus Launch Event, scheduled from 5:30 to 7 p.m. 
on Monday, Feb. 27, at Salem’s Elsinore Theatre. The Oregon Arts and Culture Caucus 
Launch Event is free and open to the public, but registration is required.  
 
The bi-partisan Arts and Culture Caucus, coordinated by Rep. Rob Nosse (D-Portland), was 
formed in recognition of the vital role arts and culture play in the livability and prosperity 
of Oregon communities – and in enriching the lives of Oregonians. The Caucus also 
includes Sen. Dick Anderson (R-Lincoln City); Rep. Janelle Bynum (D-Clackamas); Rep. 
Maxine Dexter (D-Portland); Rep. David Gomberg (D-Otis); Sen. Bill Hansell (R-Athena); 
Rep. Annessa Hartman (D-Gladstone); Rep. John Lively (D-Springfield); Rep. Pam Marsh 
(D-Ashland); and Sen. Deb Patterson (D-Salem). Caucus membership is expected to 
expand.  
 
Creative and Cultural Districts 
A Creative or Cultural District is an area with a high concentration of arts and/or cultural 
facilities and events that serve as anchors of attraction within their community. The 
district reflects the community’s unique cultural heritage through its built environment 
and history, showcasing the region’s artists and cultural traditions while increasing 
social engagement and visitors. Creative & Cultural Districts are found in all types of 
communities from small and rural to large and urban.  
 
Districts are led by the community and provide community-driven solutions advance 
their goals and address local problems and needs. Often communities create districts as 
way to retain and recruit artists, beautify downtowns, encourage visitation, and engage 
and elevate underserved communities. Communities will have increased success in 
reaching their goals with this type of intentional planning among a diverse group of 
stakeholders. 
 
A state-designated Creative & Cultural Districts program would allow the Oregon Arts 
Commission to support communities in achieving their economic, community 
development and tourism goals related by providing technical assistance, marketing and 
grants. Thanks to funding from the Cultural Partners, the Arts Commission is working 
with Cultural Planning Group to model a statewide program. Informed by dozens of 
interviews with stakeholders, research into existing programs in the US, and in 
consultation with other statewide cultural programs (e.g. Main Street Program), Cultural 

Page 9 of 69



775 Summer Street NE, Suite 200 
Salem, OR 97301-1280 

(503) 986-0082 
 

Planning Group has created a program framework that the Arts Commission will utilize 
to implement the program. Over the next few years, we are exploring piloting this 
program in a few communities while building a technical assistance program for all 
communities across the state.  
 
Poetry Out Loud 
Hosted by artist and spoken word poet, MOsley WOtta, Oregon’s Statewide Poetry Out 
Loud Contest will be held on Saturday March 11th at 1pm at Allied Video Productions in 
Salem, which is the first live event since 2019. Fifteen schools from across the state are 
participating in Poetry Out Loud this year. 
 
New Staff- Ryan Burghard 
The Arts Commission recently hired Ryan Burghard as our new Public Art & Artist 
Program Coordinator. Ryan coordinates our Art in Public Places Program and grant 
programs for artists (Career Opportunity Grant and Individual Artist Fellowships.)  
 
Ryan spent over a decade working with the Oregon Arts Commission, focusing on the 
acquisition and commissioning of public art on behalf of the state. Ryan also served as an 
assistant professor at Oregon College of Art and Craft, a mentor in PNCA’s Applied Craft 
and Design (AC+D) program and an instructor at Portland Community College. He was an 
integral part of developing the Curator-in-Residence program at Disjecta Contemporary 
Arts Center (now Oregon Contemporary) as program manager from 2013 to 2017. 
 
Upcoming Grant Deadlines 
• Career Opportunity Grant- Deadline March 8, 2023 

Career Opportunity grants range from $500 to $2,000 and enable individual Oregon 
artists to take advantage of unique opportunities to enhance their career. Up to an 
additional $9,000 is available from The Ford Family Foundation for established visual 
artists. 
 

• Operating Support Grant- Deadline: March 28, 2023 
Operating Support awards typically range from $3,000 to $30,000 and contribute to the 
full range of programming of Oregon's nonprofit arts organizations with annual cash 
operating budgets of more than $150,000. 

 
• Small Operating Grant- Deadline: March 28, 2023 

The Small Operating Grant to provide operating support for locally based arts 
organizations with annual cash operating expenses of less than $150,000.  

 
• Arts Learning Grant- Deadline May 2, 2023 

Arts Learning grants provide $10,000 matching support to arts organizations for high-
quality projects that provide a responsive opportunity for learning in and through the 
arts to benefit K-12 students. 

Page 10 of 69



775 Summer Street NE, Suite 200 
Salem, OR 97301-1280 

(503) 986-0082 
 

 
• Art Access Reimbursement- Rolling application  

Access Reimbursement grants range from $200 to $1,000 and offset expenses incurred 
by Oregon’s nonprofit arts organizations to ensure public access to all individuals 
who want to participate. 

 
 

Page 11 of 69



 
 

Tina Kotek, Governor 

Parks and Recreation Department
Oregon Heritage Commission 

725 Summer St. NE, Suite C
Salem, OR 97301-1271

(503) 986-0685
www.oregonheritage.org

 
  
Oregon Heritage Commission Report 
 
Oregon Heritage Summit 
The biannual Oregon Heritage Summit, April 27 & 28, 2023 will be online and the focus theme 
is volunteers. The first day will offer inspiration, ideas and connections and the second day will 
be practical training. Prizes (book and volunteer appreciation grants) will be awarded by random 
drawing of participants. The theme was in response to heritage organizations naming volunteer 
needs as a high priority.  

Oregon Main Street Annual Report Released 
 
The 2022 Oregon Main Street Annual Report shares programmatic highlights as well as annual 
and cumulative revitalization statistics from communities participating in the Main Street Track 
of the Oregon Main Street Network. 
 
Data from the 38 communities submitting quarterly reports in 2022 showed there were: 

• 521 net new jobs created 
• $34,064,038 private sector reinvestment in building improvement projects 
• $32,514.507 public sector reinvestment in public improvement projects 
• 152 building rehab projects completed 
• 92 net new business openings 
• 18 business expansions 
• 521 net new jobs 
• 25,450 volunteer hours given by community members to improve their downtowns 

One of the highlights featured in the report is the creation of a pilot Rural Regional Main Street 
effort in partnership with the Oregon Frontier Chamber of Commerce with participating 
communities in Sherman, Gilliam, and Wheeler Counties. This is helping connect very small, 
rural communities with Oregon Main Street. The report also features the list of 2022 Excellence 
on Main Award recipients, including the inaugural Open Door Award which went to the 
Lebanon Downtown Association’s Family Pride Day. This award goes to a Main Street that has 
demonstrated a commitment to creating an environment that is welcoming and inviting to all 
through programs, outreach, or other efforts. 
 
Oregon Heritage Grant Applications open 
Many of the Oregon Heritage grant applications are open.  
 
Oregon Heritage MentorCorps program seeking mentors 
Our new approach to managing the program is working well. We have several organizations 
currently assigned a mentor. We are going to begin recruitment for additional mentors in the next 
month. Please visit https://www.oregon.gov/oprd/OH/pages/mentorcorps.aspx for more 

Page 12 of 69



information about MentorCorps. 
 
NOTE: The idea for this program came from the partner grant tours organized by the Oregon 
Cultural Trust. We discussed the capacity issues of the organizations showing up in the grant 
applications and how to help them improve. The initial implementation of and the reorganization 
of this important program was funded in part by our Cultural Trust partner funds. We would be 
happy to provide a full report on the results of this program to the board if desired.  
 
Commission Kicks of Oregon Heritage Plan Evaluation 
The Oregon Heritage Commission has developed an evaluation process to attempt to see how 
heritage organizations throughout the state are moving forward the goals of the Oregon Heritage 
Plan.  The 2020 Heritage Plan is a call to action for heritage efforts to unite around common 
goals. The Oregon Heritage Commission invited individuals and organizations to discuss these 
goals, consider how they align with institutional and regional opportunities, and join the 
Commission in this work. Together, individual steps will add up to important outcomes for the 
state resulting in more stories told, more people served, and more sustainable heritage 
organizations.  
Using surveys and interviews with organizations from around the state, the commission will 
track metrics related to the plan goals over the next three years. This evaluation effort is a pilot to 
learn how we might track this work, it is funded in part by the Oregon Heritage Commission 
partner funds.  

Commission Kicks of Oregon Heritage Plan Evaluation 
 
The OPRD budget includes $20 million in lottery bond funds for the Oregon Main Street 
Revitalization Grant. This is an increase of $10 million dollars compared to the last biennium.  
 
Work continues… 

• Unused upper-floor study 
• Oregon Main Street Impact Study 
• Economic Impact of Heritage Study 
• NW Digital Heritage HUB 
• Disaster mitigation planning for historic resources – grant to FEMA 

Page 13 of 69



To the Oregon Cultural Trust Board of Directors,

At a recent Oregon Humanities board of directors meeting, we asked our board members to
think about something they are proud of from the past three years.  Two specific comments
caught my attention.  One person said they were impressed and proud that Oregon
Humanities felt stable throughout the past three years, was able to pivot almost entirely
in-person programming to virtual programming, and find relevant, meaningful, and connective
topics and approaches to keep Oregonians engaged.  This echoed throughout the room.  The
other comment that resonated with me was “the people”.  The work you’ll read about below is
due to this solid team of people working to highlight folks in our networks, develop new
networks, and make connections across Oregon through our work.  It’s a pleasure to be a part
of that team, to be a Oregon Cultural Trust Partner, and we are proud to share this work with
you.

We are currently setting up meetings in Washington, DC with Oregon’s congressional
delegation for “Humanities on the Hill” which takes place March 8 this year.  We’ll be making
the case for strong funding to the National Endowment for the Humanities and the National
Endowment for the Arts and showing how federal funding makes its way to all parts of Oregon
through the Federal/State Partnership and the work of Oregon Humanities and partners.

We're also sending letters in support of three big culture bills in Oregon that the Cultural
Advocacy Coalition of Oregon is working on: $50m in COVID relief; a large capital construction
slate; and $200M in lottery bond funds to reach the original goal for the corpus.

We are welcoming a new member to the Oregon Humanities board of directors, Darci
Hanning, with the Oregon State Library.

Our Public Program Grants are currently open and accepting applications (deadline March 10).
This year we have just over $100,000 to award and continue to focus on our goal of 60% of the
funding going to our two priority groups: organizations in rural Oregon and/or Black,
Indigenous, and People of Color led organizations. Please help spread word of this opportunity
in your networks. We are currently in process awarding our Consider This Mini Grants for Rural
Libraries.

Our Consider This series on the theme of People, Place, and Power continues.  We hope to
see you in-person or perhaps watching the live stream for these upcoming events.  If you’d like

Page 14 of 69

http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/grants/public-program-grants-2/
https://www.oregonhumanities.org/programs/grants/consider-this-mini-grant/
https://www.oregonhumanities.org/programs/grants/consider-this-mini-grant/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/consider-this/consider-this-people-place-and-power/


some complimentary tickets to either event, please let us know by emailing
jennifer@oregonhumanities.org

● March 7, 2023: Kiese Laymon, Alberta Rose Theatre, 3000 NE Alberta St., Portland.
7:00 p.m.

● April 18, 2023: Mónica Guzmán, Alberta Rose Theatre, 3000 NE Alberta St., Portland.
7:00 p.m.

This round of Dear Stranger invites folks to write about things they keep hidden & things
they’re working to uncover.  We encourage you to consider joining in this statewide letter
exchange. The themes are connected to our Oregon Humanities Magazine and the current
issue on “Underground.”  If you don’t already receive this free magazine and would like to have
it delivered to your home, please complete this form to subscribe.

Our podcast, The Detour, continues to explore challenging questions with writers, educators,
artists, and activists.  We're also airing in partnership with several community radio stations
around the state. Please feel free to follow/subscribe, recommend to your people and
networks, and tell us what can be improved.

The Conversation Project is gearing up to announce some new topics and facilitators this
spring.  Our program, So Much Together, was developed in 2021 and has been entirely virtual
until this season where we have several events taking place in-person around Oregon.  This
year’s Humanity in Perspective (HIP) course moves back to in-person (Portland) for our spring
term offering, HIP has been online since spring of 2020.  If you know of any Portland folks that
might be interested in this free, college-credit course for adults, please connect us.

We just wrapped up three very different training events aimed at developing skills in leading
reflective conversations.  We were in Colorado training folks with Colorado Humanities, we had
our regular open training, and we trained members of the air-quality department of Oregon
DEQ.  These facilitation trainings take place regularly in Oregon both online and at locations
around the state.

Events are regularly added to our calendar and we hope to see you at one in the future.  If
you’re downtown and want to connect, we’d love to welcome you to our office at 610 SW Alder
Street, Suite 1111, Portland, OR 97205.  Thanks, as always, for Oregon Cultural Trust's
partnership and support.

If you’d like to connect with us, please email Jennifer Alkezweeny, program director, at
jennifer@oregohumanities.org

Page 15 of 69

mailto:jennifer@oregonhumanities.org
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/consider-this/consider-this-with-kiese-laymon/
https://oregonhumanities.org/programs/consider-this/consider-this-with-monica-guzman/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/other-projects/dear-stranger/
http://oregonhumanities.org/rll/magazine/
http://oregonhumanities.org/rll/magazine/subscribe/
https://www.oregonhumanities.org/rll/podcast/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/community-conversations/the-conversation-project/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/so-much-together/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/humanity-in-perspective/
http://oregonhumanities.org/programs/services/
http://oregonhumanities.org/events/
mailto:jennifer@oregohumanities.org


The Next 125 capital campaign 
OHS announced The Next 125 capital campaign on December 17, 2022. Focused on 
education, preservation, and access, the funding secured through this campaign will 
support the creation of a new core exhibition on the history of Portland, support and 
resources for teachers statewide with an emphasis on new Ethnic Studies standards and 
rural communities, upgrades to our digital history projects, and enhancements to the 
storage of our priceless collections. The $10million campaign is three-quarters funded, 
including a new $3million endowment to support the salary of the Boyle Family Executive 
Director. Several campaign projects are fully funded already, but we have many 
opportunities for public, corporate, and foundation support of this important work. The 
campaign is scheduled to conclude on OHS’s 125th birthday, in December 2023.  
 
Public Programs 
The 2023 Hatfield Series continued with Nina Totenberg speaking to over 1,200 
attendees at the Schnitzer and hundreds more online on February 2; Mae Ngai, Douglas 
Brinkley, and Peniel Joseph, will present in March, April, and May with tickets available 
both virtually and in-person. Educators are invited to apply to join a book group to 
discuss Joesph’s The Third Reconstruction and attend the program and reception. Our 
all-virtual “Historians and the News” series continued on January 10 with Dr. Jeremi Suri, 
and we will host Dr. Beverly Gage on March 6 to talk about government surveillance and 
free-speech rights. The November 2022 “Human Experience in the Oregon Great Basin” 
public symposium was a big success, with over 100 attendees on the first day about 80 
on the second, including 20 educators from a variety of school districts. We are working 
with tribal knowledge-holders and other presenters to bring the work to publication in a 
future issue of OHQ. In-person programs have resumed in earnest, with a fun evening on 
February 8 with Mel Brown, interviewed about his time growing up in Portland and 
drumming for Motown by Tim DuRoche to a standing room only crowd that included the 
Mayor of Northeast Portland, Mr. Paul Knauls. Keep an eye on the OHS e-digest and 
social media for other upcoming programs, including a book celebration on April 6 with 
Dr. Carmen Thompson, author of The Making of American Whiteness.  
 
Exhibitions 
Currently on display in OHS’s Brooks Julian galleries are Motown: The Sound of Young 
America (on loan from the Grammy Museum), which closes March 26; and Our 
Unfinished Past: The Oregon Historical Society at 125, which closes December 17. Due to 
water damage sustained during the last winter ice storm, two exhibitions, I Am An 
American and The Odyssey of the Historic Jantzen Beach Carousel will be closed as 
OHS repairs the galleries. OHS’s traveling exhibitions, which are booked at venues 

Page 16 of 69

https://www.ohs.org/events/hatfield-historians-forum.cfm
https://www.ohs.org/events/historians-and-the-news-beverly-gage.cfm


across the state, continue to be popular: The Call of Public Service: The Life and Legacy 
of Mark O. Hatfield; Oregon Voices; Many Happy Returns: 50 Years of the Oregon Bottle 
Bill; and Brave in the Attempt: Celebrating 50 Years of Special Olympics Oregon.  
 
Research Library  
OHS’s newly renovated research library is open for walk-in researchers, who are 
encouraged to contact libreference@ohs.org in advance so the reference staff can help 
plan for relevant materials to be available. The library is free and open to everyone! 
Library staff have created research topical guides on “House and Building History” and 
“LGBTQ Community Collections” and will be adding more guides in the future. OHS has 
hired project staff to process the Yasui Brothers Co. collection project, including 
contractors who are reading and recording the substantial portion of the collection that is 
written in pre-WWII Japanese (funded by LSTA). There will be a teacher workshop and 
public presentation on this history in Hood River on April 15, 2023, created in partnership 
with the Japanese American Museum of Oregon. OHS Archivist Jeffrey A. Hayes 
published a piece in the Winter 2022 issue of the Oregon Historical Quarterly about 
recent revisions to the Marcus and Narcissa Whitman collection guide; the project began 
as an effort to migrate existing collection guides into a new database but also provided 
an opportunity to reconsider descriptive practices in collection guides that might exclude 
marginalized people or present information in an incomplete, inaccurate, or harmful way. 
Library staff continue to regularly welcome school groups, who learn about how to 
access the unique materials held in the library collections.  
 
Education 
OHS has scheduled the 2023 Oregon History Day contest to be held in person on April 
29 at Willamette University and expects the national contest to be held near Washington, 
DC, in June. If you are interested in volunteering to judge students’ work, send an email 
to history.day@ohs.org. OHS offers scholarships that ensure contest fees and travel 
expenses do not present barriers for any students participating in the project. The 
elementary-school readers Portland: Our Community and Portland Since Time 
Immemorial are printed and have been delivered to PPS and Beaverton School District. 
We are excited to hear about how they are working in classrooms and hope to work with 
PPS to facilitate translation into other languages in the coming months. OHS education 
staff have offered professional development workshops virtually, in Gresham and in 
eastern Oregon during recent months, with more scheduled for this year. Staff are also 
updating the content of the Traveling Trunks, including by working with tribes and tribal 
members to ensure that Indigenous history in the trunks is accurate, aligns with Tribal 
History / Shared History, and includes concepts and information that tribes prioritize for 

Page 17 of 69

mailto:libreference@ohs.org
https://www.ohs.org/research-and-library/research-guides/index.cfm
mailto:history.day@ohs.org


educational materials. Staff have also begun working with Oregon Black Pioneers to 
develop new educational materials related to Black history in Oregon.   

Page 18 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
�����������
������������ �!"� �#��$ %&'��(�)*'+��,"�-'*�! +'��)*+ ��. !���"� �#��/'�!"

Page 19 of 69



��������	�
	�����	����

���
��

Page 20 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
�����������

����������� �� �!�"##$%&��'��()*()+,�--------------------------------------------------------------.�)/%0*"1/(0)2��345�67898:;7�<=>?5�@A�@B5C89DE�F5B;G=C5�-------------------------H�$%/�I2�67898:;7�J89GB;K?G;89E�@A��@B5C89DE�F5B;G=C5�@BC=9;L=G;89E�M9N�38?B;E:�--------------IO�$%/�P2��67898:;7�Q595RGE�@A�@B5C89DE�F5B;G=C5�-------------------------IS
T1U)(1$V�	WWT)*(X�----------------------------------------------------------------P.

Page 21 of 69



��������	
������������
������������������������
����������������������
Page 22 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
�����������
���������� ��!����"�"#$$%���&%#��"'

�()*+�*,-�./*/012-0�(34*,25*/2(,.�0,4*40-�2,�63(/0)/2,47�630.0382,47�*,-�.9*32,4��304(,�.�9032/*40�)(,/32:;/0�/(��304(,�.�0)(,(<=�2,�2<6(3/*,/�1*=.>�
90�?3./�6*3/�(@�/92.�306(3/�A;*,/2?0.�.(<0�(@�/90�0)(,(<2)�8*+;0��304(,�.�9032/*40�*)/282/20.�*,-�30.(;3)0.�.;66(3/7�/93(;49�/90�0<6+(=<0,/7�2,)(<07�*,-�/(;32.<�.60,-2,4�(@�9032/*40�(34*,25*/2(,.�*,-�/3*-2/2(,.�*)3(..�/90�./*/0>�
90.0�0./2<*/0.�)*6/;30�B;./�*�6*3/�(@�/90�:3(*-03�0)(,(<2)�2<6(3/*,)0�(@��304(,�.�9032/*40C�/90�.0)(,-�6*3/�(@�/92.�306(3/�63(82-0.�2++;./3*/2(,.�(@�/90�<*,=�-2@@030,/�1*=.�9032/*40�0,9*,)0.�/90�0)(,(<2)�10++D:02,4�(@��304(,2*,.>�

�;32,4�EFGH7��032/*40�(34*,25*/2(,.�-301�E�<2++2(,�82.2/(3.�/(�/9023�)(<<;,2/=�@3(<�*3(;,-�/90�./*/07�3042(,7�*,-�*)3(..�/90��,2/0-��/*/0.>��032/*40�/3*-2/2(,.�-301�*,�*--2/2(,*+�G�<2++2(,�60(6+0�/(��304(,�.�)(<<;,2/20.�/(�0I60320,)0�*,-�6*3/2)26*/0�2,��304(,�.�);+/;3*+�9032/*40�080,/.>�	++�,2,0�3042(,.�-301�*/�+0*./�JF7FFF�82.2/(3.��K/(�(34*,25*/2(,.�*,-�080,/.L7�*,-�.2I�-301�<(30�/9*,�GMJ7FFF�0*)9>�

NOPP�QR�ST�TUVWUVXN
���������S���Y�Z���%Y"�"#$$%����[ %Y%'� �� ��!��\��]�%#�]%#��S���%Y ���������&%#��"'��"��Y�U'$%���Y���%̂Y���_#�%��̀%��a% �b�[ %Y%'� �W�!�b%$'�Y���;3�*,*+=.2.�?,-.�/9*/�9032/*40�(34*,25*/2(,.�-230)/+=�.;66(3/0-�G7cFF�0<6+(=00.�*,-�+*:(3�2,)(<0�(@�deM�<2++2(,�2,�EFGH>�
9(.0�(34*,25*/2(,.7�2,�/;3,7�.;66(3/�(/903�:;.2,0..0.�2,�/90�)(<<;,2/=�/93(;49�6;3)9*.0.�(@�+()*+�4((-.�*,-�.0382)0.�*,-�.60,-2,4�@3(<�0<6+(=00.7�*<(;,/2,4�/(�E7GeM�/(/*+�B(:.�2,��304(,�*,-�dMM>M�<2++2(,�2,�.;66(3/0-�+*:(3�2,)(<0>�	+/(40/9037�9032/*40�(34*,25*/2(,.�.;66(3/0-�dGHc>f�<2++2(,�2,�/(/*+�0)(,(<2)�*)/282/=�-;32,4�EFGH>


(;32.<�.;66(3/.�+()*+�0)(,(<20.�:=�.;66(3/2,4�+()*+�80,-(3.7�2,)+;-2,4�.9(6.7�30./*;3*,/.7�*,-�9(/0+.>��,�EFGH7�82.2/(3�.60,-2,4�-230)/+=�.;66(3/0-�HGF�B(:.�2,��304(,�.�+02.;30�*,-�9(.62/*+2/=�.0)/(3>�	@/03�*))(;,/2,4�@(3�/90�*--2/2(,*+�0)(,(<2)�*)/282/=�.;66(3/0-�:=�9(.62/*+2/=�:;.2,0..0.�*,-�1(3g03.7�9032/*40�/(;32.<�.;66(3/0-�*�/(/*+�(@�G7fEJ�B(:.�*,-�dJJ�<2++2(,�2,�+*:(3�2,)(<0�30.;+/2,4�2,�dGeM�<2++2(,�2,�/(/*+�0)(,(<2)�*)/282/=�2,��304(,>�304(,�.��)(,(<2)��(,/32:;/2(,�(@��032/*40��34*,25*/2(,.�*,-�
3*-2/2(,.7�EFGH
hijklmn�opqrikstumvs
wxyz{| }~��|z�~����z���z|���� }~��|z�~�����|z|������~{| ��|z� ���~{| ��|z��(:. G7JHH E7GeM HFH G7fEJ�*:(3��,)(<0 dec>M dMM>M dfG>H dJJ>E*+;0�	--0- dJ�>E dGGe>H deJ>E d�f>H�;/6;/ dHM>J dGHc>e dMM>c dGeM>F

Page 23 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
�����������

���������� ��!����"�����#�$%�&$���'())%*��+��""��"�,-./01,�02/.3./.,4�4506,�/5,�472.08�09:�2;8/;-08�809:4206,�7<�27==;9./.,4�0-7;9:��-,179>�
5,?�6-7:;2,�0�@,08/5�7<�,2797=.2�A,9,B/4�/50/C@5.8,�:.<B2;8/�/7�D;09/.<?C279/-.A;/,�/7��-,179.094��,2797=.2�@,88EA,.91>��-,179�4�5,-./01,�/-0:./.794�A-.91�6,768,�/71,/5,-�.9�450-,:�6;-674,�09:�2,8,A-0/.79>��,-./01,�7-109.F0/.794�2788,2/G�6-,4,-3,G�/-094=./G�09:�.9/,-6-,/��-,179�4�-.25�5.4/7-?�09:�2;8/;-,H�/5,�809:=0-I4G�4/7-.,4G�09:�0-/.<02/4�/50/�5,86�4506,�2;--,9/�09:�<;/;-,�1,9,-0/.794��4,94,�7<�6802,�09:�.:,9/./?>�	9:�5,-./01,�6-71-0=4�8.I,�5.4/7-.2�:7@9/7@94�09:�2,-/.B,:�87208�173,-9=,9/4�5,86�.94/./;/.794�8,3,-01,�B9092.08�09:�7/5,-�-,47;-2,4�/50/�279/-.A;/,�/7�/5,�A,//,-=,9/�7<�6;A8.2�4602,4G�=7-,�,<<,2/.3,8?�A-.91�6,768,�/71,/5,-G�09:�A;.8:�I97@8,:1,�09:�4I.884�/50/�-,025�A,?79:�5,-./01,�0879,>�

JKLL�MN�OP�PQRSQRTJ

Page 24 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
�����������

����������� ��!��"#$�$%&�'()*+)*,�-./�*('.'0)*,�-1*�23)4+�'.�5'3./-+)'.,�'5�(-6)+-47�830-.�(-6)+-4�1*61*,*.+,�6'634-+)'.�,�('44*(+)9*�:.';4*/<*�-./�+-4*.+=�.-+31-4�(-6)+-4�61'9)/*,�-0*.)+)*,�-./�1*,'31(*,=�68>,)(-4�(-6)+-4�-//,�1'-/,?�3+)4)+)*,?�-./�23)4/).<,=�,'()-4�(-6)+-4�),�+8*�).,+)+3+)'.-4�-./�.*+;'1:).<�<43*�+8-+�2)./,�('003.)+)*,�+'<*+8*1@��*1)+-<*�A'1�(34+31-4B�(-6)+-4�*C+*./,�51'0�+8*�'+8*1�5'10,�'5�(-6)+-4?�),�;'9*.�+81'3<8'3+�+8*�5'3./-+)'.?�-./�),�6-,,*/�51'0�<*.*1-+)'.�+'�<*.*1-+)'.@��+�,�5'3./�).�5-)1,?�5*,+)9-4,?�-./�(34+31-4�(*4*21-+)'.,@��+�,�('.9*>*/�).�/-.(*?�,'.<,?�,+'1)*,?�-./�('06*+)+)'.,@��+�,�).�6-1:,?�(*0*+*1)*,?�'.�0-).�,+1**+,?�8),+'1)(�23)4/).<,?�4)21-1>�('44*(+)'.,?�-./�03,*30,@��*1)+-<*�(-6)+-4�('..*(+,�6*'64*�+'�+8*)1�6-,+?�-.)0-+*,�+8*�61*,*.+?�-./�61'9)/*,�(43*,�-2'3+�;8*1*�-�('003.)+>�0->�2*�8*-/*/�).�+8*�53+31*@�
8*��1*<'.��*1)+-<*��'00),,)'.�A+8*��'00),,)'.B�),�(8-1<*/�;)+8�(8-06)'.).<�1*,'31(*,?�1*('<.)+)'.?�-./�53./).<�5'1�61*,*19).<�-./�).+*161*+).<��1*<'.�,�6-,+@��1'0�-.�*('.'0)(�6*1,6*(+)9*?�8*1)+-<*�),�-�6324)(�<''/�-./�,8-1*/�21'-/4>@��1*<'.)-.,�-,(1)2*�-�9-1)*+>�'5�9-43*,�+'�+8*)1�8*1)+-<*D*('.'0)(�9-43*?�6'4)+)(-4�9-43*?�-*,+8*+)(�9-43*?�*/3(-+)'.-4�9-43*?�(34+31-4�9-43*?�-./�,6)1)+3-4�9-43*@��5�,+'1)*,�-1*�5'1<'++*.�'1�8),+'1)(�64-(*,�-./�1*6',)+'1)*,�'5�8),+'1)(�('44*(+)'.,�-1*�).-((*,,)24*?�9-43*�),�4',+@��1*,*19).<�8*1)+-<*�1*E3)1*,�-.�).9*,+0*.+�'5�+)0*�-./�0'.*>@�
8*��'00),,)'.�),�(8-1<*/�;)+8�).,6)1).<�6324)(�-./�61)9-+*�).9*,+0*.+@�
'�-++1-(+�).9*,+0*.+?�+8*�)06'1+-.(*�'5�8*1)+-<*�03,+�2*�(4-1)F*/@�
8-+�,�+8*�6316',*�'5�+8),�1*6'1+@�
8*��'00),,)'.�8)1*/�����'1+8;*,+�+'�-,,*,,�'.*�/'0-).�'5�8*1)+-<*�9-43*�A*('.'0)(�('.+1)23+)'.B?�-./�0'1*�,6*()F(-44>�1*E3*,+*/�*,+)0-+*,�'5�)06-(+,�'5��1*<'.�,�8*1)+-<*G1*4-+*/�'1<-.)H-+)'.,?�,)+*,?�-./�-(+)9)+>�'.�4'(-4�*('.'0)*,@�
8*�F1,+�,*(+)'.�'5�+8),�1*6'1+�/*,(1)2*,�+8*�F./).<,�'5�+8),�I*('.'0)(�('.+1)23+)'.,J�-.-4>,),@�


8*,*�,*('./�,*(+)'.�'5�+8),�1*6'1+�/*+-)4,�+8*�0-.>�'+8*1�;->,�+8-+��1*<'.�,�8*1)+-<*�1*,'31(*,�<*.*1-+*�*('.'0)(�2*.*F+,�+8-+�-1*�.'+�(-6+31*/�).�+8*�0'.*+-1>�+1-.,-(+)'.,�'5�'1<-.)H-+)'.,�-./�9),)+'1,@��3(8�'5�+8),�/)0*.,)'.�'5�*('.'0)(�9-43*�),�/)5F(34+�+'�E3-.+)5>D)5�E3-.+)F*/?�)+�;'34/�4):*4>�2*�0-.>�+)0*,�<1*-+*1�+8-.�+8*�*('.'0)(�('.+1)23+)'.D23+�)+�(-..'+�2*�)<.'1*/@
8*�).+*./*/�-3/)*.(*�5'1�+8),�1*6'1+�),�21'-/�-./�).(43/*,�+8*�3,*1,�'5�8*1)+-<*�,)+*,�-./�-(+)9)+)*,?�9'43.+**1,?�*4*(+*/�'5F()-4,?�-./�23,).*,,?�68)4-.+81'6)(?�.'.61'F+?�-./�'+8*1�('003.)+>�4*-/*1,@
KLMNOPQRMKOLSTU�UVWXWYZV�[\]̂U�W_�Ẁ UaWXbc�TÙZS\aU

�$d��!�e�N�f$���%��eg��e��"#$�$%�#�h�ig�j8)4*�+8*�*('.'0)(�)06-(+�+'+-4,�1*6'1+*/�8*1*�-1*�)061*,,)9*?�+8*>�-1*�-�,32,*+�'5�+8*�5344�*('.'0)(�9-43*�-./�-1*�/'�.'+�(-6+31*�9-43*�).�'+8*1�/'0-).,�A*@<@?�8),+'1)(?�(34+31-4k,>02'4)(?�,6)1)+3-4?�-*,+8*+)(B�;8)(8�61'9)/*�)06'1+-.+�23+�/)5F(34+�+'�E3-.+)5>�,'()-4�-./�*('.'0)(�9-43*�+'��1*<'.�,�('003.)+)*,@�lmn�opqr�qnsrtuv�uw�rmtq�pnxupr�E3-.+)F*,�+8*�yz{|{}~z�z{|��~���~{|��'5�8*1)+-<*�'1<-.)H-+)'.,?�8*1)+-<*�+1-/)+)'.,?�-./�+8*�*55*(+�'5�9),)+'1�,6*./).<@�lmn�qnsuv��qnsrtuv�E3-4)+-+)9*4>�/*,(1)2*,�+8*�yz{|{}~z��y|y����'5�-�21'-/*1�,*+�'5�8*1)+-<*�1*,'31(*,@
Page 25 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
�������������������� !"��#$%�&#��&'()�*+#+�,��-�!./01��2(#��(+3�/�4�(������4'��5

�6789:�;<���:96=>7:��97>?6@>=6A?B�>?C��D:?=B�E
9>C6=6A?BF�6?GH8C:C�6?�	?>HIB6B
JKLMNOKPQR�SNPKTMUVKWOQOU XYLTYZ [M\TO

]̂

_

àbcdefgb̀dah�iJj�jk[l[Xmk�noVpj�[q�[rjs[ltS�Jjrmiosj�duvwxyz{�|vu}~�wv���y�{���v
�6B�9:�A9=�:D>H8>=:C�:GA?A�6G�>G=6D6=I�6?��:96=>7:�GAHH:G=6?7�A97>?6@>=6A?B�E��:96=>7:�A97>?6@>=6A?B��:�7���H6�9>96:B���8B:8�B���6B=A96G>H�B6=:BF�>?C�=9>C6=6A?�:D:?=B�E��:96=>7:�=9>C6=6A?B�F�EB::��6789:�;���>7:�;��H6B=B�=�:��:96=>7:�=9>C6=6A?B��=�:�
:G�?6G>H�	��:?C6��H6B=B�=�:��:96=>7:�A97>?6@>=6A?B�6?GH8C:C�6?�=�:�>?>HIB6BF���9:7A?��:96=>7:��A���9:7A?��>9�B�>?C��:G9:>=6A?��:�>9=�:?=�E����F��>BB6B=B�=�AB:��9:B:9D6?7�>?C�B�>96?7�=�:�B=>=:�B��:96=>7:�>?C��9A�A=:B�=�:�7A>HB�A��=�:��9:7A?��:96=>7:��H>?���:96=>7:�A97>?6@>=6A?B�GAD:9�=�:��8HH�7:A79>��I�A��=�:�B=>=:��9A���?=>96A�B��A89��6D:9B��8H=89>H��:?=:9�>?C��8B:8��=A�	B=A96>�B��>9D6:���A8?=I��>9��>?C��899I��A8?=I�B��6B=A96G>H��AG6:=I�>?C��8B:8��=A��AB:���B��:?=:9��A9��8H=89:���>?I�A97>?6@>=6A?B��AG8B�A?�=�:��:96=>7:�A��>�B�:G6�G�7:A79>��6G�>9:>���6H:�A=�:9B��AG8B�A?�B�:G6>H6@:C�=A�6GB�6?GH8C6?7�BG6:?G:��=:G�?AHA7I��>9=���>H:A?=AHA7I��

>?=�9A�AHA7I��HA776?7��B�A�:��8��6?7��9>?G�6?7��B�6��6?7���B�6?7���9:�7�=6?7���6?6?7���>?�6?7���A8?=>6?::96?7��>69G9>�=��B�>G:G9>�=��9>6H9A>CB���A=A9B�A9=B��>?C��A9B:�C9>�?�=9>?B�A9=>=6A?���A�8H>=6A?��AG8B:C�A97>?6@>=6A?B�H6�:�=�:��8B:8��>=��>9����96?7B���9:7A?��H>G���6A?::9B��=�:��9:7A?��:�6B���8B:8���=�:��AH6B���6�9>9I�	BBAG6>=6A?��>?C��A�?��>I�B��>���>����8?7��>9���9A>C:?�=�:�C6D:9B6=I�A���:9B�:G=6D:�A?�=�:�B=>=:�B��:96=>7:���97>?6@>=6A?B�9>?7:�6?�B6@:��9A��DAH8?=::9�98?�GA��8?6=I��6B=A96G�B6=:B�6?��ABB6H�>?C��6HH��6=I�=A�=�:��A9=H>?C�	9=��8B:8��
�:��A��6BB6A?�>HBA��AB=:9B�>?C�GAA9C6?>=:B��6=�����HA?7B=>?C6?7��:96=>7:�=9>C6=6A?B�6?GH8C6?7�=�:�	B=A96>�B��:7>==>�E;���F���A9=H>?C��AB:��:B=6D>H�E;���F��=�:��:?CH:=A?��A8?C����E;�;�F���:C�A9C�B��:>9��HABBA���:B=6D>H�E;���F���AAC�89?�B��6:B=>��:�6G>?>�E;���F��>?C�=�:��A=�:9�B��>I��A��A��>=�=�:��?6D:9B6=I�A���9:7A?�E;���F��

Page 26 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
�����������

������������ �!"#�#$%&%'($�)*+,#�%-�%.#/%&01�"#.(!*/#�
����23456784�97:8;37<�7=2>29?=�?9@:=48�:882=?:47<�6?45��37A2>�8�573?4:A7�8?478�:><�7B7>48�<;3?>A�CDEF�4532;A5�462�G7H�=5:>>7I8J�EK�457�7=2>29?=�L224@3?>4�2L�CMC�573?4:A7�23A:>?N:4?2>8�L23�65?=5�37=23<8�6737�:B:?I:OI7�:><�CK�457�B?8?4:4?2>�:><�42;3?89�?9@:=48�37I:47<�42�45287�23A:>?N:4?2>8�:><�457�CP�573?4:A7Q43:<?4?2>�7B7>48��R877��?A;37�CKS��2>=7@4;:IIHT� 97:8;3?>A� 23A:>?N:4?2>:I� 7=2>29?=�L224@3?>48�?8�843:?A54L236:3<S�
57�7>4?4?78T�9284IH�@3?B:47�>2>U@32V4�7>4?4?78T�7:3>�37B7>;7�L329�@3?B:47�<2>:4?2>8T�@5?I:>4532@?=�A3:>48T�@;OI?=�:@@32@3?:4?2>8T�:><�7>43H�23�:<9?88?2>8�=5:3A78S�
57�37B7>;7�?8�;87<�42�5?37�84:LL�:><�@;3=5:87�9:473?:I8�:><�8;@@I?78S��3A:>?N:4?2>8�6?45�:>H�:@@37=?:OI7�:92;>4�2L�37B7>;7�37@234�457?3�L224@3?>48�42�457��S�S��>473>:I��7B7>;7��73B?=7S

�224@3?>48T�?8?48T�
2;3?89T��:><��@?II2B738WXYZ[\]̂_�̀ab̂bc]a�dYe[X�bf��\X_b̂gZ��hX\]iY_X��\_Ŷ]jYi]b̂Z�k���\Yl]i]b̂Ye�mai]n]i]XZ

�?A;37�CJ���7I:4?2>85?@�o74677>��73?4:A7��3A:>?N:4?2>8�:><��73?4:A7�?8?423Q
2;3?89��9@:=48

àb̂bc]a��b̂i\]p[i]b̂Z�]̂�qrqr�Ŷl�qrqs�Ŷl���d��tsu��ebZ[\XZ
57�?>L239:4?2>�?>�45?8�37@234�6:8�7B:I;:47<�;8?>A�CDEF�<:4:�<;7�42�:>29:I?78�?>�CDCD�L329�457�����UEF�@:><79?=S��:>H�573?4:A7�23A:>?N:4?2>8�:><�43:<?4?2>8�6737�479@23:3?IH�=I287<�23�@284@2>7<�<;3?>A�CDCD�:><�CDCES��;7�42�457�=I28;378T�37<;=7<�=:@:=?4HT�:><�I2673�B?8?4:4?2>T�67�:>4?=?@:47�45:4�457�7=2>29?=�=2>43?O;4?2>8�2L��37A2>�8�573?4:A7�23A:>?N:4?2>8�:><�43:<?4?2>8�L2II267<�:�8?9?I:3�437><�:8�457�O32:<73�528@?4:I?4H�:><�42;3?89�87=423S��7=7>4�<:4:�L23�CDCC�8;AA784�B?8?4:4?2>�:><�7v@7><?4;378�:37�374;3>?>A�42�5?8423?=:I�I7B7I8T�452;A5�:�4?A54�I:O23�9:3G74T�?>w:4?2>T�:><�?>=29@I747�<:4:�=29@I?=:47�45287�784?9:478S��78@?47�45:4�;>=734:?>4HT�67�7v@7=4�45:4�23A:>?N:4?2>:I�:><�B?8?423�8@7><?>A�6?II�374;3>�42�5?8423?=:I�I7B7I8�?>�457�>7v4�L76�H7:38S

Page 27 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

������� ����!�"#$�$%&'&()%�*+,-$�&.�&/$0&'12�#$/)"+0$��34567�89���:;<�=:;:>3=?��:=3:=5@A56B@�B@57C�:D��763AB47��3A7C�B;E��F7;AC

GHIJKLM�NL�OP�QHJJLR�SPJTPU�VWXXWY�Z[[L[[\]̂�T_L�̀POIL[�Ha��bIOTIJPO�cLJ\TP̂LU�Q_L�dLTTe�bH][LJfPT\H]�QJI[TU�gH[�Z]̂LOL[R�bZU

hijklminop�qoprsj�=:;F7t?�7>u:Et?�:6�CA3>5@BA7�B�67@BA3:;�v3Aw�:6�67B=A3:;�A:�Aw7�xBCAyzrpkrmop{j|}~lpin� qoprsj� u53@E�=5@A56B@�BD�@3BA3:;�3;�Aw7�x67C7;A�B;E�=B;�u7�x:@3A3=B@?�7Aw;3=?�:6�67@BA7E�A:�:Aw76�>7B;C�:D�@3F3;4�A:47Aw76��7y4y?�v:6�<�:6�=6BDA<67@BA7E�y�lniop�qoprsj�7;Bu@7�B;E�DB=3@3ABA7�C:=3B@�=:;;7=A3:;C�B;E�;7Av:6�Cy��imikrop�qoprsj�B67�3;A63;C3=�A:�C:>7�w763AB47�C3A7C�BCC:=3BA7E�v3Aw�:64B;3�7E�67@343:;�u5A�=B;�B@C:�7;=:>xBCC��C7=5@B6�7�x7637;=7C�:D�v:;E76�B;E�Bv7�x6:F:�7E�ut�w763AB47�x@B=7Cy�sjk�skin�qoprs�7�A7;EC�D6:>�Aw7�F3C5B@��5B@3A37C�:D�w763AB47�x@B=7C�B;E�B=A3F3A37Cy


w7�:64B;3�BA3:;�C�x67C7;=7�3;�B�=:>>5;3At?�A:47Aw76�v3Aw�3AC�C5xx:6A7E�B=A3F3A37C�:6�7F7;AC?�C7A�B�=wB3;�:D�7=:;:>3=�B=A3F3At�3;A:�>:A3:;�C:>7�7BC3@t��5B;A3�7E�B;E�:Aw76�@7CC�C:y��w7;�B�>5C75>?�@3u6B6t?�:6�w3CA:63=B@�C3A7�:x7;C�3AC�E::6C�A:�F3C3A:6C�C7F76B@�Aw3;4C�wBxx7;y��:=B@�=:>>5;3At�>7>u76C�CA:x�ut�A:�@7B6;?�67�7=A?�B;E�5C7�67C:56=7Cy��;�C:>7�=BC7C?�C3A7C�=wB647�BE>3CC3:;?�u5A�>B;t�C3A7C�B67�D677y�	EE3A3:;B@@t?�>:CA�w763AB47�C3A7C�v3@@�BAA6B=A�F3C3A:6C�D6:>�:5AC3E7�Aw7�=:>>5;3At?�B;E�3;�Aw:C7�=BC7C?�Aw7t�u63;4�;7v�E:@@B6C�D6:>�:5AC3E7�Aw7�@:=B@�7=:;:>ty�
w:C7�;:;<@:=B@�F3C3A:6C�>Bt�B@C:�Cx7;E�>:;7t�3;�46:=76t�CA:67C?�=BD7C?�67CAB56B;AC?�x5uC?�B;E�>:A7@Cy�	;E�wBF3;4�C76F7E�Aw7�F3C3A:6C?�Aw:C7�46:=76t�CA:67C?�=BD7C?�67CAB56B;AC?�x5uC?�B;E�>:A7@C�Aw7;�67<CA:=��Aw736�C5xx@37Cy�:=B@�B;E�;:;<@:=B@�F3C3A:6C�B@>:CA�B@vBtC�47A�>:67�AwB;�Aw7t�xBt�D:6��7y4y?�Aw7�BE>3CC3:;�3C����B;E�Aw7t�v:5@E�wBF7�wBxx3@t�xB3E����y�
w7�E3DD767;=7�u7Av77;�B;�B=A5B@�=wB647�B;E�B�F3C3A:6�C�v3@@3;4;7CC�A:�xBt�3C�=B@@7E�=:;C5>76�C56x@5Cy��3;B@@t?�F3C3A:6C�B;E�;:;<F3C3A:6C�B@C:�7;�:t�:Aw76?�;:;<>:;7A3�7E�FB@57�:D�w763AB47�C3A7Cy��;7�AwBA��AC�3;�Aw7�7=:;:>3=�E:>B3;�3C�7�3CA7;=7�FB@57?�:6�Aw7�B>:5;A�:D�>:;7t�C:>7:;7�v:5@E�u7�v3@@3;4�A:�xBt�A:��77x�B�C3A7�:6�7F7;A�3;�x@B=7�������������������������������������� ���y��:6�7�B>x@7?�C:>7��674:;3B;C�v:5@E�u7�v3@@3;4�A:�xBt�B;�B;;5B@�C5uC=63xA3:;�A:�7;C567�Aw7�=:;A3;5BA3:;�:D�Aw7�3=:;3=��7;E@7A:;��:5;E��x�B;E��Bxxt��B;t:;��B47B;A�7F7;�3D�Aw7t�E3E;�A�B;A3=3xBA7�B�A63x�A:��BCA76;��674:;y�B;t�:Aw76�C:=3:=5@A56B@�FB@57C�:D�w763AB47�C3A7�DB@@�:5AC3E7�Aw7�7=:;:>3=�E:>B3;�B;E�B67�wB6E76�A:��5B;A3Dt?�3;=@5E3;4�w3CA:63=?�=5@A56B@¡Ct>u:@3=?�C:=3B@?�Cx363A5B@?�B;E�B7CAw7A3=�FB@57C��C77��34567�8�y
Page 28 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

������������ �!"#�#$%&%'($�)*+,#�%-�%.#/%&01�"#.(!*/#�
23454673��6893:��;<6754=4>?�@ABACD@�DCEF@GH�FIJ�@KFHHDLJM�NO�GPJDI�IJKFGDABHPDE�GA�GPJ�F@GDQDGO�DB�RSJHGDABT��AI�GPDH�FBFKOHDHU�GPJ�GPIJJ�GOEJH�AV�DCEF@GH�FIJ�MJLBJM�GA�@FEGSIJ�GPJ�J@ABACD@�F@GDQDGO�AV�PJIDGFWJ�AIWFBDXFGDABH�FBM�GIFMDGDABH�FH�VAKKAYHZ[\]̂_̀�\abc_̀d�FIJ�GPJ�HEJBMDBWU�eANHU�FBM�JCEKAOCJBG�MDIJ@GKO�HSEEAIGJM�NO��IJWAB�H�PJIDGFWJ�AIWFBDXFGDABH�FBM�GIFMDGDABH�FBM�@FB�NJ�@ABHDMJIJM�GPJ�fghijk�VAI�GPJ�CAMJKTlmn\]̂_̀�\abc_̀d�FIJ�GPJ�J@ABACD@�JVVJ@GH�HSEEAIGJM�NO�NSHDBJHH�ESI@PFHJH�VIAC�PJIDGFWJ�AIWFBDXFGDABH�FBM�GIFMDGDABHT�
PJHJ�DBMDIJ@G�JVVJ@GH�FIJ�HACJGDCJH�FKHA�IJVJIIJM�GA�FH�kihhop�qrsfg�tutqjkTlmnv_̂n�\abc_̀d�FIJ�GPJ�@PFBWJH�DB�IJWDABFK�PASHJPAKM�HEJBMDBW�@FSHJM�NO�@PFBWJH�DB�PASHJPAKM�DB@ACJT�
PJHJ�FIJ�GOED@FKKO�IJVJIIJM�GA�FH�qwgkixhjfwg�tutqjkTyv̀bv̀�IJEIJHJBGH�GPJ�QFKSJ�AV�WAAMH�FBM�HJIQD@JH�EIAMS@JM�FBM�DH�GPJ�NIAFMJHG�CJFHSIJ�AV�J@ABACD@�F@GDQDGOTzc{|]�\m_|a �̂@ABHDHGH�AV�JCEKAOJJ�@ACEJBHFGDAB�FBM�EIAEIDJGFIO�DB@ACJ�FBM�DH�F�HSNHJG�AV�ASGESGT}|{dU�F@@AIMDBW�GA�����	��H�CJGPAMAKAWOU�FIJ�CJFHSIJM�DB�GJICH�AV�VSKK~OJFI~JRSDQFKJBGH������T�	�eAN�@FB�NJ�VSKK~GDCJ�AI�EFIG~GDCJU�HJFHABFKU�AI�EJICFBJBGT

����AIGPYJHG�SHJM�GPIJJ��JO�MFGF�HASI@JH�GA�CJFHSIJ�J@ABACD@�F@GDQDGO�FHHA@DFGJM�YDGP��IJWAB�H�PJIDGFWJ�AIWFBDXFGDABH�FBM�JQJBGHZ��l����|]a�����dv{a\dd\|md��]|a��̂]\̀c�̂�|]�cm\�c̀\|md��
PJ��AIC�����HSNCDHHDABHU�YPJB�F@@JHHDNKJU�EIAQDMJM�DBVAICFGDAB�AB�IJQJBSJHU�VSBMDBW�HASI@JHU�JCEKAOCJBG�@ASBGHU�FBM�QAKSBGJJIDHC�FG�PJIDGFWJ�AIWFBDXFGDABHT��HFNKJ��AIC�����DBVAICFGDAB�YFH�FQFDKFNKJ�VAI�����AIWFBDXFGDABH�AI����EJI@JBG�AV�GPJ�FKK�GPJ�AIWFBDXFGDABH�DB�GPJ��IJWAB��JIDGFWJ�MFGFNFHJT��IWFBDXFGDABH��J�@KSMJM�VIAC�GPJ��AIC�����FBFKOHDH�YJIJ�JDGPJI�QJIO�HCFKK��DTJTU�KJHH�GPFB����U����DB�FBBSFK�IJQJBSJ�U�PFM�F�HCFKKJI�PJIDGFWJ�VSB@GDAB�JCNJMMJM�DB�F�KFIWJ�AIWFBDXFGDAB��JTWTU�GPJ��BDWPG��DNIFIO�FG�GPJ��BDQJIHDGO�AV��IJWAB�U�YJIJ�MSEKD@FGDQJ��JTWTU�HACJ�AIWFBDXFGDABH�LKJ�CSKGDEKJ�IJEAIGH�SBMJI�MDVVJI�BFCJH�U�AI�@ASKM�BAG�NJ�DMJBGDLJM�AB�GPJ������HDGJT���\d\̀|]�_|vm̀d��]|a� �̀̂�b]|b]\̂̀c]����c_̂]�c\�d|�̀�c]̂�b�c̀�|]a��
PJ��KF@JITFD�MFGF�EIAQDMJM�QDHDGAI�@ASBGH�FG�CSHJSCHU�KDNIFIDJHU�PDHGAID@�HDGJHU�FBM�JQJBGHT�
PJ��KF@JITFD�QDHDGH�MFGF�FIJ�WJBJIFGJM�VIAC�@JKKEPABJ�F@GDQDGO�FBM�SHJ�HGFGJ~AV~FIG�GJ@PBAKAWO�NSG�FIJ�AV�KDCDGJM�SHJ�DV�F�PJIDGFWJ�HDGJ�DH�@A~KA@FGJM�YDGP�AGPJI�VSB@GDABH�DB�F�CSKGD~HGAIO�NSDKMDBW��DTJTU�PJIDGFWJ�F@GDQDGO�YDGPDB�GPJ�NSDKMDBW�@FBBAG�NJ�MDHJBGFBWKJM�VIAC�AGPJI�F@GDQDGO�T�	KHAU�GPJ�MFGF�HJG�DH�NSDKG�VIAC��T�T�EPABJ�F@GDQDGO�FBM�YDKK�CDHH�DBGJIBFGDABFK�QDHDGAIHT���\d\̀|]�db̂mn\m��̂ d̀\ac̀ d̂��]|a��|]̀�cmn�{cd̂n�[̂ cm��vm�cm�cmn� dd|_\c̀ d̂���QJIO�OJFIU�GPJ�LIC�JHGDCFGJM�GPJ�J@ABACD@�DCEF@G�AV�GASIDHC�DB��IJWAB�FBM�@FK@SKFGJH�QDHDGAI�HEJBMDBW�NO�@ACCAMDGO�ESI@PFHJM��JTWTU�F@@ACCAMFGDABHU�VAAM�HJIQD@JHU�IJGFDK�HFKJH�U�FBM�FQJIFWJ�EJI�EJIHAB�BDWPG�J�EJBMDGSIJH�NO�F@@ACCAMFGDAB�GOEJT

¡SFBGDVODBW�GPJ��@ABACD@�	@GDQDGO��	HHA@DFGJM�YDGP��JIDGFWJ��DGJH�FBM��QJBGH 
PJHJ�MFGF�PJKE�@PFIF@GJIDXJ�GPJ�J@ABACD@�F@GDQDGO�MDIJ@GKO�GDJM�GA�GPJ�PJIDGFWJ�AIWFBDXFGDABH¢JQJBGH�FBM�GPJ�QDHDGAI�F@GDQDGO�GPJO�WJBJIFGJT�£SG�GPFG�MDIJ@G�F@GDQDGO�J�GJBMH�AI�¤CSKGDEKDJH¥�FH�PJIDGFWJ�AIWFBDXFGDABH�ESI@PFHJ�CFGJIDFKH�FBM�HSEEKDJH�VAI�GPJDI�AEJIFGDABHU�FBM�JCEKAOJJH�FBM�QDHDGAIH�HEJBM�CABJO�JKHJYPJIJ�DB�GPJ�KA@FK�J@ABACO�FBM�HSEEAIG�FMMDGDABFK�eANHT�

Page 29 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

������� �!�"#��$��%�#� ����&#�!� �$��
'(��)(*+,��()-./*(�
)/0-.-+,�0(1-*,/.-+,�)(2+*,-3(1�(4(,.1�5+)(�.'/,�67�8(/)1�+90�.'/.�)(:)(1(,.�;'/.�-.�5(/,1�.+�<(�/,��)(*+,-/,=��(1-*,/.(0�(4(,.1�/)(�>,-?>(�9+2/998@�)(*-+,/998@�/,0�1./.(;-0(=��,�1'+).@�.'(1(�(4(,.1�/00�.+�.'(�9-4/<-9-.8�/,0�-0(,.-.8�+A�.'(�1./.(=�)(*+,��./.(��/-)@��/9(5�BCD6DEF/12+��+>,.8��/-)�/,0��+0(+@�
8*'�/99(8�BCDD6E�-,,��+>,.8��-+,(()��-2,-2@�G)+;,14-99(�BCDDHE	1.+)-/��(*/../�BCDIJE�9/2K/5/1��+>,.8��/-)@��/,<8�BCI7HE�+).9/,0��+1(��(1.-4/9�BCI7HE�(</,+,��.)/;<())8��(1.-4/9�BCI7IE�(,09(.+,��+>,0L�:�BCIC7E�/::8��/,8+,��/*(/,.�/,0�F-90�F(1.��'+;�BCICME�+).9/,0��-01>55()��(1.-4/9�BCINDE�+>).'�+A�O>98��(.��/)/0(@�G(,0�BCIPNEQ9/5/.'�G/1-,��+./.+��(1.-4/9@��())-99�BCIPHEG)++K-,*1��/)<+)�	3/9(/��(1.-4/9�BCIPIE

�+).9/,0��)((K��(1.-4/9�BCI6NE�(/)�G9+11+5��(1.-4/9@��(0A+)0�BCI6JE�/2-R2��-.8��+)8��/81�BCI6IEG+'(5-/��-,-,*��/81@��+../*(��)+4(�BCI6IE�2/,0-,/4-/,��(1.-4/9@�O>,2.-+,��-.8�BCIMCE�/,,+,�G(/2'��/,02/1.9(��+,.(1.�BCIMJEF++0<>),��-(1./��(S-2/,/�BCIMJE	1.+)-/��2/,0-,/4-/,��-01>55()��(1.-4/9�BCIMDE�,-4()1-.8�+A��)(*+,��+.'()�1��/8��+;;+;�BCIMIE�)(*+,��+>,.)8��/-)�BCIMIE�)(/.��)(*+,��.(/5L�:@�G)++K1�BCIH7E
'(��')-1.5/1��'-:1��/)/0(�BCI6JE	>514-99(��+),��(1.-4/9�BCIMDETUVWXYZ�[\\]̂Z__̀`̀ aUWYbUcabUd_U]We_fg_hibŶ_gYWj\ibYklŶjbci\jUĉaî]m

no&p"�qr&n"os�tuv�vwxyxz{w�|}~�v�x��x�v�xy���uv�{t}�v�

Page 30 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

�������� ! "#��� !$%#&'$# !(� )� %�* !+(�,�%#$-*�� %.*-!#/-$# !(�-!0�$ '%#("12�3425267�28969:;8�89674;<=7;965�7>49=?>�7>2�7@9�:=7=ABBC�2D8B=5;E2BC�A42A5F�7>2�28969:;8�G99734;67�9G�>24;7A?2�94?A6;HA7;965�A6I�7>2�;:3A875�9G�7>2�E;5;794�5326I;6?�7>A7�;5�A5598;A72I�@;7>�>24;7A?2�5;725�A6I�2E2675JK�LMNOPQRM�SNRQTOUQPOSTV�WONMXPYZ�V[\\SNPMW�]SNM�P̂QT�_̀abb�cSdV�QTW�RMTMNQPMW�TMQNYZ�e_bb�]OYYOST�OT�MXSTS]OX�S[P\[Pf�
>2��94:�ggh5�5>9@2I�4239472I�A<9=7�ijkhh�2:3B9C225�A6I�BA<94�;689:2�9G�lmn�:;BB;96�I;4287BC�;6�>24;7A?2�94?A6;HA7;965�;6�ohigJ�p=7�7>2�94?A6;HA7;965�<9=?>7�:A724;AB5�A6I�5=33B;25j�A6I�7>2;4�2:3B9C225�53267�7>2;4�3AC8>28q5�;6�7>2�28969:CJ�
Aq2�7>952�5=33BC�8>A;6�A6I�;6I=82I�8965=:37;96�;:3A875�;679�A889=67j�A6I�7>2�r9<�A6I�BA<94�;689:2�797AB5�4;52�79�ojimn�A6I�lnnJn�:;BB;96j�4253287;E2BCJ�
>A7�797AB�BA<94j�;65;I2�A6I�9=75;I2�7>2�>24;7A?2�94?A6;HA7;965�@A5�A5598;A72I�@;7>�ligkJs�:;BB;96�;6�28969:;8�9=73=7�t
A<B2�iuJK�vSTQPOSTV̀�RNQTPV̀�QTW�OTwxOTW�XSTPNOd[POSTV�[TWMNyNSPM�ez{�]OYYOST�OT�SNRQTOUQPOSTQY�QXPO|OPZf��=4;6?�ohigj��42?96�5�>24;7A?2�94?A6;HA7;965�A6I�74=575�4282;E2I�l}k�:;BB;96�;6�42E26=2�G49:�;6~q;6I�

89674;<=7;965j�?4A675j�A6I�I96A7;965j�@>;8>�A889=672I�G94�}n�3248267�9G�4239472I�42E26=25�7>A7�C2A4J�K��SY[TPMMNV�XSTPNOd[PMW�e�fz�]OYYOST�OTwxOTW�YQdSN�QTW��bb̀bbb�̂S[NV�S��PO]M�PS�̂MNOPQRM�SNRQTOUQPOSTV�OT�_ba�f��=4�A6ABC5;5�G9=6I�7>A7�62A4BC�kjhhh�9B=672245�@>9�?;E2�7>2;4�7;:2�79�5=33947��42?96�5�>24;7A?2�94?A6;HA7;965�3BAC�A�84;7;8AB�49B2�;6��42?96�5�>24;7A?2�A87;E;7;25�A6I�265=4;6?�7>2�94?A6;HA7;965�42:A;6�E;A<B2J��=4;6?�ohigj��42?96�5�>24;7A?2�94?A6;HA7;965�4239472I�kjhhh�E9B=672245�A84955�7>2�57A72�@>9�I96A72I�7>2;4�7;:2�79�7>252�94?A6;HA7;965J��97�ABB�267;7;25�74A8q�7>2�6=:<24�9G�>9=45�I96A72Ij�<=7�A�523A4A72�A6ABC5;5�<C�7>2��42?96��24;7A?2��9::;55;96�257;:A72I�7>A7�E9B=672245�89674;<=72I�9E24�shhjhhh�>9=45�9G�7;:2�EAB=2I�A7�AB:957�l�J}�:;BB;96�;6�;6~q;6I�BA<94�5=33947Ji

A<B2�iF��8969:;8��9674;<=7;965�G94��24;7A?2��4?A6;HA7;965j�ohig
�����������(��������*���������������������������������$������������ ������,�������� ������������+�������������-�� ������,����������  �����������������(��¡¢£-�(�  ��¢�%�¤�����!��¤��¥��#����������¦������¡�(�����'��§�����¢�
�̈��� � ¤��¢ ��� ��©���#��� � ������-¡¡�¡  ��¤���;4287 ij}gg lmkjno}j�kg l}�joiij}hs lgnj}i�jioo�6I;4287�;:3A875�t5=33BC�8>A;6�2GG2875u osn limj}h�jghk lonjsk�jng} lm�jg�gjoih�6I=82I�;:3A875�t8965=:37;96�8>A6?25u sii likjm}sjhni logjognjsin lmgj�msj�so�ª«¬ ®̄�°± ²±±̄³́ ±̄́ °µ ²��°̄́ ±±̄³�µ ²�¶³̄·µ�̄�³°

�8969:;8��99734;67�9G��24;7A?2���4?A6;HA7;965

Page 31 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

��������� !"!#$ � !"%&$'(%$!")�!*��!&�+!",)�-�&$%.+��!&+."$/.%$!")�."0�%!(&$)#�

1�23456783�9487:5;7659:<�7:=�3>3:6<�76647?63=�:374@A�6B433�C5@@59:�>5<5694<�5:�DEFGH��IJKLMNI�OKLIO�MPQ�IRIPLO�STPRIU�LVIKJ�WXYY�JMPNI�TW�OTSKTSXYLXJMY�RMYXIO�ZVIP�[IT[YI�OVTZ�X[�LT�I\[IJKIPSI]�KPLIJMSL]�TJ�[MJLKSK[MLI�KP�LVÎ _�	PQ�KP�LVI�UIMJ�[JISIQKPN�LVI�NYT̀MY�[MPQÎ KS�K̂YYKTPO�TW�[IT[YI�QKQ_��IJKLMNI�TJNMPKaMLKTPO�VTOLIQ�MŶTOL�LZT�̂ KYYKTP�RKOKLTJO�ZVKYI�LJMQKLKTPMY�IRIPLO�MQQIQ�MPTLVIJ�̂KYYKTP_�
VI��TJLYMPQ�JINKTPbVT̂ I�LT�����]�LVI��TJLYMPQ�	JL��XOIX̂ ]�LVI��JINTP��KOLTJKSMY��TSKILUbQJIZ�LVI�VKNVIOL�PX̂ ÌJ�TW�TJNMPKaMLKTPMY�RKOKLO]�̀XL�LVI�cKYYM̂ ILLI�MYYIU�YIQ�KP�RKOKLO�LT�IRIPLO�ZKLV�QJMZO�YKdI�LVI��JINTP��LMLI��MKJ]�LVI��JINTP��TXPLJU��MKJ]��ÌMPTP�O��LJMZ̀ IJJU��IOLKRMY]�MPQ�cTTQ̀XJP�O��KIOLM��I\KSMPM_�	YY�PKPI�JINKTPO�QJIZ�ML�YIMOL�ef]fff�RKOKLTJO�gLT�TJNMPKaMLKTPO�MPQ�IRIPLOh]�MPQ�OK\�QJIZ�̂TJI�LVMP�ije]fff�IMSV_

�KNXJI�kl���KOLJK̀XLKTP�TW�TYXPLIIJO�̀U��INKTP �KNXJI�el��	PPXMY��IJKLMNI��JNMPKaMLKTP�KOKLO�g�KYYKTPOh]��mfijnmfmi�
opqrstu�vwxyprz{|t}z�POXJ[JKOKPNYU]�RKOKLO�LT�VIJKLMNI�TJNMPKaMLKTPO�QISYKPIQ�KP�mfmf�MPQ�[MJLKMYYU�JÌTXPQIQ�KP�mfmi_��W�LVI�JIOL�TW�LVI�ISTPT̂ U�KO�M�NXKQI]�TJNMPKaMLKTPO�MPQ�IRIPLO�OVTXYQ�OII�MQQKLKTPMY�JISTRIJU�KP�mfmm�MPQ�mfm~_1�23456783�>5<5694<�<�3:6��F���C5@@59:�5:�DEFGH�
VI�PIMJYU�~�̂KYYKTP�RKOKLTJO�KP�mfi��O[IPL�M̀TXL��m��[IJ�RKOKLbTJ��jj_��̂KYYKTP_�
VI��TJLYMPQ�JINKTP�YIQ�KP�RKOKLTJ�O[IPQKPN�̀XL�ZMO�WTYYTZIQ�SYTOIYU�̀U�LVI��TJLV��TMOL_�
VI��YMSIJ_MK�QMLM�OXNNIOLIQ�M�VKNVIJ�OVMJI�TW�LVI�RKOKLO�ZIJI�TRIJPKNVL]�ZVKSV�KPSJIMOIQ�LVI�MRIJMNI�[IJ�RKOKL�I\[IPQKLXJI�LT��ee_

KOKLTJ�
TXJKÔ��̂[MSLOopqrstu�vwxyprz{|t}zmef�TJ��IOOi]ffinm]fff meineffm]ffi�TJ��TJI efini]fff��	!�����������������������'��&�����
��

�

��������������� ¡¢���£�¤�¥¦�¦�¡£���¢§§¡£��̈�� ¡�¡©¦ �� �¦¥¦�ª�«¢�¤�©¡£��¦©§¡£�����ª¤����ª�¬�¦��̈���«����£�¢�̈�£����̈¦�¬�¡�����®¡£�̈����ª��¦¥��¦�¤���£��¬����� ¡��� �¦¡����¡�§�� ������ª� �����¡©�¤���̈�«¢¦������������� ¡©©¢�¦�ª̄1�23456783�69°45<C�<°��9463=�C943�6B7:�F±�EE�²9³<±�?9:645³°63=�5:��́ �́C5@@59:�5:�@7³94�5:?9C3H��[IPQKPN�Ù�LTXJKOLO�OX[[TJLIQ�YTSMY�ISTPT̂ KIO�̀U�IMLKPN�KP�YTSMY�JIOLMXJMPLO]�[XJSVMOKPN�WJT̂ �YTSMY�OVT[O]�MPQ�KP�
Page 32 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

������������ �!"!�#$%��&"!�'��(�$'�$��)*�����#$+�,-./


")&��0���
"1���2�$���3�#4�
#��� 4��(�$'�$�

")&��,���5#$#4�5��4("5! �#3�����!"���� �!"!�#$��(�$'�$�+�,-./

6789:;<=;:>?<@ABCDEFCGHIJ:<9;7K=;:>?<@AGCHGFCLEF
M?N9O:;<=;:>?<@ABCLLICGFF
PQRSTUVQRQJ?7897KW:>X?<@ADDCIEGCDLY

Z?;9K7<[W:>X?<@ADICYGECHLL\9]�̂??[_̀:?;>:@ALCELLCDaFbcdefgRShgfQi GB

a

jklmnop�qrstkmuvwoxu
jklmnop�qrstkmuvwoxu

jklmnop�qrstkmuvwoxu

 #4��5" � � (�$'�$��"�$��y!��$�"�&#5"&�y#!�&z��$�,-./+�2� �!#�� (�$'�$��'���5!&*� �((#�!�'�")#�!�/.-�{#) |5#$5�$!�"!�'��$�!y��&�� ����"$'�y# (�!"&�!*� �5!#�z�
y���$'�5�'�"$'��$'���5!��33�5! �} �((&*�5y"�$ �"$'�5#$ �4(!�#$�5y"$�� ~� �((#�!�'�"$#!y���./0�"$'�,,0�{#) +��� (�5!�2�&*|!#�)��$��!y��!#!"&�!#�.+0,�z�
y# ��{#) ������"  #5�"!�'���!y�����4�&&�#$��$�&")#���$5#4��"$'��.���4�&&�#$��$��5#$#4�5�#�!(�!z���������������������������������������������������������������������� 5"&�5#$!��)�!�#$ �"���$#!��5#$#4�5�5#$!��)�!�#$ +�)�!�!y��"$"&* � �#3!�$��#�!#��!y��z�
y��{� !�'� 5��)�'�!#��� 4��4("5! �y"2��!"1��4(&�5"!�#$ z
�"!��#�* ��2�$�� �#5�"&��$ ��"$5��
"1 ���+0�.
"1�#$���#'�5!�#$�"$'��4(#�! �.+/��+��/�#�(#�"!����#�! �
"1 �.�.+.,���� #$"&�
"1 �/��+��,�?97K�M979:�7<[��?�7K��7� AFCLEGCBEG i¡g¢e�£¤¡Q Ti¡fc¤iQRe ¥g¦cd� R¢ciQ §gfUQ�̈SSQS ©Ue¡Ue����5!� (�$'�$� �)*�2� �!#� /-/ �0.+���+-0. ���+.�.+0�, ���+���+����$'���5!��4("5! �} �((&*�5y"�$��33�5! ~ ./0 �..+�,�+��� �.�+�..+��0 �00+�-�+�-0�$'�5�'�}5#$ �4(!�#$�5y"$�� ~ ,,0 �..+���+�,� �,-+/0/+�0� �0�+�0-+��,�?97K L]FDa AaaCLHLCFFa AGFCEDDCBYL ALBHCIDFCDFL

ZªW��L@�T«©¬© «�«©¬£® P̄ £ ©¬h�©°��©®T±©¬²h�³T® £̈±T�©®±̈ ¬ ́ £̈ ©¬h�̈¬µ�£©̄ ® h�
�,+�--+---�#����  ��+---+---¶�.-+---+---�,-+---+---�#���#�� �.-+---+---¶�,-+---+---�,+�--+---¶��+---+---µ·dQ¢e�h¡QRS·RV�¦¤�§·̧·ecḑ

Page 33 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

�������� ! "#��$�!�%#&'� %� (�) !*'�+�(#&,)�
-.�/0.12345�5.67238�/0.5.875�7-.�.6383926�638702:47238�3;��0.<38�5�-.027=<.�30<=82>=72385�=8?�70=?272385@�7-034<-�7-.�A.85�3;�?3AA=05�5/.87�=8?�62064A=7.?�7-034<-�7-.�.63839BC�D47�=5�837.?@��0.<38�5�-.027=<.�30<=82>=72385�=8?�70=?272385�/03?46.�.6383926�1=A4.�28�53�9=8B�37-.0�E=B5C�F4=872;B28<�7-25�1=A4.�25�=8�.G.0625.�7-=7�25�E.AA�:.B38?�7-.�563/.�3;�7-25�0.5.=06-�.;;307C�D47�2<83028<�7-.5.�9=8B�37-.0�.6383926�:.8.H75�E34A?�A.=1.�347�=8�29/307=87�/=07�3;�7-.�5730B�=8?�0.=538�E-B��0.<382=85�5-34A?�6387284.�73�281.57�28�/037.6728<�=8?�.8<=<28<�E27-�340�-.027=<.�.8?3E9.87C
I.�9.=540.?�7-.�.6383926�;337/0287�3;�-.027=<.�30<=82>=72385�=8?�-.027=<.�70=?272385�:.6=45.�E-.8�/.3/A.�12527�7-.5.�/A=6.5�7-.B�5/.8?�938.B@�E-26-�25�=�9.=540=:A.�347639.C�D47�7-.�=93487�539.38.�5/.8?5�38�-.027=<.�=6721272.5�0./0.5.875�38AB�/=07�3;�7-.20�.6383926�1=A4.C��.0.�=0.�539.�3;�7-.�37-.0�.6383926�:.8.H75�7-=7�=025.�;039�-.027=<.�=6721272.5JK�I-.8�/.3/A.�/406-=5.�=�726L.7�;30�=?9255238�;30�MN�:47�E34A?�-=1.�:..8�E2AA28<�73�5/.8?�MO@�7-.�?2;;.0.86.�0.P.675�QRSTUVWX�TUXYZUT�[\ZUWC��7�25�837�/26L.?�4/�28�7-.�70=85=67238�275.A;�:47�25�=�9.=540.�3;�7-.�;4AA�1=A4.�3;�7-.�.G/.02.86.�73�7-.�1252730C�	??.?�4/�=60355�=AA�12527305@�7-25�=93487�25�52>.=:A.�=8?�634A?�:.�A=0<.0�7-=8�7-.�=674=A�5/.8?28<].5/.62=AAB�:.6=45.�3;7.8�=?9255238�73�-.027=<.�945.495@�A2:0=02.5@�=8?�539.�70=?272385�25�59=AA�639/=0.?�73�37-.0�7B/.5�3;�.87.07=289.87�30�;0..̂:B�?38=7238C

_̀abacd̀�efghi�aj�kildmfni��olnfbdpfmdabq�fbr��lfrdmdabq�sam��tfumhlir�vw�_̀abacd̀�tabmldvhmdabq�

Page 34 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

��������� !"!#$ �%�"�&$'(�!&�!)�*!"+(�,�)$'-*�.��/01234/�5043617321568�369�2039121568�:0164�;/5;</�254/2=/0�16�8=30/9�;>0;58/�369�19/6212?@�8/0A164�38�168212>21563<�369�6/2B50C164�D4<>/E�2=32�:1698�F5GG>6121/8�254/2=/0�HC65B6�38�IJKLMN�KMOLPMNQR�
=18�D4<>/E�18�91STF><2�25�G/38>0/�16�/F565G1F�2/0G8@�:>2�5>0�F5GG>6121/8�B5><9�652�:/�2=/�83G/�B12=5>2�12R.��5G/�;/5;</�G3?�=3A/�;3021F1;32/9�16�3�203912156�50�A1812/9�36�504361732156�56F/�369�30/�B1<<164��25�;3?�S50�S>2>0/�A1812508�25�=3A/�3�81G1<30�/U;/01/6F/R��0�G3?:/�2=/?�0/39�3:5>2�2=/�203912156�369�</306/9�85G/2=164�6/BR��0�2=/?�A/�6/A/0�://6�:>2�B18=�25�;3021F1;32/�85G/93?R�
=/8/�85>0F/8�5S�A3<>/�0/;0/8/62�JOPLJV�WMNXYZ�Y[LIPYVKY�WMNXYZ�MV\�]ŶXYIP�WMNXY�369�30/�5S2/6�/U;0/881568�5S�IOL_LPXMN�WMNXYZ�̀LIPJ_LK�WMNXYZ�Y\XKMPLJV�WMNXYZ�MV\�IJKLMN�WMNXY�2=32�;/5;</�=3A/�H8//�2=/�:5U�56�;34/�abQR��5G/21G/8�2=/8/�A3<>/8�G521A32/�;/5;</�25�8;/69�0/3<�G56/?c;/0=3;8�38�3�95632156�25�2=/�504361732156c50�>8/�2=/10�21G/�25�A5<>62//0R�d>2�5S2/6�2=18�A3<>/�18�>6F3;2>0/9�16�G56/230?�2/0G8R.��5G/21G/8�36�504361732156�50�203912156�8�;=?81F3<�388/2�;059>F/8�A3<>/�S50�2=/�F5GG>612?�910/F2<?R��182501F�820>F2>0/8�369�5;/6�8;3F/8�2=32�=5>8/�5043617321568�369�2039121568c369�G3?�652�/U182�:>2�S50�2=/�82/B3098=1;�5S�2=/�504361732156c;059>F/�/F565G1F�A3<>/�S50�2=/�8>005>69164�F5GG>612?R�
=/?�G3?�/</A32/�6/30:?�O_JOY_Pe�WMNXYI@�369�4/6/032/�MYIP̀YPLK�WMNXY�2=32�F56201:>2/�25�8/68/�5S�;<3F/Rf=1</�2=/8/�A3<>/8�30/�F=3<</64164�H16�85G/�F38/8�1G;5881:</�50�163;;05;0132/c8//�168/2Q�25�G/38>0/�16�/F565G1F�2/0G8@�2=/?�30/�</4121G32/�85>0F/8�5S�/F565G1F�A3<>/�2=32�<1C/<?�S30�5>2B/14=�2=/�/F565G1F�A3<>/�G/38>0/9�16�2=/�/F565G1F�3F21A12?�2=32�2=/8/�5043617321568�369�2039121568�;059>F/R�

ghijhklim�nopkpjhlim�lqr���kpsli�tukpjlvu�wlihux
039121563<�G56/230?�G/38>0/8�5S�/F565G1F�1G;50236F/�F36�:/�163;;05;0132/�25�9/8F01:/�2=/�A3<>/�5S�F><2>03<@�8;1012>3<@�50�201:3<�A3<>/8R��56/21732156�1G;<1/8�8>:8212>23:1<12?�H1R/R@�2=32�G56/230?�F5G;/6832156�32�85G/�</A/<�F36�G3C/�B=5</�2=/�<588�5S�2=/�8/0A1F/@�:/F3>8/�/y>1A3</62�8/0A1F/8�G3?�:/�;>0F=38/9QR��50�/U3G;</@�30F=3/5<541F3<�A3<>/8@�8>F=�38�:>013<�405>698�369�F/0/G5613<�812/8@�30/�656z0/6/B3:</�369�=3A/�65�8>:8212>2/8R��1A/6�2=32�G36?@�1S�652�3<<@�F><2>03<�A3<>/8�S50�201:/8�30/�9/T6/9�:?�;<3F/@�203912156@�369�F56216>12?�5S�>8/�369�;03F21F/@�65�3<2/06321A/�0/85>0F/�F5><9�;05A19/�3�8>STF1/62�8>:8212>2/��S50�2=/�0/85>0F/8�16�y>/82156R�	<2=5>4=�2=/?�30/�652�3;;05;0132/�25�G56/217/�16�/F565G1F�2/0G8@��F><2>03<�369�=/01234/�A3<>/8�5S�201:/8�30/�5S�81461TF362�1G;50236F/R

Page 35 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

��������� ��!���"#�$%"�&��'�(�)*+,-./+01�23�4.-52*�6207-.8/�9:1�;2<<2<�=>?@?A

BC��DEEDE�FGHC�DIJ�DK�JBC��LMNGL��CODFGJNDL�	FJ�DK�PQRST�EBCL�JBC��U�U��DVCWLHCLJ�FDHXCOOCM��GJNVC�	HCWNFGLY�JD�OCGVC�WCYCWVGJNDLY�GLM�JWGMNJNDLGO�OGLMY�KDW�FNJNCYU�ZBNOC�HGL[�DK�JBC�XWDHNYCY�JBC��U�U��DVCWLHCLJ�HGMC�NL�C\FBGL]C�KDW�WCODFGJNDL�̂_D̀YT�JWGNLNL]T�HDVNL]�C\XCLYCYa�MNM�LDJ�HGJCWNGONbCT�JBNY�HN]WGJNDL�OCM�HGL[��GJNVC�	HCWNFGLYcMNYXOGFCM�KWDH�JBCNW�JWGMNJNDLGO�OGLMY�GFWDYY�JBC�FDILJW[cJD�YCCd�CGFB�DJBCW�DIJU�
BNY�JDDd�JBC�KDWH�DK�NLJCWFIOJIWGO�C\FBGL]C�JBWDI]B�JBC��DEEDET�EBNFB�NL�JIWL�OCM�JD�NLJCWJWǸGO�DW]GLNbNL]�JBWDI]BDIJ�JBC�PQSeYU�
BC��DJBCW�Y��G[��DEEDET�BCOM�GJ�JBC��LNVCWYNJ[�DK��WC]DLT�NY��WC]DL�Y�DOMCYJ�MDFIHCLJCM��DEEDEU��J�KCGJIWCY�FDLLCFJNDLT�MGLFNL]T�WCFD]LNJNDL�DK�GFFDHXONYBHCLJYT�BDLDWNL]�HDJBCWYT�GLM�YBGWNL]�DK�KDDM�JBWDI]B�G��GOHDL�fGdCU
BC�LGJIWC�DK�JBC�CVCLJT�EBNFB�̀WNL]Y�JWǸGO�HCH̀ CWY�GLM�LDLgJWǸGO�HCH̀ CWY�JD]CJBCW�KWDH�GFWDYY�JBC�FDILJW[T�NY�GYYDFNGJCM�ENJB�VNYNJGJNDL�GLM�WCOGJCM�YXCLMNL]U�
BNY�CFDLDHNF�KDDJXWNLJT�BDECVCWT�NY�G�WCOGJNVCO[�YHGOO�NLMNFGJNDL�DK�JBC�CFDLDHNF�VGOIC�JBC�CVCLJ�FWCGJCYU�
BC��DEEDE�NY�G�XCWKCFJ�C\GHXOC�DK�/2h+:i�h:j+0:i�NL�GFJNDLk�̀INOMNL]�GLM�WCNLKDWFNL]�FDLLCFJNDLY�C̀JECCL�XCDXOCT�[CGW�GKJCW�[CGWT�ENJB�JGL]ǸOC�DIJFDHCY�JBGJ�NHXWDVC�lIGONJ[�DK�ONKCU�


BC�HDMCWL��DEEDE�NL�JBC�PQReY�OCM�JD�̀WDGMCW�DW]GLNbNL]�GHDL]�JWǸCY�GLM�HDVCHCLJ�JDEGWM�]WCGJCW�WCFD]LNJNDL�GLM�_IYJNFC�KDW��GJNVC�	HCWNFGLYU�
BC��DJBCW�Y��G[��DEEDE�NY�DXCL�JD�CVCW[DLC�GLM�YBDEFGYCY�JBC�BCWNJG]C�GLM�FIOJIWC�DK�HGL[��GJNVC�	HCWNFGLYT�NLFOIMNL]�JBC�XCDXOC�EBD�DWN]NLGOO[�NLBG̀NJCM�JBC�OGLM�EC�JDMG[�dLDE�GY��WC]DLU�
BC�OGLM�JBC��DEEDE�JGdCY�XOGFC�DL�GJ�JBC��LNVCWYNJ[�DK��WC]DL�NY�JBC�JWGMNJNDLGO�NLMN]CLDIY�BDHCOGLM�DK�JBC�mGOGXI[G�XCDXOCU��J�GOYD�WCNLKDWFCY�hni0n.:i�,:in-�JBWDI]B�NLJCW]CLCWGJNDLGO�GLM�NLJCWFIOJIWGO�JWGLYHNYYNDL�DK�JWGMNJNDLYT�EBNFB�NY�NLYJWIHCLJGO�NL�XWCYCWVNL]�BCWNJG]C�KDW�KIJIWC�]CLCWGJNDLYU

opq �r(�stuvuwxt�ysvszx{|�uz�u}s~uv�|��s}x{�~s

Page 36 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

��������� �!"#$ �%$��� �&'����#(�)�
�*+,��-./,0��+12+,31��/42/,�5����6�1*732/8�-4��423,-*�5�319/+,��*+42:6�*;;/,0�3�<,*38�,34=/�*;�/./420�348�>,*=,3??-4=�2932�-42/,0/720�@-29��,/=*4�0�9/,-23=/�-4�?34:�@3:0A�
9/������02/@3,80�9-02*,:�<:�>,/0/,.-4=B�093,-4=�348�7/1/<,32-4=�8-./,0/�02*,-/0B�7+12+,31�9/,-23=/B�348�3,2-;3720A�
9/�?+0/+?�9*180�?*,/�2934�3�7/42+,:��*;�9-02*,:�348�*;;/,0�*>>*,2+4-2-/0�;*,�;,//�?+0/+?�38?-00-*4�0*�311�?/?</,0�*;�29/�7*??+4-2:�734�/C>/,-/47/�29/0/�3,2-;3720AD-29�3�<+0:�/./420�079/8+1/�2932�-471+8/0�29/32/,�>/,;*,?347/0B�,*232-4=�9/,-23=/�3,2�348�?+0/+?�/C9-<-20B�348�7*??+4-2:�/8+732-*4�348�372-.-2:�71300/0B�?34:�>/*>1/�.-0-2������/379�:/3,A��+79�*;�29/-,�>,*=,3??-4=�930�3�7*02�*;�38?-00-*4�*,�>3,2-7->32-*4A�
9/0/�?/30+,3<1/�/7*4*?-7�2,340372-*40�3,/�,/E/72/8�-4�29/�3431:0-0A

FGHI�J)�KLMNMOPL�QKNKRPST�MR�MUKVMNWT�XKUPSYVK
�*@/./,B�29/0/�+48/,/02-?32/������0�;+11�/7*4*?-7�.31+/A�
9/�@-8/�,34=/�*;�>,*=,3??-4=�>,*.-8/0�Z[\]̂_̀ab̂c�d̂c\Z�2*�?34:�>/*>1/B�@9*�?3:�7*?/�;*,�3��+?<3�71300�*,�1-2/,37:�4-=92�348�1/3./�@-29�3�<,*38/,�+48/,02348-4=�*;�29/�9-02*,:�*;�?-4-4=�-4��302/,4��,/=*4�*,�1-;/�-4�29/�D*,18�D3,�����/1*732-*4�	+29*,-2:�0� �-4-8*e3� �42/,4?/42� �3?>A� 
9/�������310*�/47*+,3=/0�7*??+4-2:�>3,2-7->32-*4�-4�29/�7,/32-./�/C>,/00-*4�*;��,/=*4�9/,-23=/B�;*,�/C3?>1/�<:�0>*40*,-4=�3�7+12+,31�9/,-23=/�0*4=f@,-2-4=�7*42/02A�g:�0/,.-4=�30�34�372-./�0>37/�2932�>,/0/,./0�9/,-23=/�348�0+>>*,20�29/�7*??+4-2:�29,*+=9�372-./�/4=3=/?/42B�-2�7,/32/0�ha]̀̂ c�]̂ì_̂cj�
9-0�k=1+/l�-0�8-;m7+12�2*�?/30+,/�<+2�09*@0�+>�@9/4/./,�29/�7*??+4-2:�7*?/0�2*=/29/,�-4�7*??*4�>+,>*0/A

Page 37 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

��������� !"!#$ �%�"�&$'(�!&�!)�*!"+(�,�)$'-*�./001234/5�678954:934/5�;</3048=3��
�>?@AB�CDEFG��HAB??>I�J�C�K�HI�L?LHFEM?L�MA�N>?I?>OHB@�EBL�N>?I?BMHB@�MP?�FABM>HQRMHABI�AS�	S>HFEB�	T?>HFEBI�MA��>?@AB�I�P?>HME@?U��MI�VA>G�WHDDRTHBEM?I�MP?�I?DLATXMADL�PHIMA>Y�AS�CDEFG��>?@ABHEBI�VPA�PEO?�SEF?L�PE>LIPHN�EBL�LHIF>HTHBEMHAB�MA�TEG?�E�DHS?�HB��>?@AB�AO?>�MP?�NEIM�Z[[�Y?E>IU\�']̂_�̀abcd̂ecf̂̀d�g̀h_�d̀f�]cih�c�j]k_̂lcm�]̀nh�̀jhd�f̀�f]h�jopm̂lq�_̀�̂f_�̂njclf�̂_�d̀f�ahrhlfhg�ĝahlfmk�̂d�î_̂fcf̂̀d�cdg�]hâfcbh�_jhdĝdb�h_f̂ncfh_�ahj̀afhg�hm_hs]hah�̂d�f]̂_�ah_hcal]t��AV?O?>u�HM�PEI�QRHDM�E�OH>MRED�N>?I?BF?�VHMP�ABDHB?�?vPHQHMI�EBL�F>?EM?I�EBL�DAEBI�NPYIHFED�?vPHQHMI�MA�AMP?>�TRI?RTI�MP>AR@PARM��>?@ABu�VPHFP�E>?�FENMR>?L�HB�MP?�?FABATHF�FABM>HQRMHAB�?IMHTEM?IU��A>�?vETND?u�HMI�?vPHQHMI�PEO?�Q??B�S?EMR>?L�EM�MP?��BHO?>IHMY�AS��>?@AB��RI?RT�AS��EMR>ED�EBL��RDMR>ED��HIMA>Y��>?@AB��HIMA>HFED��AFH?MYu�EBL��HMMAFG��EBIHABU��B�ELLHMHAB�MA�F>?EMHB@�HMI�AVB�N>A@>ETTHB@u�HM�VA>GI�VHMP�AMP?>�TRI?RTI�MP>AR@PARM�MP?��EFHwF��A>MPV?IM�MA�HBFA>NA>EM?�MP?�IMA>H?I�AS�	S>HFEB�	T?>HFEBI�HBMA�B?V�EBL�?vHIMHB@�?vPHQHMHABIU��M�FADDEQA>EM?L�VHMP�MP?��HMY�AS��ED?T�MA�NDEF?�E�IMAB?�TE>G?>�EM�MP?��HAB??>��?T?M?>Y�

�B�ELLHMHAB�MA�P?>HME@?�A>@EBHxEMHABI�EBL�P?>HME@?��M>ELHMHABI�MPEM�E>?�MP?�SAFRI�AS�MPHI�>?I?E>FP�?SSA>Mu�MP?��>?@AB��?>HME@?�IRNNA>MI�P?>HME@?�HB�AMP?>�VEYIu�HBFDRLHB@�>?FA@BHxHB@�EBL�N>AM?FMHB@�PHIMA>HF�F?T?M?>H?I�EBL�PHIMA>HF�y90z1�/{�63=17�|1743981�678954:934/5}�95~�|1743981��71}17�934/5��{{/73}�45�6718/5

PABA>HB@�	S>HFEB�	T?>HFEBI�HBM?>B?L�HB�TE>G?L�EBL�RBTE>G?L�@>EO?IU��C��EDIA�N>AOHL?I�PHIMA>HF�FABIRDMEMHAB�MA�@AO?>BT?BM�E@?BFH?I�EBL�>R>ED�PHIMA>HFED�IAFH?MH?Iu�HBFDRLHB@�FABIRDMEBFY�MA�AMP?>�TRI?RTI�DHG?�MP?��HBB��ARBMY��HIMA>HFED��RI?RT�EBL��BL�AS�MP?�
>EHD��RI?RT
P>AR@P�HMI�>?I?E>FPu�IMA>YM?DDHB@u�EBL�ELOAFEFY�ABDHB?�EBL�HB�FADDEQA>EMHAB�VHMP�AMP?>�P?>HME@?�A>@EBHxEMHABI��>?@AB�CDEFG��HAB??>I�>?EFP?I�TEBY�N?AND?�EBL�@?B?>EM?I�?FABATHF�OEDR?�V?DD�Q?YABL�EBY�HTNEFMI�T?EIR>?L�MP>AR@P�IN?BLHB@�EBL�OHIHMEMHABU��HMP�ABDHB?�FABM?BM�L?DHO?>Yu�HMI�>?EFP�HI�NAM?BMHEDDY�SE>�@>?EM?>�MPEB�MP>AR@P�NPYIHFED�?vPHQHMI�EDAB?U��D?OEMHB@�IMA>H?I�AS��>?@AB�I�D?II?>XGBAVB�P?>HME@?�?vNEBLI�EVE>?B?II�MA�HB?�RHMH?I�IMHDD�N>?I?BM�MALEYU�
PHI�PEI�������������������VHMP�MP?�NAM?BMHED�SA>�TEGHB@�T?EBHB@SRD�HTNEFM�HB�MP?�DHO?I�AS�FR>>?BM�EBL�SRMR>?��>?@ABHEBIU��EHB��M>??MIU��M�EDIA�P?DNI�FATTRBHMH?I�?BPEBF?�EBL�@?B?>EM?�OEDR?�S>AT�MP?H>�P?>HME@?�>?IAR>F?I�MP>AR@P�N>A@>ETI�DHG?�MP?��>?@AB��?>HME@?�	DDX�ME>��ATTRBHMY��EBL�MP?��?>MHw?L��AFED��AO?>BT?BM��>A@>ETU�
P?�TENI�Q?DAV�IPAV�PAV�VHL?IN>?EL�MP?I?�L?IH@BEMHABI�E>?��EBL�>?�?FM�MP?�IH@BHwFEBM�HBO?IMT?BM��>?@AB�I�FATTRBHMH?I�TEG?�HB�PHIMA>HF�N>?I?>OEMHAB�EBL�F?D?Q>EMHB@�FRDMR>ED�P?>HME@?U
Page 38 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

��������� !"!#$ �%�"�&$'(�!&�!)�*!"+(�,�)$'-*��./012.3��454042.4/
6424�724�1842�7�0619/7:;�6./012.3�3454042.4/<�0670�=24/4284�064�54512>�7:;�=6>/.37?�?4@73>�1A�=248.19/�@4:4270.1:/�1A��24@1:.7:/B��9:;24;/�1A�064/4�724�=9C?.3?>�7334//.C?4B�
64/4�3454042.4/�724�.5=1207:0�24312;/�1A��24@1:�/�642.07@4�7:;�31:02.C904�431:15.3�87?94�.:�10642�D7>/�7/�D4??B��454042.4/�724�=2104304;�1=4:�/=734/�0670�1A04:�A9:30.1:�?.E4�=72E/F�064>�=218.;4�GHIJKLM�NGOPIQ�RISRIGLKTJ�NGOPIU�7:;�.:�/154�37/4/�NGOPGVOI�WGVKLGL�XTR�YKOZOKXI�0670�10642D./4�D19?;�:10�C4�787.?7C?4B
[\]\̂\_̀�abĉdefĝ��h!"��&$)�i$!"��)� �#�'�)jki!)'h-"l�:4�1A��24@1:�/�1?;42�6./012.3�3454042.4/�?13704;�.:�064�64720�1A��120?7:;U�06./�/.04�/�@2784/�724�01D424;�1842�C>�7�A124/0�37:1=>�7:;�.:0420D.:4;�D.06�027.?/�7:;�=706/B��0�./�1:4�1A�mn�6./012.3�3454042.4/�0670��4021�57:7@4/�7321//��9?0:1576��19:0>B�
64/4�/.04/�=210430�064�6./012.3�7:;�/7324;�87?94/�1A�064�@2784/�D.06.:�064.2�C19:;72.4/U�C90�064.2�A9??�87?94�01�064�=41=?4�1A��24@1:�.:3?9;4/�064�4:0.24�?7:;/37=4F�7/�7�027.?�:40D12EU�7:�72C124095U�7�=72EU�7:;�7�392.1/.0>B��0�./�D.;4?>�7334//.C?4�01�0619/7:;/�1A�=41=?4�.:�064�/92219:;.:@�:4.@6C12611;/�7?1:4�7:;�8./.04;�C>�0619/7:;/�5124�4736�>472�A12�2432470.1:U�9:;42/07:;.:@�6./012>U�7:;�4o=42.4:3.:@�7�=720�1A��24@1:�/�642.07@4B�p-q�qrs�tuqsvwsxqtyu�yz�qrs�{|wq�|u}�{vswsuqk�~y�+����u}��vy�sw�yz�q|���qvsswk�s{tx��ts�w�yz�vt�sv��|��s~wk���tsq�xyvusvw�|�t}wq�|��s|�qtz���xtq~���|xr�xs�sqsv~�y�svw�tqw�y�u�wsuws�yz�{�|xs�|u}�{s|xs�����#sqvy�,twqyvtx� s�sqsvtsw�.@924��B��./02.C90.1:�1A��0642��42.07@4��4/19234/�.:��24@1:

���,twqyvtx�xs�sqsvtsw���wq�tux��}s�qrs���vt|��yz�|q��s|wq�yus�{svwyu��ry�}ts}����~s|vw��szyvs�qrs�x�vvsuq�}|qs�qy��s�s�t�t��s�zyv�}swt�u|qtyu�
Page 39 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

���������� ! "#��$�!�%#&'� %� (�) !*'�+�(#&,)��-./0123-4��2/1��35--3.
6-��5-071��2/1��35--3�8570529�2../.3.��5-071�:799;1/3/-.�</36�36-/5�47<137<1�5-=/32>/?23/71�214�85-.-5=23/71�-@@753.A��3�/.�B2.-4�71�2�123/712>�974->�214�288572:6�C�2/1��35--3�	9-5/:2D�3623�857=/4-.�3-:61/:2>�2../.321:-E�352/1/10E�214�2::-..�37�05213.�37�@;14�86F./:2>�/9857=-9-13.A�
6/.�75021/?23/712>�/1@52.35;:3;5-�214�/1=-.39-13.�:232>F?-�-:7179/:�4-=->789-13�/1��5-071�.�:799;1/3/-.E�<6/:6�8574;:-.�2�.35-29�7@�-:7179/:�B-1-G3.�@75�F-25.�37�:79-A�	�.3;4F�7@�H2.6/10371�.��2/1��35--3��570529�47:;9-13-4�/3.�-:7179/:�/982:3.�2:57..�-/063�:23-075/-.�3623�4-971.3523-�36-�873-13/2>�5-2:6�7@�6/.375/:�92/1�.35--3�/1=-.39-13.A�	9710�36-�>250-5�7@�36-�/982:3.�/4-13/G-4�<-5-�@-.3/=2>.�214�-=-13.�214�B;./1-..�23352:3/71�214�5-3-13/71A�
6-�>77I�214�@-->�7@�6/.375/:�92/1�.35--3.�857=/4-�2�.-33/10�3623�7@3-1�23352:3.�8-78>-�214�-1:7;520-.�36-9�37�.32F�>710-5E�;>3/923->F�.8-14/10�975-�971-FAJ;213/@F/10�36-�@;>>�5210-�7@�-:7179/:�/982:3.�7@��5-071�.��2/1��35--3��570529�<2.�B-F714�36-�.:78-�7@�36/.��5-.-25:6�-@@753E�67<-=-5E�23�36-�3/9-�7@�36/.�5-8753�2�.-82523-�212>F./.�/.�B-/10�:714;:3-4�37�K;213/@F�36-�-:7179/:�/982:3�7@��5-071�.��2/1��35--3�8570529A��21F�4-./0123-4�6-5/320-�3524/3/71.�K;213/G-4�6-5-�C.--�36-�>/.3�71�820-�LMD�32I-�8>2:-�</36/1�2�4-./0123-4�92/1�.35--3�47<137<1�214�/>>;.3523-�71-�7@�36-�975-�.;B.3213/2>�<2F.�3623��-./0123-4��2/1��35--3.�0-1-523-�=2>;-A
6-.-�/982:3.�5-N-:3�36-�K;213/G2B>-�-:7179/:�/982:3.�7@��2/1��35--3�/1=-.39-13.�CB736�4/5-:3�G121:/2>�/1=-.39-13�214�3-:61/:2>�.;88753DA��2/1��35--3.�2>.7�:7135/B;3-�37�214�5-/1@75:-�OPQRST�QSURVST�BF�:5-23/10�.82:-.�@75�8-78>-�37�:711-:3E�B;/>4/10�:799;1/3F�/1.3/3;3/71.E�214�8573-:3/10�SWOVXWVRQ�SYZ�XW[RVS\W�]ST̂WO�3623�4-G1-�.-1.-�7@�8>2:-�214�:799;1/3F�/4-13/3FA
Page 40 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

��������� !"!#$ �%�"�&$'(�!&�!)�*!"+(�,�)$'-*�

�./01123�45�60/2�57�89:�:;5/56.;�;5/8<.=>8.5/4�0/?�=:/:@84�?:4;<.=:?�./�89.4�<:A5<8�B5>1?�/58�90AA:/�B.895>8�;5110=5<08.5/4�0/?�A0<8/:<49.A4�8908�1:C:<0D:�9:<.80D:�A<:4:<C08.5/�04�0�;566>/.82E�
9:��<:D5/��:<.80D:�	11F�80<��566>/.82�?:4.D/08.5/�.4�0C0.10=1:�85�;566>/.8.:4�8908�:/D0D:�./�0�B.?:�4A:;8<>6�57�
	11F�80<��566>/.8.:4�0/?�:<8.@:?��5;01��5C:</6:/84

GHIJ�KLMNNL�KOPLQIRSL��,$('!)$ �T!U"'!U"-('!)$-VWX� YZ[\]̂_� \̀ab[\ab� ĉZ[\]̂d� `̂Z[]̂d[��YZZ\d̂_[̂\b�eỲ c̀ Yf�?:4;<.=:4�.84:17�04�0�/5/A<5@8�5<D0/.g08.5/�B.89�0�6.44.5/�85�hA<:4:<C:�0/?�0?C0/;:�9.485<.;�?5B/85B/�	485<.0�4�;>18><:�0/?�;90<0;8:<�89<5>D9�./4A.<:?�A0<8/:<49.A4�0/?�;566>/.82�:/D0D:6:/8Ei�
9:�	���	�95484�4:C:<01�:C:/84�89<5>D95>8�89:�2:0<�B.89./�89:�60./�48<::8�0<:03�B9.;9�D:/:<08:�:;5/56.;�0;8.C.82�75<�15;01�=>4./:44:4E��5<�:j06A1:3�89:�65/8912�k/?��08><?02�	<8�l01m�.4�0/�:C:/8�./�B9.;9�A:5A1:�;0/�?.4;5C:<�15;01�0<8�04�89:2�75115B�015/D�B.89�0�60A�A<5C.?:?�=2�	���	3�B9.;9�5>81./:4�0�A089�85�A0<8.;.A08./D�15;01�0<8�D011:<.:4�0/?�=5>8.n>:4�./�89:�0<:0E�
9:<:�.4�0145�0�B::m12��>/?02��0<m:8�8908�./;1>?:4�15;01�A<5?>;:3�0<84�o�;<07843�755?3�6>4.;3�0/?�65<:E�
9:�	���	�0145�95484�4:045/01�0/?�0//>01�:C:/84E��/�89:�70113�89:.<��m85=:<7:48�:C:/8�9:1A4�=<./D�89:�;566>/.82�85D:89:<�?5B/85B/�0/?�?<0B�088:/8.5/�85�15;01�=<:B./D�;56A0/.:4E��:0<��0115B::/3�89:��5B/85B/�
<.;mF5<�
<:08./D�:C:/8�0115B4�706.1.:4�

85�?.4;5C:<�15;01�495A43�04�A0<8.;.A08./D�=>4./:44:4�A044�5>8�;0/?2�85�;9.1?<:/�./�;548>6:E��/�89:�B./8:<3�89:<:�0<:�4:C:<01�951.?02�:C:/84�75;>4:?�5/�15;01�495AA./D3�951.?02�1.D98./D3�0/?�=>4./:44�B./?5B�?:;5<08.5/�;5/8:484E��/�0??.8.5/01�85�<:;><<./D�:C:/843�89:�	���	�0145�95484�7>/?<0.4./D�:C:/843�4>;9�04�89:�p0/:�q0</:4��:C>:3�B9.;9�?<0B4�5/�0/?�;:1:=<08:4�	485<.0�4�;515<7>1�9.485<2�./�0/�:C:/./D�A0<82�0/?�7049.5/�495BE�
9:�	���	�./C:484�A<5;::?4�7<56�7>/?<0.4:<4�./�89:�=:88:<6:/8�57�?5B/85B/E��048�./C:486:/84�./;1>?:�4.D/4�8908�9.D91.D98�89:��08.5/01��:D.48:<��.485<.;��.48<.;8�0/?�60m:�?5B/85B/�65<:�A:?:48<.0/�0/?�85><.48�7<.:/?12E�VWX�YZ[\]̂_�rXs_[[_�.4�0�?:4.D/08:?�9:<.80D:�8<0?.8.5/�8908�80m:4�A10;:�B.89./�0/?�.4�:/90/;:?�=2�89:�	485<.0��.485<.;��5B/85B/�60./�48<::8�0<:0E�
9<5>D9�A0<0?:43�7:48.C0143�40.1=508�<0;:43�7>/�<>/43�A.;/.;43�0/?�65<:3�89:�	485<.0��:D0880�7>1@114�.84�D501�57�;:1:=<08./D��5<89B:48�60<.8.6:�9.485<2�0/?�7>8><:E�	485<.0�4�9.485<.;�?5B/85B/�.4�0/�:j06A1:�57�9.485<.;�A<:4:<C08.5/3�;>18><01�9:<.80D:�0;8.C.8.:43�0/?�9:<.80D:�85><.46�;<:08./D�42/:<D.:4�8908�088<0;8�:;5/56.;�0;8.C.82�0/?�./;<:04:�89:�C01>:�57�A:5A1:�4�:jA:<.:/;:��<:D5/�4�9:<.80D:E;>18><01�9:<.80D:�0;8.C.8.:4E�
9:�A<5D<06�D5014�0<:�85�tuvwxyt�;566>/.8.:4�0=5>8�89:�60/2�?.77:<:/8�B024�89:2�;0/�./C:48�./�;>18><01�9:<.80D:3�7<56�A<:4:<C08.5/�57�9.485<.;�=>.1?./D4�85�;56A.108.5/�57�5<01�9.485<.:4z�t{w|v}x~t�A0<8.;.A08.5/�0/?�15;01�;55<?./08.5/�./�;>18><01�9:<.80D:z�0/?�}tw|~{��t�0/?�./;:/8.C.g:�:775<84�89<5>D9�57@;.01�?:4.D/08.5/E�
9:��:<8.@:?��5;01��5C:</6:/8�A<5D<06�.4�0�7:?:<01�A<5D<06�0?6./.48:<:?�=2�89:��<:D5/��808:��.485<.;��<:4:<C08.5/��7@;:�8908�4>AA5<84�15;01�D5C:</6:/84�./�9.485<.;�A<:4:<C08.5/E����4�90C:�.6A1:6:/8:?�5<?./0/;:4�
Page 41 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

��������� !"!#$ �%�"�&$'(�!&�!)�*!"+(�,�)$'-*�./�0112344�564./267�82343290.6/:;�34.0<=64531�0�564./267�82343290.6/:�7/>>6446/:;�0?2331�./�3:@/273�4.0.3��564./267�82343290.6/:�=0A4;�0:1�802.67680.3�6:�.53�=64.6:?�82/7344�@/2��0.6/:0=��3?64.32�/@��64./267��=0734B��:73�732.6C31;�=/70=�?/932:>3:.4�5093�077344�./�C:0:760=�0:1�.375:670=�4D88/2.�./�07.693=E�@076=6.0.3�=/70=�802.67680.6/:�6:�564./267�82343290.6/:B� FGHIJ�

53��23?/:��326.0?3�	==K�.02��/>>D:6.E�82/?20>�53=84�7/>>D:6.634�>0L3�.53�>/4.�/@�.5362�564./267�234/D2734�.52/D?5�31D70.6/:�0</D.�.53�4837.2D>�/@�7D=.D20=�5326.0?3�07.696.634�0906=0<=3�./�.5362�7/>>D:6.E;�3:7/D20?3>3:.�./�802.67680.3�6:�0:1�7//216:0.3�7D=.D20=�5326.0?3�07.696.634;�0:1�237/?:6.6/:�/@�7/>>D:6.634�.50.�23075�0:�3M3>8=02E�=393=�/@�802.67680.6/:�6:�7D=.D20=�5326.0?3�393:.4B��2/>�0:�37/:/>67�8324837.693;�7/>>D:6.634�4D88/2.31�.52/D?5�.53��326.0?3�	==K�.02�82/?20>�


5343�82/?20>4�53=8�=/70=�?/932:>3:.4�0:1�/2?0:6N0.6/:4�<D6=1�OPQRST�QSURVST�0:1�6:934.�6:�WXYSZ�QSURVST�234/D2734�.50.�<2/01=E�4D88/2.�7D=.D20=�5326.0?3�0:1�564./267�82343290.6/:�07.696.634B�[D6=16:?�=/70=�?/932:>3:.�708076.E�70:�53=8�=39320?3�82690.3�0:1�:/:K82/C.�5326.0?3�3@@/2.4;�D=.6>0.3=E�\]USẐRZ_�VW\�OV̀\SY�Pa�\QPZPYRQ�SQVRbRVc�SẐ�\QPZPYRQ�d\Z\eVO�.50.�7/>3�@2/>�82343296:?��23?/:�4�5326.0?3�@/2�7D223:.�0:1�@D.D23�?3:320.6/:4B=39320?3�.5362�564./267�234/D2734�./�12693�37/:/>67�07.696.E�./�=/70=�<D46:34434�0:1�7230.3�3M83263:734�.50.�83/8=3�90=D3�6:�0�90263.E�/@�A0E4B
53��326.0?3�	==K�.02�82/?20>�1346?:0.31��0=3>;��23?/:�04�0:�	==K�.02��/>>D:6.E�6:�fghi;�237/?:6N6:?�.53�76.E�4�804.�0:1�.53�A/2L�/@�6:16961D0=4�0:1�/2?0:6N0.6/:4�A6.56:�.53�76.E�A5/�823432931��0=3>�4�564./2E�0:1�7D=.D23B��0=3>�1/34�.53�A/2L�/@�564./2670=�82343290.6/:�.52/D?5�6.4��326.0?3��0E4;�A5675�.0L3�8=073�1D26:?�0�A33L�6:�.53�4D>>32B��0=3>�7/==0</20.34�A6.5�439320=�=/70=�<D46:34434;�/2?0:6N0.6/:4;�4/760=�4329673�0?3:7634;�0:1�8D<=67�0?3:7634�./�5/4.�393:.4�.52/D?5/D.�.53�A33L�0:1�./�82/9613�>D4670=�3:.32.06:>3:.B��0=3>�0=4/�504�	:734.2E��0E4;�6:�A5675�234613:.4�70:�802.67680.3�6:�=37.D234;�./D24;�23430275�/88/2.D:6.634;�0:1�/.532�6:@/2>0.6/:0=�82/?20>4�./�=302:�>/23�0</D.�.5362�0:734.20=�0:1�6>>6?20:.�7/::37.6/:4�./��0=3>B��.532�393:.4�@/7D431�>/23�/:�=/70=�<D46:34434�6:7=D13�.53��0=3>��//1�
2D7L�0:1��20@.�[332�@34.690=�0:1�.53�4304/:0=��0=3>��0D:.31��0883:6:?4�393:.�.50.�.0L34�8=073�02/D:1��0==/A33:B�
5343�393:.4�53=8�82/>/.3�=/70=�@//1�.2D7L�93:1/24;�<23A32634;�234.0D20:.4;�?6@.�45/84;�0:1�43296734�6:�.53�0230�0:1�0=4/�53=8�@076=6.0.3�7/>>D:6.E�7/::37.6/:4B
Page 42 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

�������� ��!!��"�#
$%&�'()$*%)+,�+--(*.%/�&(01(&�+&�+�'$20234$5�63'�*2'�(/$+3&'%1(5�&377+08�29�'$(�.+'+�&230)(&�+*.�7('$2.&�:(�3&(.�'2�4(*(0+'(�'$(�402&&�()2*27%)�)2*'0%63'%2*&�(&'%7+'(&�-0(&(*'(.�%*�'$(�62.8�29�'$%&�0(-20';�
$(�+--(*.%/�%&�&(47(*'(.�%*'2�':2�&()'%2*&;�
$(�<0&'�&()'%2*�.('+%,&�'$(�.+'+�&230)(&�3&(.�+*.�'$(�7('$2.2,248�(7-,28(.�'2�(&'%7+'(�'$(�()2*27%)�922'-0%*'�29�$(0%'+4(�204+*%=+'%2*&;�
$%&�&()'%2*�.('+%,&�'$(�.+'+�&230)(�3*.(0,8%*4�230�()2*27%)�922'-0%*'�29�$(0%'+4(�204+*%=+'%2*&�+*+,8&%&5�+*.�$2:�:(�3&(.�%'�'2�92073,+'(�230�72.(,�%*-3'&;�>?@?AB>�C??DEFB@D�?G���HFBDIJH�KFJI@BLIDB?@MN�"IDI�O?PF>HM�I@Q�RHDS?Q?T?JU

$(�VWXYZW[\�]ŶYW_Y�̀ YẐabY�cV]̀d�-021%.(&�(+&8�+))(&&�'2�<,%*4&�920�'+/e(/(7-'�204+*%=+'%2*&�1%+�'$(�����&�'+/e(/(7-'�204+*%=+'%2*�&(+0)$�'22,;f��2*e-02<'�204+*%=+'%2*&�73&'�<,(�2*(�29�9230�ggh�9207�'8-(&�:%'$�'$(�����+**3+,,8;�
$(�&'+*.+0.�ggh�9207�%&�<,(.�68�204+*%=+'%2*&�:$2�$+.�ij�klimj�nohh5hhh�%*�402&&�0()(%-'&5�20�ij�klimj�nphh5hhh�%*�'2'+,�+&&('&�%*�+�4%1(*�<,%*4�8(+0;�
$(�gghe���%&�<,(.�68�204+*%=+'%2*&�:$2�(+0*(.�klmm�jqir�nohh5hhh�%*�402&&�0()(%-'&�+*.�$(,.�klmm�jqir�nphh5hhh�%*�'2'+,�+&&('&�%*�+�4%1(*�<,%*4�8(+0;s�*,8�'$(�&'+*.+0.�ggh�+*.�'$(�gghe���-021%.(.�3&�'$(�<*+*)%+,�.+'+�*((.(.�920�72.(,%*4;��2:(1(05�'$(0(�+0(�':2�2'$(0�ggh�9207�'8-(&�+�'+/e(/(7-'�204+*%=+'%2*�)+*�

<,(5�'$(�gghe���+*.�'$(�gghe�;�t2'$�9207�'8-(&�:(0(�(/),3.(.�9027�230�+*+,8&%&�920�.%99(0(*'�0(+&2*&;�
$(�gghe���9207�2*,8�-(0'+%*&�'2�-0%1+'(�923*.+'%2*&;�
$(�gghe��%&�2*,8�<,(.�%9�+*�204+*%=+'%2*�(+0*(.�ij�uvmj�nph5hhh�%*��402&&�0()(%-'&�%*�+�4%1(*�<,%*4�8(+0;��*920'3*+'(,85�*2�<*+*)%+,�%*9207+'%2*�%&�%77(.%+'(,8�+1+%,+6,(�920�204+*%=+'%2*&�'$+'�<,(�+�gghe�w�+&�+�0(&3,'5�'$(8�:(0(�(/),3.(.�9027�230�+*+,8&%&;

x��yql�z{|�ji}�l}lu~j�v��ir��ij�vr�mli��q�jvvk��ir��l�i��lmml��ij�jql��vkkv��r��i���lmm�����������������������������������������������������������������������������z{| �¡v�u�¢¢£�|l��lm�¤q��q�¡v�um�¥v�¦}lu~j�§��ir��ij�vrm�¡�kl�¡�k�r��̈qiml�zr©�zr�v�uij�vr�i��lmml��vr�ª«rl��¬ ��£��������������������������������������������������®®̄�������������������°������������������������±���±������������

"IDI�O?PF>H
Page 43 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������


���������� �!"�#�$���%����"�&'��(����$�)�'*��+���,�,��%""�#�$�%������- %)���� �(����� �"�.&��� ������(%����+�"���"��%'���"'% �/%��� ��� ��"�'� �� �01234
56789:7;<�;==69>:?


������(%�������'"������� �(���+���!"� ���+���"��%'��������%�"�����"�'� @������"��,�����A�"%���$���#�"%)�- % ��%)�% $��(!)�*(� ��$%�%�!�� ���+"�(�������% $%"$�331�% $�331B���+�"(�4�����(!)�*����$� ��-�%��� ��&(.�"��C����D�,�"��!"�#�$�$�,����������"��%'���"'% �/%��� �$%�%����,��"����#�$@��������-"���% %)*���%)����!��� �����$��+�"���%"��� '�% $���))���� '���������+�"��%����+�����0E0����%)���"��%'���"'% �/%��� �@�,��"��%#%�)%.)�4�
�"�&'����������% $�331���))����� �!"�����@�,��(%$����#�"%)�- $� '�FG��+������ ��"��$%�%���@�21H��"'% �/%��� ��C�"@�IE�!�"�� �D��%$�331�+�"(�$%�%�+�"�(�$�)� '4G�	!!"�A�(%��)*�0E�!�"�� ���+���"��%'���"'% �/%��� ���%" �$�)������% �JK1@111�� �0123�C�4�4@������"'% �/%��� �-)�$�%�331B�D4�	��%�"��&)�@�,����&)$� ����A�"%���- % ��%)�$%�%����� �)&$���������"'% �/%��� ��� ��&"�% %)*���4G���+��� �!�"�� ���+���"��%'���"'% �/%��� ��,�"��%�!%"���+�%�)%"'�"�� ����&��� �% $���&�@��%$� ��� $�#�$&%)�331�+�"(��%#%�)%.)�4��A%(!)����+������� �)&$��& �#�"���*�% $�!&.)���)�."%"����C�4'4@�L �'�����."%"*�%��� �#�"���*��+��"�'� D@�(&��&(���!�"%��$�.*���%����"�+�$�"%)�%'� �����C�4'4@�����
��(%���� $� ��%)�� ��)�'*��� ��"@��!�"%��$�.*������%��� %)��%"M���"#���D@�% $�(% *�(&��&(����%��,�"���!�"%��$�.*�)��%)�%'� ������"�& �#�"�������C�4'4@���"��L)%(%����!�"%��$�.*�L)%(%�����& �*D4G�	.�&����#� �!�"�� ���+��"'% �/%��� ��� �����$%�%����,�"��$&!)��%��#�4���"��A%(!)�@�����N%M�"���"��%'���&��&(�% $������"�'� �
"%�)���'�� %)��&��&(�%"��

��'&"��EF��&((%"*��� $� '���+�331���"(��%�%�+�"���"��%'���"'% �/%��� �@�0100

OPQRSTU�VWXYPRZ[\T]Z�RT]T̂RS[_�̀aOb

ccd�efgh�ijkjlgmn�eopqopr sftpu v�wnlgj��fx�yfulz{kjl|zj�}lul ~d� ��v��% $%"$�331 HI 00�331B�� �I 2K�{p�tkjl|zj�}lul ~�� ��v331B� �3 0E�331B�� 2 1�	&��B��#��%��� ����� 3 I��&!)��%��#� 23 ��� %.)��������%������ 0H 3��%  ���& �% ')��+"�(������"�� ����&��� �0 2K�5���������������<�����5�� ��� ����

���������������%"��� '�����331���"(���+����"��%'���"'% �/%��� �
�����%(��� ���*@�.&�����*��%����%#������"��, �"�,�� �����$%�%���4����"��$&!)��%��� ����&""�$@�,��� )*�� �)&$�$�331�$%�%�� ��@�%��&(� '������ +�"(%��� ��,%��%#%�)%.)�4��'&"��E�!"�#�$���%��&((%"*��+�����331�"���%"����� $&���$�+�"�����+&))�)�����+���"��%'���"'% �/%��� �4

Page 44 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

�������� ��!!��"�#

$%�&'()*(+*�,,-�./+0�(&1&�234)5�/+5()46('4/)&�./+�*%'(43%*�2)()74(3�*('(8�341%�&9%)*4)58�4):%&'0%)'&8�()*�+%:%);%&<��'�(3&/�4)73;*%&�4)./+0('4/)�(=/;'�()�/+5()46('4/)�&�*4+%7'/+&8�'$%�);0=%+�/.�9%+&/)&�>$/�>/+1%*�%4'$%+�./+�9(?�/+�(&�:/3;)'%%+&�('�()?�'40%�*;+4)5�'$%�234)5�9%+4/*8�()*�(�*%'(43%*�(77/;)'4)5�/.�'$%�/+5()46('4/)�&�=(3()7%�&$%%'<�
$%�,,-@���./+08�/)�'$%�/'$%+�$()*8�(&1&�23%+&�./+�&4043(+�2)()74(3�*('(�341%�'$%�&'()*(+*�,,-A�$/>%:%+8�4'�*/%&�)/'�(&1�(=/;'�()�/+5()46('4/)�&�%093/?%%&�)/+�4'&�:/3;)'%%+&8�()*�4'�9+/:4*%&�()�(==+%:4('%*�=(3()7%�&$%%'�&%7'4/)<�('(�.+/0�BC�&'()*(+*�,,-�./+0&�()*�DC�,,-@���./+0&�./+0%*�'$%�=(&4&�/.�/;+�0/*%3�4)9;'&<��.�9(+'47;3(+�409/+'()7%�>%+%�'$%�/9%+('4)5�%E9%)*4';+%&�()*�)%'�7(94'(3�%E9%)*4';+%&�/.�'$%&%�/+5()46('4/)&8�(&�'$%&%�4)9;'&�*4+%7'3?�(..%7'�'$%�7(37;3('4/)&�����	��;&%&�'/�(&7%+'(4)�'$%�/:%+(33�%7/)/047�409(7'�/)��+%5/)�&�%7/)/0?<�%'�7(94'(3�%E9%)*4';+%&�>%+%�%&'40('%*8�(&�9;+7$(&%&�/.�*%9+%74(=3%�(&&%'&�(+%�)/'�;)4./+03?�+%9/+'%*�/)�'$%�,--�./+0&<�
$%�%&'40('%&�>%+%�7/09;'%*�=?�&;='+(7'4)5�.+/0�

?%(+@%)*�7(94'(3�(&&%'&�'$%�=%54))4)5�/.�?%(+�7(94'(3�(&&%'&�()*�*%9+%74('4/)�'(1%)�*;+4)5�'$%�234)5�?%(+<�
$%�+%&;3'�4&�()�(99+/E40('4/)�=%7(;&%�4'�4&�9/&&4=3%�'$('�&/0%�)/)@9+/2'&�0(?�$(:%�*4&9/&%*�/.�7(94'(3�(&&%'&�*;+4)5�'$%�?%(+<��)�'$%�7(&%�/.�&/0%�0;&%;0&8�(**4'4/)&�'/�'$%4+�%E$4=4'&�0(?�(99%(+�(&�7(94'(3�(&&%'&8�9/&&4=3%�(99+%74('4)5�7(94'(3�(&&%'&8�>$47$�(3&/�0(?�*4&'/+'�'$%�%&'40('%<��+/0�/;+�+%&%(+7$�()*�+%:4%>8�'$%&%�%E7%9'4/)&�(99%(+�;)7/00/)<�093/?0%)'�%&'40('%&�7+%('%*�7$(33%)5%&�./+�'$%�()(3?&4&<�
$%�&'()*(+*�,,-�./+0&�+%:%(3�'$('�FC�/.�'$%�GH�)/)@9+/2'&�>4'$�());(3�+%:%);%�%E7%%*4)5�IG-8---�$(*�)/�9(4*�%093/?%%&<�
$%?�/9%+('%*�;&4)5�:/3;)'%%+&�()*�>/+1�*/)%�'$+/;5$�9(4*�&%+:47%�9+/:4*%+&8�&;7$�(&�(77/;)'()'&<��'�4&�341%3?�'$('�)%(+3?�(33�,,-@���)/)@9+/2'&�>%+%�%)'4+%3?�+;)�=?�:/3;)'%%+&<��4)7%�:/3;)'%%+&�(+%�)/'�9(4*8�.+/0�'$%�&'()*9/4)'�/.�()�%7/)/047�409(7'�()(3?&4&8�'$%&%�;)9(4*�>/+1%+&�$(:%�)/�%7/)/047�409(7'&�/)�'$%�+%&'�/.�'$%�%7/)/0?�'$('�(+4&%&�.+/0�3(=/+�4)7/0%<�J$%)�+%:4%>4)5�'$%�����*('(8�/)%�&$/;3*�7/)&4*%+�'$%�(0/;)'�/.�>/+1�'40%�9;'�4)'/�'$%�)/)@9+/2'&�'$('�7())/'�=%�7(9';+%*�=?�()�%7/)/047�409(7'�0/*%3<�45;+%�,�&$/>&�(�&;00(+?�/.�'$%�2)()74(3�*('(�+%'+4%:%*�.+/0�'$%�/+5()46('4/)&�'$('�23%*�(�,,-�/+�,,-@���4)�K-F,<�45;+%�,L��;00(+?�/.�,,-�()*�,,-@����)9;'&�./+��7/)/047��//'9+4)'�	)(3?&4&8�K-F,
MNOPQRS�TUMV�WXYZ�[\]̂R]R_̀ [�NPa\bcd\[cNb�efcbagh�ijklNP[mnRg[�Q\fQOf\[cNbgolN[RS�i_̀ fNp_Rb[�Rg[c_\[Rg�qNP�ZZX̂ir�efRPg�\PR�Rg[c_\[Rs�t\gRs�Nb�R_̀ fNp_Rb[�bO_tRPg�PR̀NP[Rs�tp�mRPc[\aR�NPa\bcd\[cNbg�[m\[�efRs�\�g[\b̂s\Ps�ZZXo
uvwxyz{|}~zv�z����z�x�� ���v�������� ����|� ���~���%:%);% I,D8�GC8--- IK8BBB8--- I,H8GF,8---�(?+/33��/&'& IDB8KFF8--- IGFD8--- IDB8HKG8---�/)@�(?+/33��E9%)&%& ID�8GB,8--- IF8G,F8--- IG-8FB-8---�%'��%:%);% IHC8--- IGB-8--- IBCC8---�093/?0%)'�� F8G�- K- F8B--

�E'+(7'4)5��7/)/047��/*%3���)9;'&�.+/0�'$%�,,-&

Page 45 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

�������� ��!!��"�#�$%&'()$��*+%&,-.�"('(�/*+%0$,�(12�3$'4*2*5*)6�789�:;9�<9=:7>?�@A7>AB�:;7<�<9=:7>?�C9:D7E<�:;9�CD:D�<>FA=9�F?C9AEG7?H�>FA�;9A7:DH9�:>FA7<I�D?DEG<7<B�D?C�;>J�J9�F<9C�7:�:>�K>AIFED:9�>FA�I>C9E�7?@F:<L
;9�9<:7ID:9<�K>A�>FA�9=>?>I7=�=>?:A7MF:7>?<�>K�;9A7:DH9�:>FA7<I�D?DEG<7<�A9E79C�@A7IDA7EG�F@>?�:J>�CD:D�<>FA=9<N�:ADO9E�7I@D=:�9<:7ID:9<�KA>I��9D?��F?GD?�	<<>=7D:9<�D?C�O7<7:�9<:7ID:9<�KA>I��ED=9ALD7LP�QRST�UVTWST�XYYZ[\S]RY�7<�D��>A:ED?ĈMD<9C�A9<9DA=;�_AI�:;D:�<@9=7DE7̀9<�7?�aFD?:7KG7?H�:;9�9=>?>I7=�7I@D=:<�>K�:ADO9E�D?C�:>FA7<IL��O9AG�G9DAB�:;9G�@FME7<;�D�A9@>A:�:;D:�D?DEG̀9<�D?C�DA:7=FED:9<�:;9�9=>?>I7=�7I@D=:�>K�:>FA7<I�7?��A9H>?L��>A�:;7<�D?DEG<7<B�J9�A9E79C�F@>?��9D?��F?GD?�<�bcde�A9@>A:�K>A�<9O9ADE�CD:D�9E9I9?:<�D:�:;9�:>FA7<I�A9H7>?�E9O9ELf�
;9�CD:D�9E9I9?:<�7?=EFC9�>O9A?7H;:�O7<7:>A�O>EFI9�MG�D==>II>CD:7>?�:G@9�g;>:9EB�I>:9EB��
�h�@A7OD:9�;>I9<h�D?C�>:;9A�>O9A?7H;:iB�O7<7:>A�<@9?C7?H�MG�=>II>C7:G�@FA=;D<9C�g9LHLB�D==>II>CD:7>?<B�K>>C�<9AO7=9<B�A9:D7E�<DE9<iB�D?C�DO9ADH9�@9A�@9A<>?�?7H;:�9j@9?C7:FA9<�MG�D==>II>CD:7>?�:G@9L
;9�I9:;>C>E>HG�<9=:7>?�M9E>J�C9:D7E<�:;9��D<<FI@:7>?<�J9�F<9C�KA>I��9D?��F?GD?�<�A9@>A:�:>�@A>CF=9�>FA�;9A7:DH9�:>FA7<I�9<:7ID:9<LP�klS[RmnS\�7<�D�@A>@A79:DAG�DA:7_=7DE�7?:9EE7H9?=9�<>K:JDA9�@ED:K>AI�:;D:�9<:7ID:9<�K>>:�:ADK_=�:A9?C<�O7D�D?>?GI7̀9C�=9EEFEDA�E>=D:7>?�CD:DL�
>�H9?9AD:9�:;97A�O7<7:�9<:7ID:9<B��ED=9ALD7�A9E79<�F@>?�D�@D?9E�CD:D<9:�>K�>O9A�oc�I7EE7>?�F?7aF9�I>?:;EG�F<9A<L�
;9<9�@D?9E�O7<7:<�

DA9�?>AIDE7̀9C�D?C�:;9?�9j:AD@>ED:9C�O7D�D�@A>@A79:DAG�9j:AD@>ED:7>?�DEH>A7:;I�:>�H9?9AD:9�<89Ĵ=>AA9=:9C�O7<7:�9<:7ID:9<�D:�D�<@9=7_9C�E>=D:7>?�7?�:;9��L�L	�O7<7:�7<�:A7HH9A9C�J;9?�D�@D?9E�=9EE@;>?9�<=D?<�K>A�D�pEF9:>>:;�>A�q7�7�<7H?DE�:J>�=>?<9=F:7O9�:7I9<�7?�D�_O9̂�:>�_K:99?̂I7?F:9�@9A7>CL�
;9�@9A7>C�M9:J99?�<=D?<�C9@9?C<�>?�:;9�F<9A�@;>?9�<��@9AD:7?H��G<:9I�g��iL��>A�9jDI@E9B�D?�	?CA>7C����J7EE�<=D?�K>A�D�q7�7�<7H?DE�9O9AG�:;A99�:>�<9O9?�I7?F:9<L��9O9ADE�<DE79?:�=DO9D:<�:>�M9�I7?CKFE�>K�J;9?�7?:9A@A9:7?H��ED=9ALD7�<�O7<7:�9<:7ID:9<�DA9�D<�K>EE>J<Nr��ED=9ALD7�=>F?:<�>?EG�>?9�O7<7:�@9A�@9A<>?�@9A�CDG�:>�D�s�ED=9�>K��?:9A9<:t�g���iL��K�D�O7<7:>A�;D@@9?<�:>�ID89�IFE:7@E9�O7<7:<�:>�:;9�<DI9����B��ED=9ALD7�HA>F@<�:;9I�7?:>�>?9�CD7EG�O7<7:Lr�	�����=D?�M9�D?G�@;G<7=DE�E>=D:7>?B�E789�D�A9:D7E�MF<7?9<<B�D�@DA8B�>A�D�=7:G�<�C>J?:>J?�DA9DB�K>A�9jDI@E9L��>A�@FA@><9<�>K�>FA�D?DEG<7<B�9D=;�����7<�D?�7?C7O7CFDE�;9A7:DH9�<7:9Lr��ED=9ALD7�=D??>:�D==>F?:�K>A�O9A:7=DE7:G�7?�7:<�9<:7ID:9<B�?>A�=D?�7:�D::A7MF:9�O7<7:<�:>�D�<7?HE9�9?:7:G�7K�:;9�<@D=9�7<�M97?H�<;DA9C�J7:;�D?>:;9A�g9LHLB�D�:J>̂<:>AG�MF7EC7?H�J7:;�A9:D7E�>?�:;9�HA>F?C�u>>A�D?C�>K_=9<�DM>O9�J>FEC�A9:FA?�D�<7?HE9�O7<7:�ODEF9�7?��ED=9ALD7B�J7:;�?>�CD:D�C7<DHHA9HD:7>?�MG�u>>A�>A�MF<7?9<<iLr��ED=9ALD7�D::A7MF:9<�D�<7?HE9�O7<7:�:>�D�����J;9?�:;9�CJ9EE�:7I9�D:�:;D:�����9j=99C<�<9O9?�I7?F:9<L�
;7<�9j=EFC9<�<;>A:�O7<7:<B�>A�O7<7:<�J7:;�CJ9EE�:7I9<�:;D:�DA9�vw�xyvzw�>?9�I7?F:9�E>?H�D?C�z{|}wy}�w{v~�<9O9?�I7?F:9<Lr��K�D�����;D<�K9J9A�:;D?�fc�7?C7O7CFDE<�A9@A9<9?:9C�KA>I�7:<�@D?9E�CD:D<9:�7?�D�<@9=7_9C�:7I9�KADI9�g9LHLB�7?�:;9�KFEE�G9DA�>K�bcdeiB�:;9?��ED=9ALD7�J7EE�?>:�A9@>A:�D?G���������yv~���~�v~��zz|��vwyz�����}�x����������������������������������� �¡���¢�£|}wxv~¤¥�¦����yw}�y§y¤�̈}|©ª��«����¬®�̄°���±¢������������¢���²� �������°����̄��¡�¡¡³�́ �����¢�̄µ

"('(�/*+%0$,

Page 46 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

�������� ��!!��"�#$%&%'�(&'%)*'(&�'+�',(�-&(./�
,%&�%&�'+�(0&-.(�',(�1.%$*23�+4�%05%$%5-*6&�%0�6(&&�1+1-6*'(5�*.(*&/7��6*2(./*%8�93�5(4*-6'8�:6'(.&�+-'�()16+3((�2+-0'&�4.+)�$%&%'�(&'%)*'(&/�
,(3�5('(.)%0(�*�$%&%'�'+�9(�*0�()16+3((�9*&(5�+0�',(�4+66+;%0<�2.%'(.%*=�>?�6+0<�$%&%'&�@*'�6(*&'�4+-.�,+-.&�*.(�&1(0'�*'�*����?8�A?�5*3'%)(�$%&%'&�@',(�$%&%'&�'*B(�16*2(�9(';((0�C�	��'+�>D���?8�*05�E?�)-6'%16(�$%&%'&�@$%&%'�.(1('%'%+08�(%',(.�5*%63�+.�;((B63?/7��6*2(./*%�&�)+9%6(�5($%2(�1*0(6�%&�2.(*'(5�(F26-&%$(63�4.+)��/�/G9*&(5�1,+0(�*116%2*'%+0&/��'�%&�-06%B(63�',*'�',(%.�1*0(6�5*'*&('�.(1.(&(0'&�%0'(.0*'%+0*6�'+-.%&'&/

,%&�&(2'%+0�1.+$%5(&�*�',+.+-<,�)(',+5+6+<3�+4�,+;�;(�*..%$(5�*'�',(�:0*6�(2+0+)%2�2+0'.%9-'%+0&�(&'%)*'(&�4+.�,(.%'*<(�'+-.%&)�%0��.(<+0�%0�AD>H/�%.&'8�;(�&(<)(0'(5�',(�'+'*6�0-)9(.�+4�$%&%'&�*'�(*2,�IJKLMJN�,(.%'*<(�&%'(�*05�,(.%'*<(�'.*5%'%+0��%0'+�5*3�'.%1&�*05�+$(.0%<,'�'.%1&/�O(�*&&-)(5�',*'�$%&%'&�4.+)�1(.&+0&�;,+�'.*$(6(5�9(';((0�CD�*05�HH�)%6(&�2+0&'%'-'(�*�5*3�'.%1/�%&%'+.&�;,+�'.*$(6(5�)+.(�',*0�>DD�)%6(&�'+�*�&%'(�;(.(�*&&-)(5�'+�9(�*0�+$(.0%<,'�'.%1/�&%0<��6*2(./*%8�;(�2*62-6*'(5�',*'�',(.(�;(.(�>/HC�)%66%+0�IJKLMJN�,(.%'*<(�&%'(�$%&%'&�%0�AD>H8�*05�*0�*55%'%+0*6�>/DA�)%66%+0�,(.%'*<(�'.*5%'%+0�$%&%'&/��0�'+'*68�',%&�*)+-0'&�'+�0(*.63�A/HP�)%66%+0�,(.%'*<(�$%&%'&�%0�AD>H/��%<-.(�>D�&,+;&�',(�IJKLMJN�,(.%'*<(�&%'(�*05�,(.%'*<(�'.*5%'%+0�$%&%'&�*<<.(<*'(5�93��(*0��-03*0�'+-.%&)�.(<%+0/

�������� ��!!��"�#
�&'%)*'%0<�%&%'&QRSTUVUWUXY

�%<-.(�>D=�%&%'&�'+��(.%'*<(��%'(&�*05�
.*5%'%+0&8�93��.(<+0�
+-.%&)��(<%+08�AD>H
Z[\]̂_̀�abcd[]efg_he�̂iĵ\jiek[lhm�njî_]oikm�p_il�q\lril�shh[̂kie_h�tuvuvwo
xyMz�{|zNMz}~|JK�L�{y�K~z �JKLMJN��yJK�M�y��K�y��K�K�� �yJK�M�y�}JM�K�K~z��K�K�� �����yJK�M�y��K�K��xMN��K�K�� ��yJzK�����K�K�� �����K�K�� xMN��K�K�� ��yJzK�����K�K�� �����K�K�� xMN��K�K�� ��yJzK�����K�K�� �����K�K���(0'.*6 P8H�D HE8AP� >�A8H>� >8ADD C8C�� >H8A>� >D8>�D HP8PE> >PA8>AP�(0'.*6��+*&' C8��E �8��� ��8E�D �8CD� ED8PA� �E8�HA >A8APD E�8�HD >>>8>EA�*&'(.0 E8�>C >H8CC� >DD8D>P H8ED> �D8A�H PH8A�E >E8D>� CH8PD� >PH8AP>�'/��++5��+.<( H8>�> >P8�DC CA8�>E D D D H8>�> >P8�DC CA8�>E�+.',��+*&' ��8E�A >��8P�� A�E8DA� �8DPC >D8A�� AA8P�� �E8�A� >CC8>>E AHC8PHE�+.'6*05��(<%+0 >�8DA� >A�8�>� �P�8��� C8�H> AE8>�C >�A8�P> AA8C>C >��8��A PCH8EA��+-',��+*&' C8�EC AD8��E C�8��> D D D C8�EC AD8��E C�8��>�+-',(.0 P8��H C>8�C� AD�8HA� >8DD> >8�CH >P8E�A H8�CD CE8A>� AA�8A�PO%66*)(''(�*66(3 >H8EH> >DH8D�C E�C8�HD CD8�AC �D8PC� �EP8>P> �D8D>� >�H8HE> >8DDE8H�>�S�SR��VR��US�W ������� ������� ��������� ������ ������� ��������� ������� ������� ���������

Page 47 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������


������������� !!"#���$%!�&' �� %'�$(��%�)��*����%� ++$,�'�"!��$�"!���� %��"%� %�!�-./0��1��%'��"����!��# ��!��$���$'"2��# %��$3�$"��#$'�+��%�"�!4���� %��"%� %�$%+���"5+�!��!��������!$%�' ��������1��%'��"��!� ������!� ��6+�(�+4�
�"!7�,��"!�'�������!� ��,�'���!��# ��!�3$�� ++�' �������(�!��!��$������ )��!���!4��$��$(��%�)�������!7�,��"!�'�������8���' � ��+�#�%�!�3�$#���������)�$%6+�(�+��� (�+��#� 2��!"## ���!79�,��2���%2+"'�:;��(��%�)���(�!��$��($+"#��5�� 22$##$' ��$%������&�$��+7�#$��+7��
�<����( ����$#�!<� %'�$�����$(��%�)��*7;��!��$��!��%'�%)�5��2$##$'�����"�2� !�'�&�4)47� 22$##$' ��$%!7�3$$'�!��(�2�!7���� �+�! +�!*7� %';�	(�� )���������!$%�%�)����1��%'��"��!�5�� 22$##$' ��$%�����4��)"���//�!�$,!�����$��)�% ++�����$���'��� %��"%� %��1��%'��"���( +"�!�,��"!�'� !�����5 !�!��$�)�%�� ���$"������	��#$'�+��%�"�!�3$��$(��%�)���(�!��!4�$��' ���� (�+��1��%'��"��!7�,��"!�'��,$�$3��� %��"%� %�!����$���'�( +"�!7�,��2��,��2$%(����'�3�$#� ������ �����!��# ����$� ��������!$%��!��# ��4�=��"!�'�������>$"�'$$�� 2��(���?�3$�����# �������� )��!����' ���� (�+��!��# ��!7� %'�������>2"+�"� +?� 2��(����3$������� )���� '���$%�' ���� (�+��!��# ��!4��%�%$#�% +����#!7�$"�� !!"#���$%!�,���� 5$"��@A040.��������!$%�3$��BCDEFCG������ )��!����(�!��!� %'� 5$"��@H04A.�3$������� )���� '���$%�(�!��!4

IJKLMNKOP�OQQJMRNS����(�%)���)�$% +�2$##$'�����!��%'�%)�� ����%!

T�UVWDXYZ�FCV�[XEBCDZV\�X]�̂CVWXY�[X_ỲDVZa�bcVFZV�CV]VC�̀X�BFWV�dT�X]�eVFY�U_YGFY�fZZX[DF̀VZg�h�di�jCFkVc�lEBF[̀Z�UVBXC̀�]XC�F�EFB�X]�m̀VDC�CVWDXYZa�noopqrsstuvwqoxyzox{|}~�x}��uz���s�p���uo}uoswp~�{vqs����s��s����p��zpv�

��)"���//:���������!$%��(��%�)����1��%'��"��!�5���(��%�)���	22$##$' ��$%�
���� %'�
$"��!#���)�$%7�-./0
��wx�}r��}{u��wuy{u��qq��t{o}q��������������xon�}qo��{~�w~{ot�uqz
eVFY�U_YGFYjX_CDZE�UVWDXY bVC�bVCZXY�̂kVCYDWm̀���BVY\D̀_CV���̂CDWDYFc��Fc_VZ�UVBXC̀V\��G�eVFY�U_YGFY��X̀Vc���X̀Vc��� j�U bCDkF̀V��XEV ^̀mVC��k̂VCYDWm̀ fcc��k̂VCYDWm̀��fkVCFWV���%�� + @/9¡4. @A94. @¢A4. @£A4.��%�� +��$ !� @/A¡4. @¢¡4. @A.4. @£04.� !���% @/.A4. @-04. @¢94. @¡H4.��4��$$'¤�$�)� @/A.4. @¢A4. @¢H4. @H04.�$�����$ !� @/¢.4. @-04. @¢94. @£/4.�$��+ %'���)�$% @-AA4. @9A4. @A/4. @/¢-4.�$"����$ !� @//A4. @¢94. @A-4. @9£4.�$"����% @/¢.4. @A-4. @¢94. @9H4.=�++ #����� ++�� @/A.4. @¢£4. @A.4. @9¢4.

Page 48 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

�������� ��!!��"�#$%&'�&'(�)(*%+,-./.(0(.�1+22+3%&4�5-&&(),6�*(,()-&(37�&'(�8+..+9%,*�1-.1:.-&%+,6�9()(�:,3()&-;(,�8+)�+0(),%*'&�0%6%&6<=>��:.&%5.4�&+&-.�+0(),%*'&�0%6%&6�?4�&'(�3%6&)%?:&%+,�+8�0%6%&+)�0+.:2(�?4�-11+22+3-&%+,�&45(>�
'%6�)(6:.&(3�%,�@ABCDAE�'()%&-*(�6%&(�0%6%&�1+:,&6�?4�-11+22+3-&%+,�&45(�-,3�)(*%+,>F>��:.&%5.4�&'(�-11+22+3-&%+,�&45(�5()�5()6+,�+0(),%*'&�(G5(,3%&:)(�0-.:(�?4�&'(�+0(),%*'&�0%6%&+)6�?4�-11+22+3-&%+,�&45(>�
'%6�)(6:.&(3�%,�-,�-**)(*-&(�65(,3�-2+:,&�?4�-11+22+3-&%+,�&45(>H>�
'(�-**)(*-&(�(G5(,3%&:)(6�I?4�-11+22+3-&%+,�&45(J�9()(�&'(,�3%6&)%?:&(3�-.+,*�&'(�FK=L�0%6%&+)�65(,3%,*�?4�1+22+3%&4�5:)1'-6(3>�
'%6�)(6:.&(3�%,�(G5(,3%&:)(6�?4��	����%,3:6&)47�9'%1'�9()(�&'(,�1)+66�9-.;(3�&+�����	��%,3:6&)4�1+3(6�&+�*(,()-&(�

�-55%,*�'()%&-*(�0%6%&6�&+�)(*%+,-.��0%6%&+)�65(,3%,*�1+22+3%&4�5-&&(),6
%,3:6&)4/.(0(.�2+3(.�%,5:&6>
'(�3-4�0%6%&�1+25:&-&%+,6�8+..+9(3�-�6%2%.-)�8)-2(9+);�&+�+0(),%*'&�0%6%&6�8+)�(-1'�)(*%+,7�-.?(%&�9%&'�8(9()�6&(56<=>��:.&%5.4�&'(�&+&-.�3-4�0%6%&6�?4�&'(�FK=L�6&-&(9%3(�5()�5()6+,�3-4�0%6%&�(G5(,3%&:)(�8+)�+:&3++)�-1&%0%&%(6�I@ABCDAE�'()%&-*(�6%&(�0%6%&6J�-,3�1:.&:)-.�-1&%0%&%(6�I'()%&-*(�&)-3%&%+,�0%6%&6J>F>�
'(�&+&-.�(G5(,3%&:)(6�9()(�&'(,�3%6&)%?:&(3�-.+,*��&'(�FK=L�0%6%&+)�65(,3%,*�?4�1+22+3%&4�5:)1'-6(3>��%;(�+0(),%*'&�0%6%&67�&'%6�6&(5�)(6:.&(3�%,�(G5(,3%&:)(6�?4�%,3:6&)4�8+)�3-4�0%6%&67�9'%1'�9(�6:?6(M:(,&.4�1)+66�9-.;(3�&+�����	��%,3:6&)4�1+3(6�&+�*(,()-&(�2+3(.�%,5:&6>�
'(�;(4�3%88()(,1(�'()(�%6�&'-&�9(�-66:2(3�N()+�3+..-)6�9()(�65(,&�+,�-11+22+3-&%+,6�-,3�0%6%&+)�-%)�&)-,65+)&-&%+,�8+)�3-4�0%6%&6>	8&()�(G5(,3%&:)(�(6&%2-&(6�9()(�1-.1:.-&(3�8+)�?+&'�3-4�-,3�+0(),%*'&�0%6%&67�9(�6:22(3�?+&'�0-.:(6�&+*(&'()�?4�)(*%+,�&+�1)(-&(�-,�-))-4�+8�%,3:6&)4/.(0(.�����	��%,5:&6>��%*:)(�=F�3(&-%.67�-&�-�'%*'/.(0(.7�&'(�6&-&(9%3(�%,5:&6�:6(3�%,�����	��&+�*(,()-&(�&'(�)(6:.&6>��,��

Page 49 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������

�������� ��!!��"�#�$%&'(�)*+��,--,.$/0��',&1��&--2'0�,3��('$/2%(�
,&'$4-��,.(5��61&/4�7$6�/8,&426.4�,3�.,552'49:��;0��(26��&6026�
,&'$4-��(%$,6:�*<)=
>?@ABCD�EFGH?AIJKCLI�BMNB@NMIO?PLQ�RNMBCASMOQ�TCMP�U@PVMP�WLL?BOMICL�XYZYZ[S

>?@ABCD�EFGH?AIJKCLI�BMNB@NMIO?PLQ�RNMBCASMOQ�TCMP�U@PVMP�WLL?BOMICL�XYZYZ[S

\]̂ ]̂_̀ab�cd]ef \ghadijkdgl]h minagdh�kdgl]h oap�q]]_rc]dlg s]dajih_�tgl̀]h u]eavgdh�kdgl]h ẁjjî gaag�xijjgb y]dav�\]ina \ghadij�\]ina u]eav�\]ina uaiagz̀_g	{{,--,.2/$,64 |*:}~� |�=< |}�� |�:�)~ |�~� |):�=* |}:<�� |~�< |*=� |)�:~*��,,.��('�${(4 |*:�)� |):)=� |��� |�:=<) |):)�~ |�:��� |�:=�� |):*)* |�~� |*):}�~�,,.��/,'(4 |��< |��* |)�� |�~� |}�} |):��� |):}~� |}~} |)�< |�:~*��,{25�
'2641,'/2/$,6����24 |=�* |�}� |*�~ |*:=�~ |�<~ |*:)�) |):~=* |�*} |*)~ |=:=��	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({'(2/$,6 |=~= |��) |*�) |):}=} |��� |}:)�� |*:��~ |��� |*�) |)<:�}��(/2$5��25(4 |=�= |��= |}*� |*:*�* |��) |*:})� |*:�}� |�)) |*)} |)<:})~$4$/,'�	$'�
'2641,'/2/$,6 |�<� |)< |< |}:�~* |)~* |}�� |< |< |)) |�:�}������ ������ ������ ������ ������� ������ ������� ������� ������ ������ ��������$%&'(�)}+��,--,.$/0��1(6.��(/2$5��&--2'0�,3��('$/2%(�
,&'$4-��,.(5��61&/4�7$6�/8,&426.4�,3�.,552'49:�;0��(26��&6026��
,&'$4-��(%$,6:�*<)=\]̂ ]̂_̀ab�cd]ef �os��y\]̂ ]̂_̀ab�\]_g �os��y�h_enadb�\]_g \ghadijkdgl]h minagdhkdgl]h oap�q]]_rc]dlg s]dajih_�tgl̀]h u]eavgdh�kdgl]h ẁjjî gaag�xijjgb y]dav�\]ina \ghadij�\]ina u]eav�\]ina uaiagz̀_g	{{,--,.2/$,64 }�<� �<� |�*:*�~ |�}� |*�) |}:~}< |�)} |):�<� |*:�}� |�=* |*�� |)}:))=	{{,--,.2/$,64 }�<~ �<~ |)*� |�} |~� |�~~ |�) |)~� |})~ |�� |*< |):�<��,,.��('�${( }�<= �<= |):<~= |�}� |*�� |):��} |�** |*:~)) |}:)}} |��} |*)* |)):����,,.��('�${( }�)< �)< |=}� |*=� |)=� |*:})) |*}= |=*= |):<}� |*=~ |*<� |�:��=�,,.��('�${( }�)) �)) |}=< |)�~ |)*} |~}� |)~� |�*� |~<= |)�< |�~ |}:���	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�=� �=� |}* |�) |* |)�) |}~ |*)* |)�� |�* |} |�<�	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�=� �=� |)� |< |~ |) |< |< |< |< |< |*�	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�=~ �=~ |� |) |< |*} |< |) |) |< |)� |��	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�== �== |�< |)~ |}} |)}) |�< |*)~ |)�< |)� |}} |�<�	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�<< �<< |)}* |�� |}} |))* |*} |)*� |=~ |�� |< |�*�	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�<) �<) |*� |)*) |} |�* |*= |)�� |)*} |)<* |= |�**	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�<* �<* |� |)� |) |} |}< |)�~ |)}) |)� |< |}�<	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�<} �<} |*}< |}�� |}* |})~ |*�~ |):�}) |):)=� |*=� |))� |�:}�)	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�<� �<� |*~} |�� |))) |**� |�} |*=) |**� |�< |*� |):}<)	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�<� �<� |�= |*� |*~ |=~ |)* |�~ |�} |*} |)* |�<*	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�<� �<� |}~ |*� |~ |}� |*� |)}� |)<� |*) |� |}=�	'/4:��6/('/2$6-(6/����({ }�<� �*< |~= |�� |)) |*�~ |�� |*�� |*<< |}� |�) |==��,,.��/,'(4 }�<� �<� |��< |��* |)�� |�~� |}�} |):��� |):}~� |}~} |)�< |�:~*��(/2$5��25(4 }�<= �<= |)�� |*<~ |�� |*�< |)<� |��= |�=* |*}) |*< |):=���(/2$5��25(4 }�)< �)< |)�* |}} |�) |*<) |�< |*)� |*}� |}� |)� |==��(/2$5��25(4 }�)) �)) |�*� |)~) |)~} |):}�) |*�* |):)�* |):*�} |*<) |)}} |�:)=<�(/2$5��25(4 }�)* �)* |*)� |)*~ |�� |�}< |))� |�~= |�}� |)�* |�� |*:)���,{25�
'2641,'/2/$,6����24 }�<~ �<~ |*�= |))� |�� |):�}} |*�� |=�� |~�= |=) |�� |�:��=�,{25�
'2641,'/2/$,6����24 }�)~ �)~ |))* |)<� |=< |��~ |�= |*)< |)~� |~* |�) |):����,{25�
'2641,'/2/$,6����24 }��< ��< |*}< |�� |�� |=� |�) |)~< |)�~ |}� |*� |~�=�,{25�
'2641,'/2/$,6����24 }�*< �*< |)~* |}� |*� |)�~ |�� |*�� |*}* |*= |�) |):<���,{25�
'2641,'/2/$,6����24 }��� ��� |}= |)=* |� |~� |}� |)*� |)<= |)�* |� |����,{25�
'2641,'/2/$,6����24 }��~ ��~ |== |�< |)� |*)� |))* |}=� |}�= |}* |}� |):*=�$4$/,'�	$'�
'2641,'/2/$,6 }�)� �)� |)=) |* |< |��= |�� |)�� |< |< |� |==~$4$/,'�	$'�
'2641,'/2/$,6 }�*< �*< |)�� |) |< |}�= |�� |~} |< |< |} |���$4$/,'�	$'�
'2641,'/2/$,6 }��� ��� |�� |� |< |*:~}� |�} |)*< |< |< |< |*:<~)����� ������ ������ ������ ������� ������ ������� ������� ������ ������ �������
Page 50 of 69



������������	�
��	���	��������������������
	������	���	
�����	������
������������
������������� !"# $% &$�'��(�)***�+,�'�-.�/012�+.0(��34556�)(-1�72� )�8���9�*53:5�;***;4545 ,<+=&$#> $61)?�6-1��3*55�+0@(A�<B��.�2�+.0(��43:+�1((-�2�,<�9C353*54;C*�;�545 '<D&E !$&<�54�+�.(A�=0--+.0(��3355D�F�<�8�-�F2�'<�9553G*3�;*3C;4�G5 &H<= "18-�F�'��(�)�**��$�)(A�4(A�+()��(2�+.0(��G�5I�0F�2�&H�C��5**5C;93C;543�

Page 51 of 69



 

 
February 23, 2023 
 

TO:  Cultural Trust Board Members  

FROM: Raissa Fleming, Trust Administrative Assistant 

SUBJ:  Campaign Results 2022  

 
Campaign Results 
 
For calendar year 2022, the Trust raised $5,228,258 with 10,839 gifts. This compares to 
$5,553,057 in calendar year 2021 with 10,612 gifts. Calendar year 2022 saw a decrease of  
$324,799 but gifts were up by 227.  It is important to consider that we received a bequest of 
$270,120 in 2021. If we take the generous bequest out of the equation, then we are down by  
$54,678. 
 
The Trust’s top 10 counties for total dollars donated included: 

1. Multnomah  $2,115,854  
2. Lane $730,417 
3. Washington $629,793 
4. Clackamas $382,526 
5. Jackson $311,503 
6. Benton $231,704 
7. Marion $224,403 
8. Deschutes $144,638 
9. Yamhill $109,461 
10. Lincoln $81,179 

 
The Trust’s top 10 cities for total dollars donated were: 

1. Portland  $1,802,214 
2. Eugene $632,206 
3. Salem $226,404 
4. Corvallis $215,776 
5. Ashland $178,214 
6. Beaverton $145,221 
7. Lake Oswego $141,524 
8. Bend $120,694 
9. Medford $83,532 

 
 
 
 

Page 52 of 69



 
The Trust received 1,155 new donor households in 2022, which is approximately 1,452  new 
donors. 
 
We had another nice year with Willamette Week’s Give!Guide. Final numbers raised were 
$590,686 with a total of 2,585 gifts. We received 527 new donors from Give!Guide. 
 
How our donors donated: 

• Online credit card donations: 4,745 at $2,603,288 
• Credit card donations phoned in or mailed: 376 at $205,846 
• Check donations: 2,916 at $1,715,987 
• Stock: 39 stock donations at $40,800 
• EFT or direct deposit from Benevity: 168 donations at $71,243. *Note this includes 

transaction fees. 
 
Other donation facts: 

• Individual donors: 4,020 individuals made 4,639 donations at $1,340,437 
• Joint or couple: 5,384 households made 5,997 donations at $3,706,653 
• Corporate: 23 donations at $31,222. Two new companies donated in 2022. 
• Matching gifts: 97 totaling $50,800 
• 30 companies gave matching gifts in 2022. Intel was the largest with 37 at $19,264 followed 

by Nike with 14 at $13,273. We added 5 new matching gift companies in 2022. Our new 
matching gift companies in 2022 were Mastercard, Palo Alto Networks, Synopsis, Tillamook, 
and Zoom Video Communication. 

• Grants from charitable giving funds/accounts: 57 totaling $61,086 
 
Trust Board, Staff and Partner Giving: 

• 100% giving from Trust Staff 
• 100% giving from Trust Board 
• 100% giving from Oregon Arts Commission Staff 
• 40% giving from Partner Executive Directors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Requested Action: 

 Informational only  For board input/discussion  For board action 

Page 53 of 69



 

 
February 23, 2023 
 

TO:  Cultural Trust Board Members  

FROM: Carrie Kikel, Communications Manager 

SUBJ:  Brand Audit Update   

 
As soon as the 2022 campaign ended, Watson Creative moved into Phase Two of their contract 
work – an audit of the Cultural Trust brand. 
 
Much of the work has been behind the scenes, with their careful analysis of campaign strategies and 
results. They have reviewed all of our creative and campaign investments, including media buys, 
and recently delivered a set of recommendations (attached). The recommendations – which include 
simplifying creative and specific campaign messages for each audience, as well as website 
improvements and developing key performance indicators for media placements – will be strongly 
considered as we plan the 2023 campaign. 
 
The brand audit work has also included significant research, including internal interviews, two 
workshops (thanks to Board Members who participated!), an audit of fundraising partners, 
quantitative (external) and qualitative (internal) surveys and two group interviews/focus groups. 
 
We will hear results of the audit at a “pitchback” meeting scheduled for March 3. Following that 
meeting, Watson will move into development of new creative and recommended campaign 
strategies for the 2023 campaign. 
 
Given the quality of Watson’s work to-date, we are very excited about the potential and hope to 
have them present their findings at the next board meeting!  
 
 
 
 
Requested Action: 

 Informational only  For board input/discussion  For board action 

Page 54 of 69



Fall Campaign 2022 Recommendations

Hello Carrie,

We promised to follow-up our discussion of the Oregon Cultural Trust’s 2022 Fall Campaign with a brief
overview highlighting our suggestions moving forward. You’ll find those highlights below in the manner they
were discussed and in line with the requirements of our Scope of Work.

Our discussion centered on the process, performance, and creative deliverables with the aim to explore
areas for improvement and provide recommendations for future campaign activities.

As always, please reach out with questions or comments.

—

I. Process Recommendations
A. Continue with weekly agenda format to drive/monitor campaign progress
B. Consider the use of master schedule in weekly meetings

1. Start the campaign earlier - plan & key assets
2. Discuss metrics achieved throughout campaign
3. Show campaign assets (as appropriate) in weekly meeting

C. Consider a central repository for all campaign assets, schedules, results, and plans for
reference & review by all participants

II. Performance - Digital Marketing Highlights
A. Google and Meta campaigns brought 19K visits between December 6th - 31st with a $13.7K

investment, whereas Here is Oregon and The Oregonian together brought 3K visits from
August 15th - December 31st with a $25K investment.

B. The Oregonian and Here is Oregon generated an overall good performance and engagement
metrics, meaning the campaign was successful from an awareness and reach point of view.

C. The total audience reach on both these platforms (Here is Oregon and The Oregonian) was
18,386,577 meaning that it cost on average $735 to reach 1M impressions on these
platforms.

D. The campaigns were above the platform's average; people that were exposed to the ads
clicked because they were interested; however, the campaign seemed to not drive donations.
These are the possible reasons why this happened:

1. Website errors, incorrect tagging, no conversion funnel set.
2. The Ads needed to be more consistent with the content people found on the page.

WatsonCreative.com

Page 55 of 69



3. A landing page differs from a regular page; the one we used was more like a regular
page to fill all donations needs. It must be optimized for conversion and by the
audience.

E. Run different campaigns per persona: Cold traffic, warm traffic, and donors. Cold traffic
requires additional information to convert, so awareness, nurturing and remarketing
campaigns could help increase conversions.

F. With the correct data, we can make informed decisions. However, the website has errors that
prevent adequate measurement. Optimizing the website must be prioritized to obtain the
expected results in 2023.

III. Performance - Digital Marketing Recommendations
A. For the 2023 strategy, the Campaign Goals should be set before each campaign to have the

appropriate KPIs to measure the results for each media platform.
1. Brand Awareness: Impressions and Reach
2. Consideration and Engagement: Visits, Time on Page, Actions
3. Conversions: Donations

B. Have a creative message for each campaign goal and personas.
C. Review the digital ad campaign results on a monthly basis in order to optimize, instead of

waiting until the end of the campaign.
D. Final and approved creative assets should be received at least two weeks prior to launching

the campaign.

IV. Creative - Recommendations
1. Simplify. Simplify. Simplify.
2. Have a point of view
3. Know your audience & journey

a) Know when to be emotional
b) Know when to be tactical

4. Build out specific campaign landing pages
5. Ensure proper CTA’s
6. Quiz is powerful, but the CTA and experience is lost on users

WatsonCreative.com

Page 56 of 69



 

 
February 23, 2023 
 

TO:  Cultural Trust Board Members  

FROM: Aili Schreiner, Trust Manager 

SUBJ:  Cultural Trust Planning Update: Strategic & DEIA Plans  

 
Strategic Planning Committee 
The Trust’s Planning Committee is a working group of Board members, including Gayle 
Yamasaki, Chris Van Dyke and Sean Andries. The committee’s charge is to support the 
development and implementation, along with Trust staff, of a five-year strategic plan 
(FY2024-FY2029). The Planning Committee continues to meet quarterly to discuss and 
draft the plan, ultimately to be finalized and approved by the full board by the end of 
FY2023.  
 
The committee met on January 25 and worked on three key goal areas, outlining specific 
actions to achieve these goals that include: 

1. Advancement: “To enrich the lives of Oregonians by increasing access to cultural 
opportunities.” Advancement goals will be achieved by improving awareness of the 
Oregon Cultural Trust to increase community engagement, legislative support and 
maximize funding and capacity support for the cultural sector statewide. Objectives 
include: 

a. Developing legislative advocates 
b. Increasing awareness of the Trust across the state 
c. Cultivating strategic partnerships.  

2. Capacity: “To strengthen and grow Oregon’s arts, heritage and humanities sector 
through increased capacity and access to resources.” Capacity goals will be achieved 
by increasing access to funding, media and technological resources for Oregon’s 
cultural nonprofits. Strategic internal and external investments will expand 
community impact and preserve Oregon’s diverse cultural resources. Objectives 
include: 

a. Maximizing the capacity of the Trust to serve Oregonians 
b. Strengthening Trust grant programs to support the cultural sector 
c. Increasing annual funding for culture 
d. Fortifying Oregon’s cultural network 

3. Resources: “To empower Oregon’s arts, heritage and humanities sector to reach its 
potential.” Objectives include: 

a. Modernizing Trust donor and grant resources 

Page 57 of 69



 
b. Inform and connect Oregonians with the impact of the Trust and the Cultural 

Tax Credit 
Goal area 3, “Resources,” describes many actions that could be included in the “Capacity” 
goal. Staff will work to synthesize these two areas before the next committee meeting. 
 
The committee will meet again on April 12 to review a second draft of the plan. Prior to that 
meeting, Trust staff will walk through the draft plan and its actions. Our goal is to have both 
a public facing and working version of the strategic plan for approval by the full board in 
July 2023. 
 
DEIA Committee 
 
The Trust’s DEIA Committee is a working group made up of Board and Coalition members, 
including Sean Andries, Myong-Hui Murphy, Liz Woody (Museum at Warm Springs) and Taj 
Armstrong (Multnomah County Cultural Coalition). The committee’s charge is to support 
the development and implementation, along with staff, of the Trust’s DEIA goals. This work 
will be integrated into the Trust’s strategic plan.  
 
The Committee met on February 3. Taking inspiration from their DEIA guiding statement, 
“The Oregon Cultural Trust supports a future where Oregonians express, celebrate and 
pass on the diverse lived experiences of their cultures and histories in ways significant to 
them,” the committee focused on five key areas for ongoing and future DEIA initiatives: 

1. Grant Programs: Specifically issues of access, funding types, processes and 
understanding who we are serving 

2. Data Collection and Analysis: Specifically in sharing data with the field, 
administrative barriers in collecting data and best practices in collecting data, and 
what “success” looks like 

3. Fundraising: Specifically in creating a culture of inclusivity that values all the ways 
communities support/fund culture, increasing transparency in use of Trust funds and 
how the Trust impacts communities with the organizations it serves and 
opportunities for greater impact 

4. Partnerships: Specifically in navigating the Trust’s roles and responsibilities with 
organizations whose capacities are bigger, equal or smaller than that of the Trust. 
With the size and diversity of “partners,” helping to prioritize time and efforts 
towards the Trust’s mission and DEIA goals 

5. Role as state agency: Specifically the impact of DEIA initiatives within state 
government by making the case for “culture” writ large and our unique and shared 
approaches towards that end 

 
Committee members meet again on March 24 to review a draft plan that will incorporate 
goals and actions from earlier drafts and subsequent committee contributions. The DEIA 
Committee will continue to meet over the next five months, concurrent with the strategic 
planning timeline, to ultimately finalize and approve a plan by the end of FY2023. 
Discussions on ways to integrate both plans will begin as each plan comes into focus. 
 
 
Requested Action: 

 Informational only  For board input/discussion  For board action 

Page 58 of 69



 

 
February 23, 2023 
 

TO:  Cultural Trust Board Members  

FROM: Aili Schreiner, Trust Manager 

SUBJ:  2023 Conversations with Funders, Grant Program Updates  

 
Thanks to the Trust Partner’s Cooperative pool of funds, this year’s “Conversations with 
Funders and Partners” will be hosted virtually and in seven communities across the state 
Feb. 28 through March 16.  

Participating with the Cultural Trust will be representatives from four Statewide Partners – 
the Oregon Arts Commission, Oregon Heritage, Oregon Humanities and the Oregon State 
Historic Preservation Office – as well as counterparts from the Oregon Community 
Foundation, the James F. and Marion L. Miller Foundation, The Collins Foundation, The 
Autzen Foundation, Spirit Mountain Community Fund, The Roundhouse Foundation, Lane 
Arts, the Wildhorse Foundation, the M.J. Murdock Charitable Trust, the Bend Cultural 
Tourism Fund and Portland’s Regional Arts and Culture Council (Portland only); among 
others. Participants are encouraged, but not required, to sign up for their location of 
choice. Registration is required for the March 1 virtual event. 

Representatives from the Cultural Trust’s County Cultural Coalitions, who receive Trust 
funding for local grant programs, also will participate.  

We are thrilled at the number and diversity of participating funders this year! In addition, 
most funders will have a five-minute, pre-recorded organization overview video (with ASL 
interpretation) which will be posted on event and organization websites. We have received 
many positive reviews for having accessible videos that help applicants navigate funders.  

Organizations encouraged to attend “Conversations with Funders” include community 
development organizations, libraries, arts organizations, museums, cultural centers, parks 
and trails groups, historical societies, arts alliances, literary groups and heritage 
organizations. All cultural nonprofit organizations are welcome.  

“Conversations with Funders” begin Tuesday, Feb. 28, in Portland and conclude in 
Redmond on Thursday, March 16. Registration is encouraged using the location 
Eventbrite links below. 

The full schedule is: 



 
1. Portland: 2:30-5:30 p.m., Tuesday, Feb. 28, Cheatham Hall, World Forestry Center, 

4033 SW Canyon Road, Portland 
2. Virtual: 2:30-5:30 p.m., Wednesday, March 1, Zoom  
3. Astoria: 2:30-5:30 p.m., Thursday, March 2, The Loft at the Red Building, 20 Basin 

St., Astoria  
4. Eugene: 2:30-5:30 p.m., Monday, March 6, WOW Hall, 291 West 8Th Ave., Eugene 
5. Coos Bay: 2:30-5:30 p.m., Wednesday, March 8, Myrtlewood Room, Coos Bay 

Library, 525 Anderson Ave., Coos Bay 
6. Medford: 9 a.m.-12 p.m., Friday, March 10, Large Conference Room, Medford Public 

Library, 205 S. Central Ave., Medford 
7. Pendleton: 2:30-5:30 p.m., Tuesday, March 14, Pendleton Center for the Arts, 214 N. 

Main St., Pendleton 
8. Redmond: 2:30-5:30 p.m., Thursday, March 16, High Desert Music Hall, 818 SW 

Forest Ave, Redmond 

I am setting up times in each location to meet with Coalition leadership to check in and 
share updates from the Trust on its Legislative asks, strategic plan and DEIA work. 
 
Cultural Development Grants 
The majority of FY2023 CDV grant award payments have been issued. FY2024 guidelines 
will be posted in February 2023 with a May 5 application deadline. While we anticipate 
making changes to the program once the Trust’s Strategic and DEIA plans are adopted, no 
major changes to the program are planned for FY2024. 
 
Grant Panel interest forms will be posted to the Trust website shortly, and it’s not too early 
to sign up as a Panel Chair!  
 
This year’s panel dates are: 

1. Preservation: June 13, 9 am – 4 pm 
2. Access: June 15, 9 am – 4 pm 
3. Creativity: June 20, 9 am – 4 pm 
4. Capacity: June 22, 9 am – 4 pm 

 
Cultural Participation Grants 
The majority of FY2023 CPT grant award payments have been issued. Coalitions are in the 
process of submitting their FY2022 grant reports. Coalitions continue their work in 
recruiting new members, updating their cultural plans and, in some cases, registering as 
501c3 nonprofits. A few Coalitions did not have the capacity to make grants during periods 
of the pandemic (e.g., Jefferson and Wheeler counties); I am working with their leadership 
to reinstate their programs.  
 
The Trust is now hosting quarterly “meet ups” for Coalition members to discuss shared 
topics and exchange experiences and ideas. The next meet-up is scheduled at noon on April 
7 and topics will include legislative updates, fiscal sponsorships, updating cultural plans, 
leadership transitions, DEIA in grantmaking and organizational goals. 
 
 
 



 
Cultural Partner Grants 
All FY2023 direct Partner grant awards have been paid. Each year, the Trust Partners 
invest in statewide cultural projects using Cooperative Funds. The FY2023 award was 
$171,137; combined with a balance of $10,767 the total budget for FY2023 is $181,904.  
 
Funds already committed in FY2023 include: 

• $40k, Oregon Poet Laureate program 
• $35k, Travel Information Council, Oregon Trail Interpretive Signage 
• Up to $22k for Conversations with Funders expenses 
• $40k, Organizational & Professional Development Grants (OPD), including:  

Organizational Development grants to: 

1. Rogue Valley Wind Ensemble: $2,000 for Strategic Planning 
2. Oregon Coast School of Art: $2,000 for Strategic Planning 
3. Push/FOLD: $1,900 for Fundraising Strategy 
4. Columbia Gorge Orchestra Association: $2,000 for a DEI Consultant 
5. DanceWire: $2,000 for Digital Marketing Consultant 
6. Gold Beach Main Street: $1,800 for Strategic Planning 
7. Samoa Pacific Development Corporation: $2,000 for Native Americans 

Western Region Trainings 
8. Yamhill County Historical Society & Museum: $2,000 for Strategic Planning 
9. Lane Arts: $2,000 for Strategic Planning 
10. Hellenic-American Cultural Center & Museum: $900 for a Digital Marketing 

Consultant 
11. Lord & Schryver Conservancy: $2,000 for Strategic Planning 
12. Umatilla County Historical Society: $2,000 for Strategic Planning 
13. Anima Mundi Productions: $2,000 for Audience Development and Marketing 
14. Central Coast Chorale: $2,000 for Media Training 
15. Oregon Coast Youth Symphony Festival: $2,000 for Marketing Planning 
16. Oregon Contemporary: $2,000 for Social Media Plan 
17. Portland Revels: $2,000 for IDEA Training 
18. Restore Oregon: $2,000 for Strategic Planning 
19. Scalehouse: $2,000 for Fundraising Consultant 
20. Southern Oregon Repertory Singers: $1,750 for DEI Training 

Professional Development grants to: 

1. All Classical Portland: $750 for participation in the Public Media Diversity 
Leaders Initiative 

2. Hillsboro Downtown Partnership: $750 for participation in Leadership 
Hillsboro Conference 

 
As of February 14, the OPD grant budget has reached $39,850. 
 
The Partners will meet soon to allocate the FY2023 remaining balance of $40,904.  
 
 
Requested Action: 

 Informational only  For board input/discussion  For board action 



 

 
February 23, 2023 
 

TO:  Cultural Trust Board Members  

FROM: Brian Rogers, Executive Director 

SUBJ:  Executive Director Report  

 
The Legislative session for the 2023-2025 biennium is well underway. I gave an overview of the 
Cultural Trust for the House Committee on Economic Development and Small Business on Jan.  20.  
The presentation outlined the history, placement, reach of grants, tax credit and concluded with 
economic impact. Representative Janelle Bynum, chair of the committee, wanted the rest of the 
members to have knowledge of the Cultural Trust as they are reviewing some of the bills and asks.  
 
Summary of Legislative requests 2023-2025: 
 

1. HB2498 - $200m Lottery Bonds in Long-term Funding for the Corpus of the Oregon Cultural 
Trust.   

2. HB2459 - $50m General Fund for Additional Recovery for the Arts and Culture Sector. 
3. HB2911 - $20m transfer from the Administrative Services Economic Development Fund to 

the Business Oregon’s Industry Competitions Fund for arts and culture sector.  This bill is in 
the process of being merged with HB2459.  

4. Investment in Cultural Capital Projects (no bill at this point), list of projects is attached. 
5. Legislative Concept for Trust admin restriction of $400k removal.  (LC 356) 
6. Policy Option Package for $10m Arts Commission General Fund increase 

 
Attached is the Cultural Advocacy Coalition of Oregon’s 2023 legislative priority list with more 
information. This is by far the CACO’s most ambitious request.  
 
There is an additional bill, House Bill 2029, which would extend the sunset of the Tax Credit from 
2026 to 2028. Tax credits are typically active for six years. There are several tax credits in 
Oregon, and all seem to be included in the bill.  
 
Caucus 
The Arts and Culture Caucus has had two meetings so far. The main topic was to review the current 
bills and asks. The first in-person event is scheduled for Monday, Feb.  27, at 5:30. The event will be 
at Elsinore Theatre in Salem; Thomas Lauderdale and Hunter Novack will perform along with the 
trumpet quintet from the Salem-Keizer School District and Charro/Mexican Horseman Antonio 
Huerta. 
 
The Caucus members are: Rep. Rob Noose (D-Portland); Sen. Dick Anderson (R-Lincoln City); Rep. 
Janelle Bynum (D-Clackamas); Rep. Maxine Dexter (D-Portland); Rep. David Gomberg (D-Otis); Sen. 
Bill Hansell (R-Athena); new member Rep. Annessa Hartman (D-Gladstone); Rep. John Lively (D-

Page 59 of 69



 
Springfield); Rep. Pam Marsh (D-Ashland); and Sen. Deb Patterson (D-Salem). Caucus membership is 
expected to expand.  
 
Budget 
Attached is our current budget for reference. As we get closer to the start of the next biennium, we 
will begin developing a draft of the budget for the fiscal year. We will need to have final donation 
accounting and projected license plate revenue.   
 
Also attached is our current Oregon Intermediate Term Pool summary. OITP manages our 
permanent fund.  
 
  
 
 
 
Requested Action: 

 Informational only  For board input/discussion  For board action 

Page 60 of 69



 
2023-25 Legislative Priorities 

 
Members of the Cultural Advocacy Coalition of Oregon (CACO) stand for 
ensuring that all Oregonians have the opportunity to access arts and 
culture in their communities.  We advocate for policies and funding that 
will create a thriving environment for arts, culture, history, heritage, and 
humanities across Oregon.  Volunteers serve on our Board of Directors 
and include representatives from a membership of over 350 
organizations across the state including tribes and cultural partners, to 

best represent the diverse mix of Oregon’s cultural community.  We have these critical priorities for 
2023: 
 

1. HB 2459:  $50 million in recovery funding for the arts and cultural sector.  Oregon 
experienced some of the longest pandemic-related shutdowns and the arts and culture sector 
felt that deeply.  Impacts have included fewer people willing to attend in-person events, lower 
concessions sales at performances, cancelled performances due to COVID impacting the 
performers, and a drop-off in long-time, regular attendees who due to age are highly 
vulnerable populations unlikely to return to live events. Some of our major venues are seeing 
ticket sales at 18% of what they were before the pandemic.  The need is great.   
 
This bill provides $50 million in general funds to be distributed through direct allocations to 
larger arts/culture entities, plus a list of independent venues, with remaining funds (roughly 
half) distributed by the county and tribal coalitions through a grant program modeled on the 
CARES process that worked so well.   

 
2. Cultural Resource Economic Funds (CREF) Capital Projects.  A strong arts and culture 

sector impacts livability, economic activity and social attachment to communities.  Expanding 
access to the arts is crucial for our state’s continued growth and community development.  The 
economic impacts are significant including jobs, spending by arts and culture organizations, 
local and state gov’t revenues and an average of $42.59 being spent per person per event 
outside of ticket price (meals, lodging and transportation). 
 
CACO conducts a statewide RFP process to prioritize the projects most ready for state capital 
investment.  Projects go through an intensive peer review which we have just completed.  This 
is the largest slate of projects we have proposed but with a funding level commensurate with 
what the legislature has allocated in the past biennium.  The 2023-35 project slate proposes 17 
projects totaling $11.9 million representing large and small organizations, locations all over the 
state, and all kinds of arts, culture, historic preservation, and heritage sites.  The amount 
requested is similar to what was appropriated last session but includes 7 more projects ranging 
for $72,000 in need to $3 million. 
 

3. HB 2498:  $200 million In long-term funding for the corpus of the Oregon Cultural 
Trust.  The original concept of the Oregon Cultural Trust was that in addition to a tax credit for 
Oregonians who give to it, the sale of public lands would fill its coffers.  No public land has 
been sold yet Oregonians have contributed nearly $30 million to date through the cultural trust 
tax credit. 

 
This bill allocates $200 million to be invested through lottery bonding with earnings spent for 
grants to the 1600 eligible arts and culture nonprofits in Oregon.  This will provide a 
sustainable future for the sector and move Oregon into the top national rankings for state 

Page 61 of 69



support to arts, culture, heritage and humanities offering for all Oregonians.  We call it 
Oregon’s Culture Promise. 
 

 
4. $10 million increase in Oregon Arts Commission grants budget for operations grants.  

This is a priority of the OAC and was approved by the previous Governor.  Oregon continues 
to lag other states in the support it gives to arts organizations and yet these organizations 
generate economic and social return for our residents that shapes community livability and 
prosperity,  

 
5. Replacing OCT Administrative Cap with Percentage of Earnings. This is a priority of the 

Oregon Cultural Trust and was approved by the previous Governor.  The cap on administrative 
costs has not grown with the needs to support grants distribution and management.  Course 
correction is needed to match the realities of a growing and more complex arts and culture 
field. 

 
 

Page 62 of 69



     
2023-25 Cultural Resource Economic Funds (CREF) 

Endorsed Capital Projects 
 
The Cultural Advocacy Coalition of Oregon received over 35 applications for 
2023-25 CREF funding for arts and culture capital projects across the state.  
We evaluated each of these applications in a peer review process led by 
CACO Board members and with expertise from staff of the Oregon Arts 

Commission and the Oregon Cultural Trust.  Using specific criteria from economic impact to expanding 
access to the arts, we saw many exciting projects under development across the state. 
 
Successful projects were selected largely because of their impact and their level of readiness for state 
investment.  We are confident that state funds will support well-developed and viable projects on the 
endorsed slate.   

 
1. Black United Fund ($900,000). Building United Futures Complex.   

A comprehensive razing, rebuild and renaissance of the physical space of the Black United Fund 
on Alberta Street in North Portland to showcase and shelter local Black and BIPOC artists and arts 
organizations, among other mission-aligned organizations focused on economic development, 
education, and more.   Increases capacity of BUF by 200% resulting in 4,000 people directly served 
and nearly 40,000 indirectly served each year. 
  

2. Clatsop County Historical Society ($1,000,000).  Expanding the Oregon Film Museum. 
To increase space to facilitate appreciation of the art of media making and careers in film by better 
accommodating 40,000+ visitors a year in Astoria. 
 

3. Friends of the Oregon Caves & Chateau ($455,690).  Restoring the Oregon Caves Chateau. 
For restoration and repair of historic doors and their related hardware dating back to 1933-34 
when the Chateau was built in Cave Junction.  One of only two National Historic Landmark Lodges 
in Oregon.  Currently 120,000 people visit each year and with completion of the Chateau’s 
restoration, this is expected to grow to 200,000. 

 
4. Literary Arts ($1,000,000).  Building New Community Space/Headquarters of Literary Arts. 

To build a community space and permanent headquarters in Portland’s Central Eastside by 
quadrupling Literary’s Arts current capacity with added classrooms, seminar and event spaces.  
Helping people to tell their story as a form of artistic self-expression, empowerment and 
community building, Literary Arts currently serves over 20,000 event attendees, over 700 readers 
and writers who take classes, 581 fellowship applicants, 4,000 youth per year, and over half a 
million radio show and podcast listeners. 
 

5. Columbia County Museum Association ($400,000).  Relocation and Improved Accessibility of the 
Columbia County Museum. 
To move the Museum to the historic John. Gumm School in St. Helens expanding and improving 
access to the collection which chronicles the people, places, things and events that shaped 
Columbia County’s history and culture.  In 2019, visitors to Columbia County spent $4.4 million on 
arts, entertainment, and recreation, including museums and historical/cultural preservation 
activities. 

Page 63 of 69



 
6. Josephine Community Library Foundation ($424,603).  Acquisition of land for a New Josephine 

County Library and Community Commons. 
Acquisition of land to construct a new, two-story library and community gathering space in central 
downtown Grants Pass.  Over 20,000 people annually attend library events with an additional 
15,000 patrons using public computers and 75,000 connecting to library wi-fi. 
 

7. Native Arts and Culture Foundation ($3,000,000).  Creation of the Center for Native Arts and 
Cultures. 
To renovate and retrofit the Yale Union Building in Southeast Portland to provide cultural 
resources to rural and urban Native constituents across the state of Oregon as well as serve as a 
national, Oregon-based arts and cultures destination.  From supporting direct grants and 
fellowships to artists and culture-bearers, to supporting community organizations, and hosting 
convenings, NACF is positioned to serve 6.8 m. people in this country who identify as Native 
Americans, Alaska Natives, and Native Hawaiians. 

 
8. High Desert Museum ($2,000,000).  Construction of a New Wing of the High Desert Museum. 

To construct new exhibit space at the Museum in Bend and renovate the permanent exhibition 
on the Indigenous Plateau.  The Museum has a $20 m. impact on the central Oregon region 
annually.  This project will double the Museum’s educational programming capacity, increase 
events with revenue of over $1 m., and increase attendance by a minimum of 10% a year, with 
150,000 visitors coming from outside of the region. 

 
9. Southern Oregon Historical Society ($500,000).  Creation of an Event Center and New Southern 

Oregon Historical Society Museum. 
To fund renovation of the J.C. Penney building in Medford to house new event space which will 
facilitate establishing a new exhibit space as well as a mobile museum for the collections 
showcasing the history of Jackson County and Southern Oregon. 

 
10. PAM CUT // Center for an Untold Tomorrow ($250,000).   Creation of the Tomorrow Theater. 

Renovation of the former Oregon Theater, a 1925 vaudeville theater in Southeast Portland to 
provide multi-media performance space focused on immersive cinematic experiences of all kinds.  
Audiences of over 88,000 are expected by the Theater’s third year, along with support for over 
5,000 artists and 30+ community partnerships. 

 
11. Painted Sky Center for Arts and Culture ($500,000).  Acquisition of Building for Painted Sky Center 

for Arts and Culture. 
To acquire a multi-use permanent space in John Day to serve all Grant County residents and 
visitors with arts and culture offerings.  Located next to the Kam Wah Chung State Heritage Site, 
this facility will provide year-round livability and economic benefits to the region. 
 

12. Very Little Theatre ($350,000). Renovate and Remodel Existing Building for the Very Little Theatre. 
To expand the scene shop and storage capacity of this community theatre in Eugene in order for 
more community groups to use the facility and strengthen economic impact. 

 
13. Rainier Oregon Historical Museum ($500,000).  Building Construction for the Rainier Oregon 

Historical Museum. 

Page 64 of 69



Currently operating out of one-room in the City Hall, this expansion on land already owned by the 
Museum will allow for designated space for collection display and community events serving the 
2000 residents and numerous visitors to Rainier. 
 

14. Portland Institute for Contemporary Art ($150,000).  Capital Repairs and Upgrades to PICA 
Building. 
For critical building repairs and to expand accessibility to support the continued delivery of 
contemporary art and artistic exhibitions, programs, and productions in the North Portland area.  
Improvements will include external lighting, security upgrades, and ADA compliance updates 
needed to operate safely to the benefit of community groups, staff and artists who utilize the 
space. 

 
15. Sisters Folk Festival ($72,000).  Capital Upgrades to Sisters Art Work Venue. 

For upgrades to the venue space in Sisters including adding shading, storage space, and increasing 
electrical and lighting resources for expanded use.  Outdoor music and middle school youth camps 
have strong outreach into the community in Deschutes County. 

 
16. Salem Parks Foundation ($150,000).  Eco-Earth Globe Restoration in Riverfront Park. 

Repair of this historic attraction created by volunteers upon the acid ball used to process wood 
pulp at the former Boise Cascade operation now home to Riverfront Park.  This monument is need 
of significant renewal attention to match the growing vibrancy of Salem’s riverfront park. 

 
17. Portland Playhouse ($300,000).  Acquisition of Portland Playhouse Building and Property. 

To purchase the home of Portland Playhouse in the King neighborhood in North Portland, reaching 
over 13,000 people a year in audience size plus serving 500 students annually with in-school 
residencies.   

 
 

TOTAL 2023-25 REQUEST  $11,952,293 
 

 

Page 65 of 69



Oregon Cultural Trust - Spending Plans
(Multi-year schedule has been recast from prior annual expenditure plans presented to the CT Board)

% of 
Allocation $

% of 
Allocation $

% of 
Allocation $

Contributions and Earnings
Revenue from Annual Contributions (from PY) 4,581,623          5,114,935.51    5,709,928.00                  
Interest & Investment Earnings (from PY) 596,776             1,068,150.66    822,435.00                     

Grand Total Contributions and Earnings 5,178,399          6,183,086.17    6,532,363.00                  

Allocations
Permanent Fund Allocation 40% 2,071,360          40% 2,473,234.47    40% 2,612,945.20                  
Disbursement (Grants and Adminstration) 60% 3,107,039          60% 3,709,851.70    60% 3,919,417.80                  

Grand Total Allocations 100% 5,178,399          100% 6,183,086.17    100% 6,532,363.00                  

Disbursement Detail
Disbursement for Trust Administration 400,000             455,411.00        496,670.00                     
Disbursement for Competitive Grants, Partners and Coalitions 2,707,039          3,254,440.70    3,422,747.80                  

Total: 3,107,039          3,709,851.70    3,919,417.80                  

Competitive Grants, Partners and Coalitions Detail
Cultural Development Grants 50% 1,353,520          50% 1,627,220.35    50% 1,711,373.90                  
Cultural Participation Grants (Coalitions) 25% 676,760             25% 813,610.18        25% 855,686.95                     
Cultural Partner Grants 25% 676,760             25% 813,610.18        25% 855,686.95                     

Total: 100% 2,707,039          100% 3,254,440.70    100% 3,422,747.80                  
Partner Grants - Detail (Percentages Set by Statute)

Cooperative Partner Projects 20.0% 135,352             20.0% 162,722.04        20.0% 171,137.39                     
Oregon Arts Commission 26.7% 180,469             26.7% 216,962.71        26.7% 228,183.19                     
Oregon Council for the Humanities 26.7% 180,469             26.7% 216,962.71        26.7% 228,183.19                     
Oregon Heritage Commission 8.9% 60,156               8.9% 72,320.90          8.9% 76,061.06                       
Oregon Historical Society 8.9% 60,156               8.9% 72,320.90          8.9% 76,061.06                       
State Historic Preservation Office 8.9% 60,156               8.9% 72,320.90          8.9% 76,061.06                       

FY23FY22FY21

Page 66 of 69



OITP - Oregon

PLAN ACCOUNTING REPORT

January 1, 2023 to January 31, 2023
Trust Name: OITP - Oregon

Entity Name: OREGON CULTURAL TRUST

Entity Type: Plan

Entity Number: OCT

Beginning Ratio: 0.100690385

Beginning Price: 1248.100580812

Amount Units YTD Amount

Beginning Balance: 30,361,009.81 24,325.77 30,814,238.27

Amort/Accretion Income 10,149.05 17,716.36

Dividend Income 0.00 0.00

Interest Income 104,109.02 664,064.85

Commission Recapture 0.00 0.00

Stock Loan Income 0.00 990.36

Other Income 88.91 0.00

Investment Manager Expense (1,315.98) (9,179.85)

Tax Withholding Expenses 0.00 0.00

Other Expenses 0.00 (2,316.16)

Transfers In 1,143,528.72 12,609,662.77

Transfers Out (1,228,391.37) (12,853,155.11)

Asset Transfers - In 84,862.65 243,492.33

Units Purchased/Sold Asset Transfers 0.00 0.00

Capital Gains 0.00 0.00

Other Capital 0.00 0.00

Realized Gain Loss 117,612.56 (961,353.99)

Margin Variation 0.00 0.00

Unrealized Gain Loss - Security 411,483.88 478,977.42

Ending Balance: 31,003,137.25 24,325.77 31,003,137.25

Net Change 642,127.44 0.00 188,898.98

Ending Ratio: 0.100690385

Ending Price: 1274.497582968

Page 1 of 1Page 67 of 69



UNITED STATES TREASURY

SPRINT SPECTRUM CO LLC

OSCAR US FUNDING TRUST

F&G GLOBAL FUNDING

FORD CRED AUTO OWNER TRUST_22-C

TRP LLC TRP_21-2

AGREE LP

OCI NV

FORD CRED AUTO OWNER TRUST_22-B

FAIRFAX (US) INC
Total 72.8%

1.5%

1.7%

1.7%

1.8%

1.9%

2.0%

2.6%

2.8%

2.9%

53.9%

Top 10 Issuers

Fund objectives
The investment objective of the Oregon
Intermediate Term Pool ("OITP") is to maximize
total return (i.e., principal and income) within
stipulated risk parameters. OITP is not appropriate
for funds needed to cover short-term (less than 1
year) needs. The portfolio seeks to meet or
outperform the total return of the Bloomberg US
Intermediate Government/Credit Index.

Fund Strategy
The Oregon Intermediate Term Pool ("OITP") is actively managed to maintain an
intermediate duration through a diversified portfolio of investment grade quality fixed
income investments as prescribed in the portfolio guidelines. Oregon State Treasury
investment staff will achieve the investment objectives through active management of the
portfolio with the objective of meeting or exceeding the Bloomberg Intermediate US
Government/Credit Index.

AAA

AA

A

BBB

BB

Not Rated

63.0%

19.8%

10.1%

0.2%

6.2%

0.7%

Credit Quality Distribution Sector Allocations

Oregon Intermediate Term Pool
December 31, 2022

Name Mth Qtr 1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 7 Yr Incep.
OITP
BBG US Intm Gov/Cred* 1.18%

1.87%

0.89%

1.36%

0.50%

1.05%

-1.58%

-0.57%

-8.24%

-8.27%

1.54%

1.29%

-0.18%

-0.23%

Fund Performance

Treasuries

Corporates

Securitized

Municipals

Cash
Securities** 0.4%

0.2%

18.7%

26.9%

53.9%

**Includes the Oregon
Short Term Fund

*From 8/1/2010 to 8/31/2013, benchmark was BAML 1-5 Yrs US Corp/Gov A Rated & Above.
From 9/1/2013 to 5/31/2015 the benchmark was BAML 1-5 Year Domestic Master. From
6/1/2015 to 12/31/2020, the benchmark was Bloomberg 3-5 Year US Aggregate Index. From
1/1/2021 onward, the benchmark is Bloomberg US Intermediate Government/Credit Index.

-Performance quoted represents past performance and is no guarantee of future results.
-Performance is net of investment management fees.
-Performance reported for periods greater than 1 year is annualized.

<1Y** 1Y-3Y 3Y-5Y 5Y-7Y 7Y-10Y 10Y+
0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

20.6%

10.0%

25.9%

41.2%

0.8%1.5%

Maturity Breakdown

Net Asset Value $301,528,391

Fund Characteristics

Number of Securities 96

Duration (Years) 3.93

Yield-to-Maturity 4.98%

Effective Credit Rating AA

Inception Date 8/1/2010

OITP
BBG US Intm Gov/Cred*

Page 68 of 69



Disclaimer: Any information provided herein has been prepared from sources believed to be reliable but is not guaranteed, and is for
informational purposes only. The information provided herein should not be regarded as an offer to sell or as a solicitation of an offer to buy
the products mentioned.  No representation is made that any returns will be achieved. Past performance is not indicative of future results.
Opinions expressed herein are subject to change without notice. The securities and funds mentioned in this document may not be eligible or
suitable for all types of investors.

Investing involves risk, including the possible loss of principal.
Fixed income securities and bond funds may be subject to risks that can result in the loss of value. These risks may include interest rate risk,
issuer default risk, credit risk, prepayment risk, and price volatility risk. Preservation of capital is not guaranteed.

Source ICE Data Indices, LLC ("ICE DATA"), is used with permission. ICE DATA, ITS AFFILIATES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE THIRD PARTY
SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS AND/OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, INCLUDING THE INDICES, INDEX DATA
AND ANY DATA INCLUDED IN, RELATED TO, OR DERIVED THEREFROM. NEITHER ICE DATA, ITS AFFILIATES NOR THEIR
RESPECTIVE THIRD PARTY SUPPLIERS SHALL BE SUBJECT TO ANY DAMAGES OR LIABILITY WITH RESPECT TO THE ADEQUACY,
ACCURACY, TIMELINESS OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INDICES OR THE INDEX DATA OR ANY COMPONENT THEREOF, AND THE
INDICES AND INDEX DATA AND ALL COMPONENTS THEREOF ARE PROVIDED ON AN "AS IS" BASIS AND YOUR USE IS AT YOUR
OWN RISK. ICE DATA, ITS AFFILIATES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE THIRD PARTY SUPPLIERS DO NOT SPONSOR, ENDORSE, OR
RECOMMEND Oregon State Treasury, OR ANY OF ITS PRODUCTS OR SERVICES.

Barclays Global Family of Indices, Copyright 2018: Barclays Risk Analytics and Index Solutions Limited. Used with permission.

All third-party marks cited are the property of their respective owners.

Oregon Intermediate Term Pool
December 31, 2022

Page 69 of 69


	Dashboard_2021.pdf
	Page-1�

	Dashboard_2021.pdf
	Page-1�




